AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR

2021 LARGE WATER VALVE AND RCCP REPLACEMENT PROJECT CITY OF MESQUITE CONTRACT NO. 2023-017

FOR THE CITY OF MESQUITE, TEXAS PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT - ENGINEERING DIVISION



Prepared by:



The seal appearing on this document was authorized by Richard A. Arvizu, P.E. Tx. No. 88432. Alteration of a sealed document without proper notification to the responsible engineer is an offense under the Texas Engineering Practice Act., 10/25/2022

RICHARD A. ARVIZU

8 88432

CENSE

ONAL END

BID OPENING: December 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TENTATIVE SCHEDULE	3
ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS	4
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS	
STANDARDS OF CONDUCT	7
BID SUBMITTAL	
PROPOSAL	
BID FORM	
DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) INFORMATION	
PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTS WITH COMPANIES BOYCOTTING ISRAEL	
NON-COLLUSION STATEMENT	19
CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE	21
BID BOND	
BIDDER'S QUALIFICATION INFORMATION (APPARENT LOW BIDDER)	
QUALIFICATION STATEMENT OF BIDDER	
REFERENCE STATEMENT OF BIDDER'S SURETY	
BIDDER'S RELEASE OF QUALIFICATION INFORMATION	
BIDDER'S LIST OF PROPOSED SUB-CONTRACTORS	33
NON-EXCLUSION AFFIDAVIT - SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT (SAM)	
CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295	
CONTRACT AND BOND FORMS	37
CONTRACT CHECKLIST	38
SUPPLEMENT TO ACORD 25	40
CONTRACT	41
WAGE RATE	46
PERFORMANCE BOND	51
PAYMENT BOND	53
CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT OF FINAL PAYMENT AND RELEASE	55
CONTRACT GENERAL PROVISIONS	
ADDENDUM TO DIVISION 100, GENERAL PROVISIONS	
SPECIAL PROVISIONS	
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS	
APPENDIX	104

TENTATIVE SCHEDULE

FOR

2021 LARGE WATER VALVE AND RCCP REPLACEMENT PROJECT City of Mesquite Contract No. 2023-017

1st Public Advertisement Thursday, November 3, 2022

2nd Public Advertisement Thursday, November 10, 2022

Questions November 18, 2022

Pre-Bid Conference 2:00 p.m., Monday, November 14, 2022

Open Bids 2:00 p.m., Thursday, December 1, 2022

(Bid openings are held on Tuesdays and Thursdays)

Council Awards Contract January 16, 2023

(Assumes no bidding irregularities or other issues with the low bidder requiring extensive checking of Qualifications)

Notice to Proceed - Start Construction January 30, 2023

(Assumes rapid execution of contract documents by the Contractor with proper insurance and bonds)

Substantial Completion (150 Calendar Day Contract)

June 29, 2023

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

City of Mesquite Contract No. 2023-017

Sealed competitive bids or proposals as set forth and required in the plans and specifications (either of which shall hereinafter be referred to as the "Bid") addressed to the Mayor and City Council of the City of Mesquite, Texas will be received at the office of Ryan Williams, Manager of Purchasing at City Hall, Purchasing Division, 2nd Floor, 757 North Galloway Avenue, Mesquite, Texas 75149 until 2:00 p.m. on Thursday, December 1, 2022, for the following: 2021 LARGE WATER VALVE AND RCCP REPLACEMENT PROJECT.

As set forth in the plans and specifications. the project provides for the installation of four 24-inch resilient wedge gate valves, the removal of nine 2-inch threaded inserts on a 24-inch RCCP water main, installation of approximately 24 linear feet of 24" ductile iron water main and approximately 111 linear feet of fiber reinforced polymer sewer main.

A <u>pre-bid conference</u> will be held <u>at 2:00 p.m. on Monday, November 14, 2022</u>, at the City of Mesquite Art Center located at 1527 N. Galloway Avenue, Mesquite, Texas 75149 in the Upstairs Library

Instruction to Bidders, proposal forms, plans and specifications (the "Bid Documents") may be obtained from the Purchasing Department Website and from Periscope Holdings.

The Bid shall be submitted on the form provided in the Bid Documents. Vendors should check the Mesquite Purchasing Department website, http://www.cityofmesquite.com/674/Bid-Openings-Specifications-Conferences, and Periscope Holdings, https://www.cityofmesquite.com/678/Periscope-Bid-Openings, to view documents relating to this Bid. Questions shall be submitted through Periscope Holdings and response will be posted through Periscope Holdings.

Bidder must submit, with their Bid, a Cashier's check, Certified check or a Bid Bond from an approved surety company, in the amount of five percent (5%) of their Bid as a guarantee that the Bidder will enter into a contract and guarantee forms, if required, within 10 days after notice of award of contract.

The successful bidder must furnish both a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond, each in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price, from an approved Surety company holding a permit from the State of Texas to act as surety, and acceptable according to the latest list of companies holding Certificates of Authority from the Secretary of the Treasury of the United States, or another Surety acceptable to the City.

Further information concerning the procurement may be obtained **by email only** from the City of Mesquite Engineering Division – Lisa Crossman, P.E., Assistant City Engineer, Icrossman@cityofmesquite.com.

The right is reserved by the City of Mesquite to reject any and all bids.

CITY OF MESQUITE, TEXAS	
Sonja Land	
City Secretary	

CITY OF MESQUITE CONTRACT NO.: 2023-017

Publish: November 3, 2022

November 10, 2022

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

- 1. If you have questions regarding the preparation of your bid, you may contact Ryan Williams, Manager of Purchasing, City of Mesquite, telephone 972-216-6201. For technical questions **send an email** to Lisa Crossman, P.E., Assistant City Engineer, Icrossman@cityofmesquite.com.
- Mailed bids must be submitted in sufficient time to be received and time-stamped at the location in the advertisement on or before the published date and time shown on the Advertisement for Bids. The City of Mesquite is not responsible for mail delivered from the post office. Bids received after the published date and time will not be considered and will be returned unopened.
- 3. The Bidder/Contractor shall at all times observe and comply with all Federal, State and local laws, ordinances and regulations which in any manner affect the Contract or the work, and shall indemnify and save harmless the City against any claim arising from the violation of any such laws, ordinances and regulations whether by the Bidder/Contractor or his employees.
- 4. Prices shall be filled in and extended on the bid sheets. In case of discrepancy between unit price and the extension, the unit price will govern. Contractors may utilize the Microsoft Excel spreadsheet bid form available on the City's Purchasing Division web site. No other electronic forms will be accepted. A hard copy printout is required with the bid.
- 5. Bidder shall complete all information requested and blanks provided shall be filled in beside or under each bid item. Failure to completely describe the item being bid may result in rejection of the bid.
- 6. Prices quoted in the bid shall prevail for the entire term of the contract.
- 7. The Contract, Performance Bond and Payment Bond forms are included for Bidders information so that Bidders may be familiar with their contents and requirements. *Bidder shall not fill in or execute these forms at time of bid submittal.*
- 8. The City of Mesquite reserves the right to reject any and all bids, waive formalities and to make award of bid as may be deemed to the best advantage of the City. No bid may be withdrawn within one hundred and twenty (120) days after date of opening. The City may, at its sole discretion, release any Bidder and return the bid security prior to that date.
- 9. The City of Mesquite reserves the right to evaluate variations from these specifications. If exceptions are made, bidder shall state wherein the bid item fails to meet these specifications. Failure to completely describe the item being bid may result in rejection of your bid.
- 10. Any ambiguity in the bid as a result of omission, error, lack of clarity or non-compliance by the Bidder with specifications, instructions and all conditions shall be construed in favor of the City.
- 11. Quantities are estimated. It is specifically understood and agreed that these quantities are approximate and any increase or decrease in quantities may result in contract adjustments per General Provision 104.2.
- 12. Disadvantaged business/HUB vendors listed with the Office of Small Business Assistance of the General Services Commission are requested to provide a copy of their current certificate with the bid.
- 13. Bidders shall complete the non-collusion statement included in the bid.

14.		DDERS must submit with the bid , either a Bid Bond provided herein, Cashier's Check or ied Check in the amount of 5% of the total bid per General Provision Section 102.5.
15.	delive	rs shall fill out the following forms, as noted in the bid and attach them to their bid and mail or r them prior to the bid closing date and time to the City of Mesquite Purchasing Division, City 757 North Galloway Avenue, Mesquite, Texas 75149:
		Bid Form (Proposal). Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Information. Prohibition On Contracts with Companies Boycotting Israel – House Bill 89. Non-Collusion Statement. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire (CIQ). Bid Bond.
16.	Consi	apparent low bidder shall complete and deliver to the Engineering Division and City's ulting Engineer within 48-hours after the bid opening, the following Bidder's fication Information documents:
		Qualification Statement of Bidder. If additional space is needed, please use attachments.
		Reference Statement of Bidder's Surety.
		Bidder's Release of Qualification Information.
		Bidder's List of Proposed Sub-contractors.
		Financial Statement Reviewed or Audited by an Independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), prepared in the last 12-months for the bidder's company.
		Non-Exclusion Affidavit – System for Award Management (SAM).
		Certificate of Interested Parties (Form 1295)
		IRS W9 Form – a pdf version of this form can be downloaded from the IRS website.
		Secretary of State Filing Certificate.

All nine (9) documents shall be delivered to the Engineering Division and City's Consulting Engineer as a single, complete package. No one form or statement will be accepted individually.

If a project is a "joint venture", all partners in the joint venture shall complete the qualification forms.

END OF SECTION

STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

The City of Mesquite conducts business with the public, business partners, vendors and contractors under a set of rules to ensure that all City officials and employees discharge their duties in a manner designed to promote public trust and confidence in our city. This code of ethics, titled Standards of Conduct, is taken from the Mesquite City Code, Chapter 2, Article IV, Sec 2-123.

The City wants you to be aware of the rules that its employees are required to follow while performing their services to you. A violation of state or federal statutes may occur if these rules are broken. It is hoped that by outlining these rules for you, your experience in dealing with the City of Mesquite will be both rewarding and satisfactory.

Acceptance of Gifts or Gratuities

Accepting gifts or gratuities by employees in consideration for the performance of their duties, or as an appreciation for their performance, is strictly prohibited.

- Please do not offer employees any gift, loans or any other thing of value.
- Employees may not receive any fee or compensation for their services from any sources other than the City, so please don't offer.
- Please do not offer to buy meals for employees.
- Employees may accept coffee, tea, soft drinks, snacks, etc. when attending meetings in your office.
- Letters to supervisors for exceptional service by employees are always welcome.

Conflicts of Interest

Employees are prohibited from engaging in any outside activities that conflict with, or have the appearance of conflicting with, the duties assigned to them in the employment of the City.

- Please do not ask employees for any special favor or consideration that is not available to every other citizen.
- Please do not ask an employee to disclose any information that is not available to every other citizen through normal public information channels.
- Please do not offer to compensate the employee by offering to hire, or do business with any business entity of the employee or family member
- Do not ask employees to represent you or your company or make any recommendations on your behalf other than those that are a part of their official duties with the City.
- Please do not ask employees to endorse the products or services of your company.
- Please do not ask employees to hand out or post advertising materials.

Solicitation by City Employees

Employees may not solicit gifts, loans, or any other items of value from people doing City business that will be used by them personally.

- If you are asked to pay a fee for services that you believe is improper or illegal, please contact the City's ethic's officer at **972-329-8723**. (Payments should only be made to designated cashiers or clerks.)
- Employees are prohibited from taking retaliatory action against you for failing to comply with any request unless the request is within the scope of the employee's official duties for the City.

Use of City Equipment, Facilities and Resources

Use of City equipment, facilities and resources is authorized only for City purposes and for those activities permitted by City ordinance and policy.

- Please do not ask employees to use City equipment to run errands or perform tasks for your benefit.
- Employees may not perform tasks, nor conduct any business not related to their official duties while on City time.

Your Rights and Expectations

When dealing with employees of the City of Mesquite you have the right to honest, fair and impartial treatment. You may expect prompt, courteous and professional service from our employees who are expected to understand and practice good customer service skills. Employees are tasked to uphold the public trust through the ethical performance of their duties. We understand that the enforcement of regulatory guidelines and codes may sometimes be a cause for concern; however, you may rest assured that we are responsible to all of the citizens of Mesquite and our goal is to serve them to the best of our ability.

Should you have any concerns or questions concerning this information or the conduct of any of our employees please contact the City's ethics officer at 972-329-8723. All calls to the City's ethics officer are confidential and your name (or any other identifying information) will not be disclosed.

Cliff Keheley City Manager

BID SUBMITTAL PROPOSAL

To: The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
Purchasing Office – City Hall, 2nd Floor
City of Mesquite
757 N. Galloway Avenue
Mesquite, Texas, 75149

Pursuant to the Advertisement for Bid, Proposal, Contract, Bond(s), General Provisions, Special Provision(s), and Requirements and the Plans and Technical Specifications, the undersigned Bidder hereby proposes to do all the work and furnish all necessary superintendence, labor, machinery, equipment, tools and materials, and to complete all the work upon which he bids, as provided by the Specifications, and binds himself, on acceptance of the proposal, to execute a contract and bonds, according to the City of Mesquite forms, for performing and completing the said work within the required time, and furnish all guarantees, for the following prices, and the undersigned certifies that the bid prices contained in this proposal have been carefully checked and are submitted as correct and final, to wit:

2021 LARGE WATER VALVE AND RCCP REPLACEMENT PROJECT
CITY OF MESQUITE CONTRACT NO. 2023-017

BID FORM

- The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement with CITY in the form included in the Bidding Documents to perform all Work as specified or indicated in the Bidding Documents for the prices and within the times indicated in this Bid and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents.
- Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Advertisement for Bids and Instructions to Bidders, including without limitation those dealing with the disposition of Bid security. The Bid will remain subject to acceptance for one hundred and twenty days (120) after the Bid opening date, or for such longer period of time that Bidder may agree to in writing upon request of CITY.
- 3. In submitting this Bid, Bidder represents, as set forth in the Agreement, that:
 - A. Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding Documents and the other related data identified in the Bidding Documents.
 - B. Bidder has visited the Site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local and site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
 - C. Bidder is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state and local Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress and performance of the Work.
 - D. Bidder has carefully studied all reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions in or relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at or contiguous to the Site.
 - E. Bidder has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for having done so) all additional or supplementary examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies and data concerning conditions (surface, subsurface and Underground Facilities) at or contiguous to the Site which may affect cost, progress, or performance of the Work or which relate to any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Bidder, including applying the specific means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction expressly required by the Bidding Documents to be employed by Bidder, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto.
 - F. Bidder does not consider that any further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the determination of this Bid for performance of the Work at the prices bid and within the times and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents.
 - G. Bidder is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by CITY and others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents.
 - H. Bidder has correlated the information known to Bidder, information and observations obtained from visits to the Site, reports and drawings identified in the Bidding Documents, and all additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, and data with the Bidding Documents.
 - Bidder has given CITY written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Bidder has discovered in the Bidding Documents, and the written resolution thereof by CITY is acceptable to Bidder.

- J. The Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for the performance of the Work for which this Bid is submitted.
- 4. Bidder further represents that this Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed individual or entity and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement or rules of any group, association, organization or corporation; Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid; Bidder has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from bidding; and Bidder has not sought by collusion to obtain for itself any advantage over any other Bidder or over CITY.
- 5. Bidder will complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following prices:

2021 LARGE WATER VALVE AND RCCP REPLACEMENT PROJECT CITY OF MESQUITE CONTRACT NO. 2023-017

MESQUITE, TEXAS

ITEM NO	BID QTY	UNITS	ITEM DESCRIPTION	UNIT PRICE	AMOUNT
1	532	SY	REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE STREET PAVEMENT AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
2	39	SY	REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE SIDEWALK AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
3	125	SY	REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE DRIVEWAY AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
4	28	SF	REMOVE EXISTING STAMPED CONCRETE MEDIAN PAVEMENT AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
5	94	LF	REMOVE 39" SANITARY SEWER MAIN AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
6	17	LF	REMOVE 4'x2' RCP AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
7	41	LF	REMOVE 24" RCCP WATER MAIN AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
8	2	EA	FURNISH & INSTALL 8" x 8" TAPPING SLEEVE & VALVE AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
9	3	EA	FURNISH & INSTALL 24" RW GATE VALVE FL x FL AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
10	1	EA	FURNISH & INSTALL 24" RW GATE VALVE MJ x MJ AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
11	9	EA	REPAIR OF 24" RCCP WATER MAIN AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
12	4	EA	INVESTIGATION AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
13	1	EA	REHAB EX 4' DIA MH W/ ARMOROCK POLYMER INSERTS AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
14	1	EA	REHAB EX 5' DIA MH W/ ARMOROCK POLYMER INSERTS AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$

ITEM NO	BID QTY	UNITS	ITEM DESCRIPTION	UNIT PRICE	AMOUNT
15	84	SY	CONSTRUCT 4" CONCRETE SIDEWALK AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
16	125	SY	CONSTRUCT 8" CONCRETE DRIVEWAY AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
17	111	LF	CONSTRUCT 36" SANITARY SEWER AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
18	1	EA	CONSTRUCT 6' DIA ARMOROCK POLYMER MH AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
19	2	EA	CONCRETE PRESSURE PIPE TYPE SURCHARGE AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
20	41	LF	CONSTRUCT 24" DUCTILE IRON WATER MAIN AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
21	91	LF	8" PVC WATER LINE IN 14" STEEL CASING PIPE (BY OTHER THAN OPEN CUT) AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
22	47	LF	8" PVC WATER LINE (OPEN CUT) AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
23	4	EA	JOINT RESTRAINT (DUCTILE/CAST IRON PIPE) AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
24	4	EA	JOINT RESTRAINT (RCCP) AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
25	0.5	TONS	EXTRA DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS (NOT SHOWN ON PLANS) AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
26	774	LF	TEMPORARY 2" HDPE WATER MAIN AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
27	14	EA	TEMPORARY 2" WATER SERVICE TO EXISTING METER AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
28	28	SF	CONSTRUCT STAMPED CONCRETE MEDIAN PAVEMENT AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
29	337	SY	CONSTRUCT 6" CONCRETE STREET PAVEMENT AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$

ITEM NO	BID QTY	UNITS	ITEM DESCRIPTION	UNIT PRICE	AMOUNT
30	196	SY	CONSTRUCT 8" CONCRETE STREET PAVEMENT (HIGH EARLY) AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
31	23	CY	FLOWABLE BACKFILL AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
32	1	LS	TRENCH SAFETY DESIGN AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
33	508	LF	IMPLEMENTATION OF TRENCH SAFETY PLAN AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
34	148	SY	SODDING OF DISTURBED AREAS AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
35	1	LS	EROSION CONTROL PLAN & IMPLEMENTATION AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
36	1	LS	BARRICADING & TRAFFIC CONTROL AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
37	1	AL	IRRIGATION SYSTEM REPAIR (ALLOWANCE) AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$3,000.00	\$3,000.00
38	1	LS	BYPASS PLAN & IMPLEMENTATION AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$
39	1	LS	MOBILIZATION (MAXIMUM OF 5% OF TOTAL BID) AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, COMPLETE AND IN PLACE	\$	\$

TOTAL BASE BID (Items 1 to 39)	\$
Materials incorporated into the Project:	\$
2. All other charges:	\$

NOTE: Materials and all other charges incorporated into the **2021 LARGE WATER VALVE AND RCCP REPLACEMENT PROJECT, CITY OF MESQUITE CONTRACT NO. 2023-017** must equal base bid amount.

Pre-bid Inspection

The undersigned declares that he has personally inspected the site where the work is to be performed and that he has informed himself of all:

- (1) surface and subsurface conditions, constraints, and facilities which may in any way affect the work, in terms of cost, time, and/or constructability;
- (2) quantities, types, and nature(s) of materials to be incorporated into the work;
- (3) types and specialties of equipment, tools, labor, and superintendence required to perform the work;
- (4) other matters which in any way will affect the work and/or the performance of the work;
- (5) project plans, specifications and other project documents.

Commencement and Execution

The undersigned bidder agrees to commence the work on or before the date so stated in the written notice to proceed and to diligently perform all of the work and to substantially complete the work **within 150 calendar days**. Time shall commence on the first day of move-in, but in no case later than the date so stated in the written notice to proceed.

The Time of Construction as given above shall include all work related to this project. Included in the above Time and Construction shall be the necessary utility work involved with the franchise utility companies (i.e. Natural Gas, Telecommunications, Cable Television, Electrical Power, etc.).

The right is reserved by the City as is advantageous to the City, to reject any and all bids, award a contract based upon submitted bids, or to re-bid the contract and to waive any and all formalities. Bidder understands and agrees that the unit prices provided above shall be used for all additions and deletions from the accepted option.

Bidder submits as guarantee that he will execute and issue the required contracts, bonds, insurance, and other required agreements and documents, as set forth under the contract, and general and special provisions of agreement, cashier's check or bid bond payable in full without conditions and upon demand to the City of Mesquite in the amount of:

(2)	\$).
	<u> </u>

representing 5% of the Bidder's total base bid price.

Bidder understands and agrees that, should he fail to execute and issue the contract, bonds, insurance, other agreements, and other documents as set forth under the general and special provisions of agreement for that certain contract known as the **2021 LARGE WATER VALVE AND RCCP REPLACEMENT PROJECT, CITY OF MESQUITE CONTRACT NO. 2023-017** the City will cash or demand payment under the bid bond for payment of agreed upon liquidated damages. Bidder understands and agrees that, for bidding purpose only, liquidated damages shall be 5% of the Bidder's bid proposal, and that upon execution of the Contract, liquidated damages shall be as stated in the General Provisions.

Addenda

Contractor acknowledges receipt and incorporation into the bid of addendums as listed below:

Addendum No. 1 – Acknowledgement of Receipt:	(initial)
Addendum No. 2 – Acknowledgement of Receipt:	(initial)
Addendum No. 3 – Acknowledgement of Receipt:	(initial)
Addendum No. 4 – Acknowledgement of Receipt:	(initial)

Proposal Approval:			
Company Name	_		
Signature:	Printed Name:		
Title:	Company Addr	ess	
Telephone	City	State	Zip Code
(If Bidder is a Corporation Seal Propo	sal with Corporate Se	eal)	
SEAL			

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) INFORMATION

<u>Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs)</u> are encouraged to participate in City of Mesquite's bid. The Purchasing Office will provide additional clarification on specifications, assistance with Bid Proposal Forms and further explanation of bidding procedures to those DBEs who request it.

Representatives from DBE companies should identify themselves as such and submit a copy of the Certification.

The City of Mesquite recognizes the certifications of both the State of Texas General Services Commission HUB Program and the North Central Texas Regional Certification Agency. All companies seeking information concerning DBE certification are urged to contact

State of Texas HUB Program General Services Commission PO Box 13047 Austin, TX 78711-3047 512-463-5872

OR

North Central Texas **Regional Certification Agency** 624 Six Flags Drive, Suite 216 Arlington, TX 76011 817-640-0606

If your company is already certified, attach a copy of your certification to this form and return with your bid.

FIRM NAME SUBMITTING THE BID		
REPRESENTATIVE	TITLE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE	
ADDRESS	CITY, STATE, ZIP	
TELEPHONE NUMBER	FACSIMILE NUMBER	
Indicate all that apply:		
□ Minority-Owned Business Enterprise		
□ Women-Owned Business Enterprise		
□ Disadvantaged Bus	siness Enterprise	

PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTS WITH COMPANIES BOYCOTTING ISRAEL

House Bill 89, effective September 1, 2017, amended the Texas Government Code to add Chapter 2270, Prohibition on Contracts with Companies Boycotting Israel. Effective September 1, 2017, a state agency and a political subdivision (which includes a city) may not enter a contract with a company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the company that: (i) it does not Boycott Israel; and (ii) will not Boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

"Boycott Israel" is defined to mean refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business purposes. "Company" is defined to mean a forprofit organization, association, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, limited liability partnership, or limited liability company, including a wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company, or affiliate of those entities or business associations that exists to make a profit. The term "Company" does not include sole proprietorship.

l,	, the
(Name of Certifying Official)	(Title or Position of Certifying Official)
of _	,
(Name of	Company)
does hereby verify on behalf of said company to solution larger and will not Boycott Israel during the term of	the City of Mesquite that said company does not Boycott of this contract.
Signature of Certifying Official	
Title	
Date of Certification	

NON-COLLUSION STATEMENT

The undersigned affirms that they are duly authorized to execute this contract, that this company, corporation, firm, partnership or individual has not prepared this bid in collusion with any other bidder and that the contents of this bid as to prices, terms or conditions of said bid have not been communicated by the undersigned nor by any employee or agent to any other person engaged in this type of business prior to the official opening of this bid.

Name of Company
Address
Phone
Email
Fax
Bidder (Signature)
Bidder (Print Name)
Position with Company
Signature of Company Official Authorizing This Bid
Company Official (Printed Name)
Official Position
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME, this day of, 2022.
(Notary Public in and for the State of Texas)
(Printed Name of Notary)
My commission expires

CONTRACTING WITH THE CITY OF MESQUITE

Updated: January 8, 2016

Conflict of Interest Questionnaire And Disclosure of Interested Parties (Form 1295)

YOU WILL BE REQUIRED TO COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING:

Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code is an ethics law that was initially enacted by the Texas Legislature with HB 914 in 2005 that requires disclosure of employment and business relationships local government officers may have with contractors, consultants and vendors who conduct business with local government entities. The law applies to any written contract for the sale or purchase of real property, goods or services. Further information regarding Texas Conflict of Interest laws and the *Conflict of Interest Questionnaire* (Form CIQ) can be found at the Texas Ethics Commission web site at the following web address:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/filinginfo/conflict_forms.htm

PLEASE COMPLETE THE ATTACHED FORM CIQ AND SUBMIT WITH YOUR RESPONSE.

Section 2252.908 of the Texas Government Code was enacted in 2015, by the Texas Legislature pursuant to HB 1295, which provides that a governmental entity may not enter into certain contracts with a business entity on or after January 1, 2016, unless the business entity submits a disclosure of interested parties (Form 1295) to the governmental entity at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity. Further information regarding the disclosure of interested parties law and Form 1295 can be found at the Texas Ethics Commission web site at the following web address:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/filinginfo/1295/

PLEASE DO NOT COMPLETE FORM 1295 UNTIL YOU HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED OF CONTRACT AWARD AND REQUESTED TO ELECTRONICALLY FILE FORM 1295 WITH THE TEXAS ETHICS COMMISSION.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

FORM CIQ

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity	
This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.	OFFICE USE ONLY
This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).	Date Received
By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.	
A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.	
Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.	
2	
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law re completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th busines you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)	s day after the date on which
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.	
Name of Officer	
4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government offi	age are family mamber of the
officer, as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A). Also describe any family relationship with Complete subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described. Attack CIQ as necessary.	
A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or li other than investment income, from the vendor?	kely to receive taxable income,
Yes No	
B. Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment of the local government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable i local governmental entity?	
Yes No	
Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 m other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an o ownership interest of one percent or more.	
Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a)(b) (c) (d) (d) (d) (d) (d) (d) (d) (d) (d) (d	
7	
Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity)ate

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission

www.ethics.state.tx.us

Revised 11/30/2015

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A complete copy of Chapter 176 of the Local Government Code may be found at http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections cited on this form.

<u>Local Government Code § 176.001(1-a)</u>: "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties based on commercial activity of one of the parties. The term does not include a connection based on:

- (A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or an agency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
- (B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
- (C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency and that is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):

- (a) A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:
 - (2) the vendor:
 - (A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or a family member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable income, other than investment income, that exceeds \$2,500 during the 12-month period preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that
 - (i) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; or
 - (ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the vendor:
 - (B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts that have an aggregate value of more than \$100 in the 12-month period preceding the date the officer becomes aware that:
 - (i) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; or
 - (ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a-1)

- (a) A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship with a local governmental entity and:
 - (1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
 - (2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
 - (3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity.
- (a-1) The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:
 - (1) the date that the vendor:
 - (A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local governmental entity; or
 - (B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for proposals or bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the local governmental entity; or
 - (2) the date the vendor becomes aware:
 - (A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
 - (B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or
 - (C) of a family relationship with a local government officer.

BID BOND

			Bond No.:	
				(by Surety)
STATE OF TEXAS	§ § KNOW ALL MI	EN BY THESE PRE	CENTS.	
COUNTY OF DALLAS	§ KNOW ALL IVI	LN DI IIILGE FRE	JENIO.	
THAT			_, of the City of _	,
	_County, State of	Texas (hereinaft	ter referred to	as "Principal"), and
	, aเ	ithorized under the l	aws of the State of	of Texas to act as Surety
on bonds for principals	(hereinafter referred	to as "Surety") are	e held and firmly	bound unto the City of
Mesquite (hereinafter re	ferred to as "City") in	the penal sum of \$_		(an
amount equal to 5% of th	he approximate total	amount of the bid or	if the bid is based	d upon alternates and/or
addenda, at least 5% of	the greatest amount	bid by the bidder or	r Principal herein	as evidenced in the Bid
Proposal) for the paym	nent whereof, the sa	aid Principal and S	urety bind thems	selves, and their heirs,
administrators, executor	s, successors and as	ssigns, jointly and se	everally, by these	presents;
		- · · · · · ·		

WHEREAS the Principal has submitted on or about this date, a bid proposal offering to perform the following: 2021 LARGE WATER VALVE AND RCCP REPLACEMENT PROJECT, CITY OF MESQUITE CONTRACT NO. 2023-017 in accordance with the specifications and terms and conditions related thereto, to which reference is hereby made;

NOW, THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that if the said Principal's offer as stated in the bid proposal is accepted by the City, and the said Principal executes and returns to the City the number of original counterparts of the contract required by the City, on the forms provided by the City, for the materials, equipment and/or services described herein and also executes and returns the same number of Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bonds, if required, on the forms provided by the City, within the time provided in the specifications, then this obligation is null and void, otherwise, it is to remain in full force and effect;

day of, 2022	Surety have signed and sealed this instrument on this 2.
PRINCIPAL:	SURETY:
Signature	Signature
Typed or Printed Name	Typed or Printed Name
Title:	Title:
Company:	Company:
Address:	Address:
SURETY'S DALLAS COUNTY REGISTERED AG	GENT FOR SERVICE (REQUIRED):
Type or Printed Name	
Street Address (P.O. Box is not acceptable)	
City, State, and Zip Code	
Dallas County Telephone No.	

BIDDER'S QUALIFICATION INFORMATION (APPARENT LOW BIDDER)

The apparent low bidder shall complete and deliver to the Engineering Division and City's

1.

	sulting Engineer within 48-hours after the bid opening, the following Bidder's lification Information documents:
	Qualification Statement of Bidder. If additional space is needed, please use attachments.
	Reference Statement of Bidder's Surety.
	Bidder's Release of Qualification Information.
	Bidder's List of Proposed Sub-contractors.
	Financial Statement Reviewed or Audited by an Independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), prepared in the last 12-months for the bidder's company.
	Non-Exclusion Affidavit – System for Award Management (SAM).
	Certificate of Interested Parties (Form 1295)
	IRS W9 Form – a pdf version of this form can be downloaded from the IRS website.
	Secretary of State Filing Certificate.

All nine (9) documents shall be delivered to the Engineering Division and City's Consulting Engineer as a single, complete package. No one form or statement will be accepted individually.

- 2. If the 48-hours deadline falls on a weekend or holiday, Bidder shall deliver the eight (8) documents to the Engineering Division and City's Consulting Engineer the next workday after the 48-hours.
- 3. If a project is a "joint venture", all partners in the joint venture shall complete the pre-qualification forms.
- 4. The low bidder shall be required to submit evidence that they have a practical knowledge and experience of the particular work bid upon and that they have the financial resources to complete the proposed work.
- 5. In determining the contractor's qualifications, the following factors will be considered: Work previously completed by the contractor; adequate plant and equipment to do the work properly and expeditiously; financial resources to meet all obligations incidental to the work; technical expertise and safety record.

QUALIFICATION STATEMENT OF BIDDER

Engineering Division City of Mesquite 1515 N. Galloway Avenue Mesquite, Texas 75149

Bidder:	
Circle One: Sole Proprietor Partnership	Corporation Joint Venture
Name:	Partner:
Address:	Address:
City:	City:
Phone:	Phone:
Principal Place of Business:	Principal Place of Business:
County & State	County & State
If the Bidder is a corporation, fill out the following:	
State and County of Incorporation:	
Location of Principal Office:	
Contact Person(s) at Office:	Phone:
List Officers of the Corporation and person(s) autl Corporation:	horized to execute Contracts on Behalf of the
Name:	Title:
How many years has your organization been in be	usiness as a General Contractor?

Greatest number of contracts in excess of \$100,0 company's history:	
Greatest number of contracts in excess of \$500,0 company's history:	
Total approximate value of incomplete work outsta	anding: \$
List major projects of the type of work qualifying for years, give the following information for each project.	•
Project:	
Owner/Engineer:	
Contact Person:	Phone:
Date of Completion:	Contract Price:
Project:	
Owner/Engineer:	
Contact Person:	Phone:
Date of Completion:	Contract Price:
Project:	
Owner/Engineer:	
Contact Person:	Phone:
Date of Completion:	Contract Price:
Project:	
Owner/Engineer:	
Contact Person:	Phone:
Date of Completion:	Contract Price:

Project:	
Owner/Engineer:	
Contact Person:	Phone:
Date of Completion:	Contract Price:
Project:	
Owner/Engineer:	
Contact Person:	Phone:
Date of Completion:	Contract Price:
Project:	
Owner/Engineer:	
Contact Person:	Phone:
Date of Completion:	Contract Price:
Project:	
Owner/Engineer:	
Contact Person:	Phone:
Date of Completion:	Contract Price:
Project:	
Owner/Engineer:	
Contact Person:	Phone:
Date of Completion:	Contract Price:

(If Necessary - List Additional Projects by Using Attachments)

List incomplete projects, including the	following information for each incomplete	project listed:
Project:		
Contact Person:	Phone:	
Value of Incomplete Work:		
Project:		
Owner/Engineer:		
Contact Person:	Phone:	
Value of Incomplete Work:		
Project:		
Owner/Engineer:		
Contact Person:	Phone:	
Value of Incomplete Work:		
Project:		
Owner/Engineer:		
Contact Person:	Phone:	
Value of Incomplete Work:		
Project:		
Owner/Engineer:		
Contact Person:	Phone:	
Value of Incomplete Work:		

(If Necessary - List Additional Projects by Using Attachments)

experience of said persons. (Please use attachments). Have you or any present partner(s) or officer(s) failed to complete a contract? If so, name of owner and/or surety: Contact Person: Phone: List any unsatisfied demands upon you as to your accounts payable, please use attachments. **Bank Reference:** City: _____ Bank: Address: _____ Phone: Contact Officer: _____ Other Credit References: Name: Name: Address: _____ Address: ____ City: City: Phone: Phone: **Municipal Reference:** Title: _____ Contact Person: Phone: _____ Address:

If company is under new management, please list names of staff and qualification and/or

REFERENCE STATEMENT OF BIDDER'S SURETY

Bidder	:			
1.	For this Bidder,	how many contracts	that ar	re now complete has this surety furnished
		how many incomple		tracts has this surety furnished contract
				his Bidder? \$
				is Bidder indicate solvency and a financial
			-	indicate that the contractor pays accounts
	If not, give deta	ils:		
				sufficient experience and financial resources
7.	Provided this bi acquire further i	dder does not assum information that in yo	ne other our opini	commitments or that this surety does not ion will materially affect the bidder's capacity bonds as specified:
<u>REMA</u>	RKS:			
Surety	:			
Signed				
Title:				
Addres	SS:			(Local office in Dallas County)
	City	State	Zip	
Phone	:			

BIDDER'S RELEASE OF QUALIFICATION INFORMATION

Pursuant to advertisement for bids and in conformance with Instructions to Bidders for types of work outlined in Bidder's Statement of Qualifications, the undersigned is submitting information as required with the understanding that the purpose is for the City's confidential use, only to assist in determining the qualifications of Bidder's organization to perform the type and magnitude of work designated, and further, Bidder guarantees the truth and accuracy of all statements made, and will accept the City's determination of qualifications without prejudice. The surety herein named, any other bonding company(s), bank(s), subcontractor(s), supplier(s), or any other person(s), firm(s) or corporation(s) with whom Bidder has done business, or who have extended any credit to Bidder is (are) hereby authorized to furnish the City with any information the City may request concerning performance on previous work and Bidder's credit standing with any of them; and Bidder hereby releases any and all such parties from any legal responsibility whatsoever on account of having furnished such information to the City:

Signed:	Title:	
Printed Name:		
Bidder:		
LOCATION OF LOCAL UNDERWRITING OF DALLAS COUNTY)		
Name:	Phone:	
Printed Name:	Email:	
Address:	City:	State:

BIDDER'S LIST OF PROPOSED SUB-CONTRACTORS

1. Sub-Contractor / Material Supplier: Company Name: _____ Type of Work to Be Performed: Contact Person: Email: Phone: 2. Sub-Contractor / Material Supplier: Company Name: _____ Type of Work to Be Performed: Contact Person: Title: Email: Phone: 3. Sub-Contractor / Material Supplier: Company Name: _____ Type of Work to Be Performed: Contact Person: Title: Email: _____ Phone: _____ 4. Sub-Contractor / Material Supplier: Company Name: _____ Type of Work to Be Performed: _____ Contact Person: Title: _____ Phone: 5. Sub-Contractor / Material Supplier: Company Name: _____ Type of Work to Be Performed: Contact Person: Title: _____ Email: Phone:

Title:Phone:
Title:Phone:
Phone:
Title:
Phone:
Title:
Phone:
Title:
Phone:
Title:
Phone:

NON-EXCLUSION AFFIDAVIT - SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT (SAM)

Federal, state, and local government agencies, not-profits, and other organizations that use federal money to fund all or part of any program or project are required to follow specific requirements regarding the use of such federal funds. One of these requirements is that no contract, subcontract, grant, financial assistance, or other forms of assistance provided using federal funds may be awarded to individuals or entities that have been suspended, debarred, or otherwise excluded from participation in federally funded programs.

The U.S. federal government maintains a Web site known as the "System for Award Management" (SAM) at www.sam.gov. One of the purposes of the SAM Web site is to provide a comprehensive list of all individuals, firms, and other entities that have been suspended, debarred, or otherwise excluded from participation in federally funded contracts, subcontracts, grants, etc. SAM provides a simple means of helping government, non-profit agencies, and other organizations ensure that they do not award federally-funded grants, contracts, subcontracts, or other financial or non-financial benefits to any individual, firm, or other entity that has been excluded by any agency from participation in such federally funded activities.

l,	(Contractor Representative), hereby certify that						
	her I nor (Name of the company						
or organization I represent) nor any subcontractors that I or said company may employ to work on any ederally funded activity have been suspended, debarred, or otherwise excluded by any federal agency rom participation in any federally funded activity. I further acknowledge my understanding that, before entering into a contract with me or with the company or organization I represent, City of Mesquite staff will perform a search on www.sam.gov to verify whether I, the organization I represent, or any subcontractors I may employ to work on any federally funded activity, have been excluded from participation in any federally funded activity.							
Signature of Contractor Representative	_	Date					
<u>Notary</u>							
Sworn to and subscribed before me this	day of		_, 2022.				
Notary Public in and for County		(Insert State N	ame)				

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES				FORM 1295					
Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties. Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.					OFFICE USE ONLY				
1	Name of business entity filing form, a entity's place of business.								
Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is being filed.									
3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a description of the goods or services to be provided under the contract.									
4	Name of Interested Party	City, State, Country	Nature of Interest (check applicable)						
		(place of business)	Cor	ntrolling	Intermediary				
5	Check only if there is NO Interested F	Party.							
6	AFFIDAVIT I swear, or affirm, under penalty of perjury, that the above disclosure is true and correct.								
	Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity								
AFFIX NOTARY STAMP / SEAL ABOVE									
	Sworn to and subscribed before me, by the said				, this the day				
	, 0.000								
	Signature of officer administering oath	Title of officer administering oath							
ADD ADDITIONAL PAGES AS NECESSARY									

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission

www.ethics.state.tx.us

Adopted 10/5/2015

CONTRACT AND BOND FORMS

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

The following blank spaces in the contract and bonds **are not to be filled in** by the Bidder at the time of submitting his proposal.

The contract and bond forms are submitted at this time to familiarize the Bidder with the form of contract and bonds that the successful Bidder will be required to execute.

CONTRACT CHECKLIST

City contracts must be checked to ensure they are ready for review and signature.

CHECK	CONTRACT ITEM:
	Are all blanks filled in, except for the signatures of the Mayor (or City Manager), City
	Secretary and City Attorney?
	The date the Contract is "made and entered into" should be the meeting date the bid was
	awarded by City Council (for contracts over \$50,000), or the date of City Manager approval
	(for contracts under \$50,000). Is the date of the contract correct?
	units x unit price = amount
	individual amounts = total base bid
	total bid = amount awarded by Council
	Company name is consistent throughout all contractual documents
	If the contractor is a corporation, the President or Vice-President of the corporation should
	sign the Contract. The Secretary of the corporation must then attest the signature and seal
	the Contract unless the contract form used provides for an acknowledgment by a notary.
	Contract total matches the awarded amount by Council
	Signed by authorized person for the company
	Printed name matches signed name
	The name of the person signing the Contract on behalf of the contractor and the City must
	be typed on the appropriate lines as well as their respective titles.
	If the Contract is revised by the striking-out or inserting of new language, both parties
	should initial the change.
	PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS
	Performance Bond = 100% of Contract Amount (City Form)
	Includes a 1-year warranty period after City Acceptance for materials and workmanship.
	Check that the company name is identical to name listed in contract
	Check for same contract date (reference in top paragraphs)
	The name of the surety on the bond must appear the same on each page of the bond.
	Check for issuance date (date of contract or after)
	Check for same signature & title throughout bond.
	Check for typed name and title of the person signing bond and for legible signature. Check for agent in Dallas County.
	The items listed as work to be done must exactly match the improvements listed on the
	Contract.
	The surety's seal (which is the seal of the bond company) must appear under the surety's
	signature (not a notary's seal). All corporate sureties have seals. The seal may be a
	legible facsimile seal, unless the instrument states otherwise.
	Payment Bond = 100% of contract amount (City form)
	Check that the company name is identical to name listed in contract
	Check for same contract date (reference in top paragraphs)
	The name of the surety on the bond must appear the same on each page of the bond.
	Check for issuance date (date of contract or after)
	Check for same signature & title throughout bond
	Check for typed name and title of the person signing bond and for legible signature.
	Check for agent in Dallas County
	The items listed as work to be done must exactly match the improvements listed on the
	Contract.

CHECK	CONTRACT ITEM:
	The surety's seal (which is the seal of the bond company) must appear under the surety's
	signature (not a notary's seal). All corporate sureties have seals. The seal may be a
	legible facsimile seal, unless the instrument states otherwise.
	INSURANCE-GENERAL
	Certificate of Insurance (ACORD form)
	Certificate of Insurance Supplemental Form
	Check that the company name is identical to name listed in contract
	Check the expiration date on policy to ensure it is current.
	Check for City of Mesquite listed as additional insured under General and Auto Liability Policies.
	Check for a waiver of subrogation in favor of the City of Mesquite under General and
	workers Compensation/Employers Liability.
	Workers Compensation \$100,000 per occurrence
	INSURANCE-CONSTRUCTION
	Commercial Liability \$500,000 per person/\$1,000,000 per occurrence
	Contractual Liability property damage \$500,000 per occurrence with general aggregate of \$1,000,000
	Automobile combined single limit \$500,000
	OTHER
	Filled out Certificate of Interested Parties - Form 1295
	Fill out and Submit Conflict of Interest Questionnaire (CIQ)
	IRS W9 Form Submitted for Setting Up Vendor Account and Processing Payment
Checked	by:
Date:	

SUPPLEMENT TO ACORD 25

Reset Form

	(CA)	INSURA CERTIFI ADMINI	NCE CATE STRATORS	Suppleme	nt to ACORI)® 25 (Con	struction)	DATE:	
Insure	Insured: Certificate Holder(s):								
Comn	nercia	l Gen	eral Liability:		112				
Yes	No								
			Provide, in the spa	ace below, the app	propriate form num	ber(s) of the Ado	litional Insured end	dorsement(s):	
		C-1		going Operations					
		CI	Comp	oleted Operations					
				he endorsement(s					
					r an endorsement		•		
		C-2			ontract or agreem				
					ch similar wording o				
					r an endorsement	1996		(A) (A)	120
		C-3			iting in a contract				
		10770			e additional insure			ding? If so, provid	de a copy of such
					or referencing the a				
		C-4a	CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF THE PARTY.		ract" contain the w				ole negligence"? If
					rly highlighting or r				
		C-4b			ision contain a ref	erence to "resid	dential construction	on"? If YES, atta	ch a copy clearly
				ferencing the appli					
		C-5	Control of the contro		d to work performe	ed within certair	described operat	ions and/or class	ification codes? If
			ALASTAS A COLORDO DE SENSO DE LOS CONTROS DE CARROLIDADO	perations and/or cl					
				n exclusion in the '					
		STATE OF THE PARTY			n been added by en	dorsement?			
					ment been added?				
	Are th	_	owing specifically						
		C-7	Independent Cont	tractors?					
		C-8							
			Collapse? (C)?						
			Underground? (U						
				(other than Terro	rism)?				
		20	Third Party Over A				f vizzonia :		
					? If YES, attach a co	ppγ of the exclusi	on.		
117				S, attach a copy of	the exclusion.				
		mper	nsation:						
Yes	No		Dage Dage 2 mage	ida anusuman fau #	All C+a+as#/a+bou+	h a m . m a m a li a+i	a statos) ou list a	ancific states 7 If	una sifia atataa aua
		C-1			'All States" (other t	nan monopolisu	c states) or list sp	pecific statesr ii :	specific states are
-		C 2	listed, provide a li		ent attached to the	nolina)			
Evens	c/Llm	C-2	Liabilities:	inproyer endorsem	ient attached to the	· policy r			
100112001001000000	Commen			aveass over which	of the following pr	imary nolicies?			
	THE	C-1		eral Liability Insura		intary policies:			-
-		C-2			nec.				
-		C-3	Employers Liabilit						
-		C4 Pollution Liability Insurance (If provided by separate policy)							
Yes	No	•	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,					
			Does the policy in	nclude language ac	ldressing reduced o	r exhausted prin	nary limits over w	nich the policy is	excess, frequently
		C-5			ovide a copy of suc				
Notice	e of C	ancell					J 75 U. 10		BadBa
				tified on the attac	hed ACORD® 25 pro	ovide at least a 3	0 day notice to th	e certificate hold	er for cancellation
		C-1		payment of premiu			57		
It is an	reed ti	nat the			shown on these page	s are in effect and	Signature:		
(1)			100		d ACORD® certificate				
100					nor alters the coverag				
21 VISTAL SECTION 1977	policy summarized hereon and is qualified by reference to the policy itself. This form does not								
PO0000 00 100000					ed representatives or				
certific						100 at 10			
1096									

A25 01C (03-13)

CONTRACT

STATE OF TEXAS COUNTY OF DALLAS	999	KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS	3 :
THIS CONTRACT is made	de and	entered into on, 20	by

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into on ________, 20_____ by and between the CITY OF MESQUITE, TEXAS, a municipal corporation, of the County of Dallas and State of Texas, acting through Cliff Keheley, City Manager, hereinafter termed the CITY, and ENTITY NAME, a What Type of Legal Entity, with offices located at Full Street Address, City, State Zip Code, hereinafter termed the CONTRACTOR.

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the CITY and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:

I. DESCRIPTION OF WORK

The CONTRACTOR shall perform all of the work as specified in the contract documents such work generally described as:

2021 LARGE WATER VALVE AND RCCP REPLACEMENT PROJECT, CITY OF MESQUITE CONTRACT NO. 2023-017

Plans and Specifications prepared by:

BINKLEY & BARFIELD, INC. - CONSULTING ENGINEERS

All work shall be performed at the CONTRACTOR'S own proper cost and expense to furnish all the materials, supplies, machinery, equipment, tools, superintendence, labor, insurance, bonds and other accessories and services necessary to complete the work, in accordance with the Contract documents.

II. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract documents shall consist of the following:

- 1. this Contract:
- 2. all addenda issued prior to award of Contract;
- 3. the bid specifications including the advertisement for bid, instruction to bidders, bidder's bid form, plans, and drawings (if any);
- 4. the City of Mesquite General Design Standards:
- 5. the Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (North Central Texas Fifth Edition November 2017), Division 100, as amended and supplemented by the City of Mesquite by Addendum (hereinafter referred to as the "General Provisions");
- 6. a Performance Bond in the sum of ONE HUNDRED PERCENT (100%) of the total Contract price, which Bond shall be in a form acceptable to the City, shall guarantee the work in accordance with the plans and specifications for a period of one (1) year after acceptance by the City, and shall provide for repair or replacement of all defects due to faulty material

- and/or workmanship that appear within a period of one (1) years from the date of acceptance by the City;
- 7. A Payment Bond in the sum of ONE HUNDRED PERCENT (100%) of the total Contract price; and
- 8. the Contractor's bid/proposal and any other documents identified as pertaining to this Contract, all of which have been identified by the CITY and the CONTRACTOR.

These Contract documents constitute the entire agreement between the CITY and CONTRACTOR, and all are fully incorporated herein. The Contract documents are complementary and what is called for by one shall be as binding as if called for by all. In the event of an inconsistency in any of the provisions of the Contract documents, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence to the Contract documents in the order in which they are listed above. The Contract may be altered, amended or modified only as provided in the general or special provisions. These Contract Documents supersede all oral or written previous contemporaneous agreements between the parties relating to matters in this Contract.

III. TIME OF COMMENCEMENT, COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

The work to be performed under this Contract shall be commenced by the CONTRACTOR upon final execution of this Contract and notice from the CITY to proceed. All work to be performed under this Contract shall be substantially completed within 150 calendar days of the date of commencement of the work, subject to extensions of time provided in accordance with the Contract documents. Time is of the essence in this Contract and it is understood by the CONTRACTOR and CITY that actual damages caused by the failure of the CONTRACTOR to complete the work within the stated time are impractical or extremely difficult to fix or ascertain, and that per diem deduction from the Contract price shall be retained by the CITY as payment by the CONTRACTOR of liquidated damages, and not as penalty for such failure. Such liquidated damages to be assessed and retained are set forth in the General Provisions.

IV. CONTRACT PRICE

The CITY shall pay the CONTRACTOR for the performance of the work, subject to additions and deductions by change order or as otherwise provided in the provisions of this Contract, in current funds the Contract sum, which has been bid as a separated contract in compliance with the Texas Tax Code, as follows:

Total sum: INSERT CONTRACT AMOUNT IN WORDS (\$INSERT IN NUMBERS)

V. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

This Contract shall be administered on behalf of the CITY by <u>Public Works – Engineering Division</u> (referred to herein as "City Representative") and the CONTRACTOR shall fully comply with any and all instructions from said City Representative. With execution and delivery of the Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall furnish and file with the CITY in the amounts herein required, performance and payment bonds in accordance with the provisions of V.T.C.A. Government Code, Chapter 2253 if this is a public work contract in excess of fifty thousand dollars (\$50.000.00).

VI. LABOR CLASSIFICATION AND MINIMUM WAGE SCALE

The CONTRACTOR is required to follow all provisions of Chapter 2258 of the Texas Government Code in the hiring and payment of all skilled and unskilled labor used on this contract. The CONTRACTOR must pay the prevailing wage rates as shown on the attached Wage Decision.

VII. DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS

The CONTRACTOR shall at all times observe and comply with all Federal, State and local laws, ordinances and regulations including all amendments and revisions thereto, which in any manner affect the CONTRACTOR or the services and/or items to be provided, specifically and not limited to any ethics laws. In particular, the CONTRACTOR is put on notice that the CITY will require the CONTRACTOR to comply with Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code by completing the attached Conflict of Interest questionnaire (FORM CIQ) and returning the completed FORM CIQ to the CITY. Additionally, CONTRACTOR must comply with Section 2252.908 of the Texas Government Code, which was enacted in 2015 by the Texas Legislature pursuant to HB 1295, providing that a governmental entity may not enter into certain contracts with a business entity on or after January 1, 2016, unless the business entity submits a disclosure of interested parties (FORM 1295) to the governmental entity at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity. Further information regarding the disclosure of interested parties law and instructions on filing FORM 1295 can be found at the Texas Ethics Commission web site at the following web address:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/filinginfo/1295/

VIII. INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide and to maintain the types and amounts of insurance set forth in the General Provisions and to include the CITY as an additional insured in all policies providing coverage for the term of this Contract.

IX. CHOICE OF LAW, VENUE AND CONTRACT INTEPRETATION

The obligations of the Parties to this Contract shall be performable in Dallas County, Texas, and if legal action is necessary in connection with or to enforce rights under this Contract, exclusive venue shall lie in Dallas County, Texas

This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and court decisions of the State of Texas, without regard to conflict of law or law principles of Texas or any other State. Although this Contract is drafted by the CITY, should any part be in dispute, the parties agree this Contract shall not be construed more favorably for either Party.

X. SEVERABILITY

If any part of this Contract shall be stricken for any reason whatsoever or found to be invalid or unenforceable, that part will be severed and the remainder of this Contract will continue in full force and effect.

XI. SURVIVAL

Any liabilities or obligations of a Party for acts or omissions prior to the cancellation or termination of this Contract, and any other provisions of this Contract which, by their terms, are contemplated to survive (or to be performed after) termination of this Contract, shall survive cancellation or termination thereof.

XII. MISCELLANEOUS

Pursuant to Section 2271.002, Texas Government Code, CONTRACTOR hereby (i) represents that it does not boycott Israel, and (ii) subject to or as otherwise required by applicable federal law, including without limitation 50 U.S.C. Section 4607, agrees it will not boycott Israel during the term of the Agreement. As used in the immediately preceding sentence, "boycott Israel" shall have the meaning given such term in Section 2271.001, Texas Government Code.

CONTRACTOR further represents that (i) it does not engage in business with Iran, Sudan or any foreign terrorist organization and (ii) it is not listed by the Texas Comptroller under Section 2252.153, Texas Government Code, as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or services to a foreign terrorist organization. As used in the immediately preceding sentence, "foreign terrorist organization" shall have the meaning given such term in Section 2252.151, Texas Government Code.

Pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, unless otherwise exempt, if CONTRACTOR employs at least ten (10) fulltime employees and this Contract has a value of at least \$100,000 that is paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental entity, CONTRACTOR represents that: (i) the CONTRACTOR does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and (ii) the CONTRACTOR will not discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association.

Pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, unless otherwise exempt, if the CONTRACTOR is a company with at least ten (10) or more full-time employees and this Contract has value of at least \$100,000 or more that is paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental entity, the CONTRACTOR represents that: (i) the CONTRACTOR does not boycott energy companies; and (ii) will not boycott energy companies during the term of the Contract.

XIII. AUTHORITY TO SIGN

The undersigned officers and/or agents of the parties hereto are the properly authorized officials and have the necessary authority to execute this Contract on behalf of the parties hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and CONTRACTOR have executed this Contract in the year and day first written above.

CITY OF MESQUITE (CITY)	(CONTRACTOR)
By:Cliff Keheley	BY:(signature)
City Manager	TYPED NAME:
	TITLE:
ATTEST:	ATTEST:
By:Sonja Land, City Secretary	
APPROVED AS TO FORM: David L. Paschall, City Attorney	
By:Assistant City Attorney	

WAGE RATE

General Decision Number: TX20220025 01/07/2022

Superseded General Decision Number: TX20210025

State: Texas

Construction Type: Highway

Counties: Archer, Callahan, Clay, Collin, Dallas, Delta, Denton, Ellis, Grayson, Hunt, Johnson, Jones,

Kaufman, Parker, Rockwall, Tarrant and Wise Counties in Texas.

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (excluding tunnels, building structures in rest area projects & railroad construction; bascule, suspension & spandrel arch bridges designed for commercial navigation, bridges involving marine construction; and other major bridges).

Note: Contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act are generally required to pay at least the applicable minimum wage rate required under Executive Order 14026 or Executive Order 13658. Please note that these Executive Orders apply to covered contracts entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but do not apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(2)-(60).

If the contract is entered into on or after January 30, 2022, or the contract is renewed or extended (e.g., an option is exercised) on or after January 30, 2022, Executive Order 14026 generally applies to the contract. The contractor must pay all covered workers at least \$15.00 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on that contract in 2022.

If the contract was awarded on or between January 1, 2015 and January 29, 2022, and the contract is not renewed or extended on or after January 30, 2022, Executive Order 13658 generally applies to the contract. The contractor must pay all covered workers at least \$11.25 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on that contract in 2022.

The applicable Executive Order minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. If this contract is covered by one of the Executive Orders and a classification considered necessary for performance of work on the contract does not appear on this wage determination, the contractor must still submit a conformance request.

Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the Executive Orders is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number Publication Date 0 01/07/2022

* SUTX2011-007 08/03/2011

Rates Fringes

CONCRETE FINISHER (Paving and Structures)

\$ 14.12

ELECTRICIAN FORM BUILDER/FORM SETTER Paving & Curb Structures	\$ 19.80 \$ 13.16 \$ 13.84
LABORER Asphalt Raker Flagger Laborer, Common Laborer, Utility Pipelayer Work Zone Barricade Servicer	\$ 12.69 \$ 10.06 \$ 10.72 \$ 12.32 \$ 13.24 \$ 11.68
POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATOR: Asphalt Distributor Asphalt Paving Machine Broom or Sweeper Concrete Pavement Finishing Machine Concrete Saw Crane Operator, Lattice Boom 80 Tons or Less Crane Operator, Lattice Boom over 80 Tons Crane, Hydraulic 80 Tons or Less Crawler Tractor Excavator, 50,000 pounds or less Excavator, over 50,000 pounds Foundation Drill, Truck Mounted Foundation Drill, Crawler Mounted Front End Loader 3 CY or Less Front End Loader, over 3 CY Loader/Backhoe Mechanic Milling Machine Motor Grader, Fine Grade Motor Grader, Rough Pavement Marking Machine Reclaimer/Pulverizer Roller, Asphalt Roller, Other Scraper. Small Slipform Machine Spreader Box	\$ 15.32 \$ 13.99 \$ 11.74 \$ 16.05 \$ 14.48 \$ 17.27 \$ 20.52 \$ 18.12 \$ 14.07 \$ 17.19 \$ 16.99 \$ 21.07 \$ 17.99 \$ 13.69 \$ 14.72 \$ 15.18 \$ 17.68 \$ 17.68 \$ 14.32 \$ 17.19 \$ 16.02 \$ 13.63 \$ 11.01 \$ 13.08 \$ 11.51 \$ 12.96 \$ 14.73
Servicer	\$ 14.58
Steel Worker (Reinforcing)	\$ 16.18
TRUCK DRIVER Lowboy-Float Off Road Hauler Single Axle Single or Tandem Axle Dump Truck. Tandem Axle Tractor with Semi Trailer Transit-Mix	\$ 16.24 \$ 12.25 \$ 12.31 \$ 12.62 \$ 12.86 \$ 14.14

WELDER \$14.84

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (ii)).

.....

The body of each wage determination lists the classification and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order of ""identifiers"" that indicate whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate (weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed in dotted lines beginning with characters other than ""SU"" or ""UAVG"" denotes that the union classification and rate were prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of the union, which prevailed in the survey for this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers 0198 indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the ""SU"" identifier indicate that no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As this weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in

producing the wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate that no single majority rate prevailed for those classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is based.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

- 1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:
- * an existing published wage determination
- * a survey underlying a wage determination
- * a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on a wage determination matter
- * a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour Division National Office Branch of Wage Surveys. If the response from this initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal process described here, initial contact should be with the Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations Wage and Hour Division U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an interested party (those affected by the action) can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and by any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

END OF GENERAL DECISION

PERFORMANCE BOND

Danal Ma

Bond No
STATE OF TEXAS 8
STATE OF TEXAS § § KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: COUNTY OF DALLAS §
COUNTY OF DALLAS §
THAT an
THAT, an
he laws of the State of Texas to act as Surety on bonds for principals are held and firmly bound
into the City of Mesquite (hereinafter referred to as "City") in the penal sum of the Contract as
evidenced in the Proposal) for the payment whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, administrators, executors, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, by these presents:
WHEREAS the Principal has entered into a certain written contract with the City, dated the
day of, 20 <mark></mark> , for the 2021 LARGE WATER VALVE AND RCC
REPLACEMENT PROJECT, CITY OF MESQUITE CONTRACT NO. 2023-017 to which said
Contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof and as fully and to the same extent as isopied at length herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that if the said Principal fully and faithfully executes the work and performance of the Contract, as amended, in accordance with the Plans, Specifications and Contract Documents, including any extensions thereof, and according to the true intent and meaning of said Contract and the Plans and Specifications hereto annexed, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise, to remain in full force and effect.

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that this Bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of V.T.C.A. Government Code Chapter 2253, Public Work Performance and Payment bonds, as amended, and Article 53.201 of the Property Code, and all liabilities on this Bond shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of said articles to the same extent as if they were fully copied at length herein.

Surety, for value received, stipulates and agrees that the Bond shall automatically be increased by the amount of any change order or supplemental agreement which increases the Contract price with or without notice to the Surety and that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract, or to the work performed thereunder, or the Plans, Specifications or Drawings accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligation on this Bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the work to be performed thereunder.

Surety must be approved by the Texas State Board of Insurance under Article 7.19-1 of the Insurance Code and authorized under the laws of Texas to act a surety on bonds for principals.

Surety agrees that the bond provides for the repairs and/or replacement of all defects due

to faulty materials and workmanship that appear within a period of **one (1) year** from the date of completion and acceptance of all the improvements by the City.

PRINCIPAL:			SURETY:				
S	Signature		Signature				
Priı	nted Name		Printed Name Title				
	Title						
C	Company		Company				
Street Address			Street Address (P. O. Box is not acceptable)				
City	State	Zip Code	City	State	Zip Code		
(Dallas Te	one Number elephone Nui	,					
URETY'S DALL	AS COUNTY	' REGISTERED	AGENT FO	OR SERVICE (REC	(UIRED):		
Γitle:							
Company:							
Street Address: (P. O. Box is no		t acceptabl	e)				
	City	St	ate	Zip Code			

(Attach dated Power of Attorney for Surety)

PAYMENT BOND

	Bond No
STATE OF TEXAS § S COUNTY OF DALLAS §	KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
THAT	, an,
and the laws of the State of Texas unto the City of Mesquite \$ (not less evidenced in the Proposal)	, an, siness in the State of Texas (hereinafter referred to as "Principal"), (hereinafter referred to as "Surety"), authorized under to act as Surety on bonds for principals are held and firmly bound e (hereinafter referred to as "City") in the penal sum of than 100% of the approximate total amount of the Contract as for the payment whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind administrators, executors, successors and assigns, jointly and
day of	al has entered into a certain written contract with the City, dated the, 20, for the 2021 LARGE WATER VALVE AND RCCP
	CITY OF MESQUITE CONTRACT NO. 2023-017 to which said and made a part hereof and as fully and to the same extent as if

NOW, THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that the bond guarantees the full and proper protection of all claimants supplying labor and material in the prosecution of the work provided for in said Contract and for the use of each claimant, and that conversely should the Principal faithfully perform said Contract and in all respects duly and faithfully observe and perform all and singular the covenants, conditions and agreements in and by said Contract agreed to by the Principal, and according to the true intent and meaning of said Contract, and the claims and specifications hereto annexed, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise, to remain in full force and effect.

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that this Bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of V.T.C.A. Government Code Chapter 2253, Public Work Performance and Payment bonds, as amended, and Article 53.201 of the Property Code, and all liabilities on this Bond shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of said articles to the same extent as if they were fully copied at length herein.

Surety, for value received, stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract, or to the work performed thereunder, or the Plans, Specifications or Drawings accompanying same shall in any way affect its obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the work to be performed thereunder.

Surety must be approved by the Texas State Board of Insurance under Article 7.19-1 of the Insurance Code and authorized under the laws of Texas to act a surety on bonds for principals.

Phone Number (Dallas Telephone Number) SURETY'S DALLAS COUNTY REGISTERED AGENT FOR SERVICE (REQUIRED): Printed Name: Title: Company: Street Address: (P. O. Box is not acceptable) City State Zip Code	PRINCIPAL:			SURETY: Signature			
Title Company Company Street Address Street Address (P. O. Box is not acceptable) City State Zip Code Phone Number (Dallas Telephone Number) SURETY'S DALLAS COUNTY REGISTERED AGENT FOR SERVICE (REQUIRED): Printed Name: Title: Company: Street Address: (P. O. Box is not acceptable) City State Zip Code Phone Number:	S	Signature					
Street Address Street Address (P. O. Box is not acceptable) City State Zip Code City State Zip Code Phone Number (Dallas Telephone Number) SURETY'S DALLAS COUNTY REGISTERED AGENT FOR SERVICE (REQUIRED): Printed Name: Title: Company: Street Address: (P. O. Box is not acceptable) City State Zip Code	Prii	nted Name		Printed Name			
Street Address Street Address (P. O. Box is not acceptable) City State Zip Code City State Zip Code Phone Number (Dallas Telephone Number) URETY'S DALLAS COUNTY REGISTERED AGENT FOR SERVICE (REQUIRED): Printed Name: Title: Company: Street Address: (P. O. Box is not acceptable) City State Zip Code Phone Number:		Title		Title			
City State Zip Code City State Zip Code Phone Number (Dallas Telephone Number) URETY'S DALLAS COUNTY REGISTERED AGENT FOR SERVICE (REQUIRED): Printed Name: Title: Company: Street Address: (P. O. Box is not acceptable) City State Zip Code Phone Number:	C	Company				Company	
Phone Number (Dallas Telephone Number) SURETY'S DALLAS COUNTY REGISTERED AGENT FOR SERVICE (REQUIRED): Printed Name: Title: Company: Street Address: (P. O. Box is not acceptable) City State Zip Code Phone Number:	Stre						
(Dallas Telephone Number) SURETY'S DALLAS COUNTY REGISTERED AGENT FOR SERVICE (REQUIRED): Printed Name: Title: Company: Street Address: (P. O. Box is not acceptable) City State Zip Code Phone Number:	City	State	Zip Code	City		State	Zip Code
(P. O. Box is not acceptable) City State Zip Code Phone Number:	(Dallas Te SURETY'S DALLA Printed Name: Title:	AS COUNTY	REGISTERED			VICE (REQU	JIRED):
Phone Number:	Street Address: (P. O. Box is no			t accept	able)		
		City	Si	tate	Zip Code)	
(Danas County Folephone Number)	Phone Number:	(Da	llas County Tel	ephone l	Number)		

CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT OF FINAL PAYMENT AND RELEASE

(This form will be prepared by the City and executed by the Contractor after project completion)

STATE OF TEXAS	§ &	KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
COUNTY OF DALLAS	§	

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Insert Name of Authorized Company Office ("Affiant"), who, after being by me duly sworn, deposes and says that he is Insert Title of Insert Company Business Organization such as corporation, partnership, etc. Insert County of County, State of Texas (the "Contractor"), which said Contractor was awarded the contract dated the Insert Day of Contract day of Insert Month of Contract, 20 for the construction of Insert Month of Contract, 20 for the construction of Insert Sum of Total Work in Place as Calculated on Final Estimate ???/100 Dollars (\$?,???,???????) to be paid to the said Contractor (the "Contract"), and that Affiant has full power of authority to make this affidavit.

That City of Mesquite, Texas, (the "City") has approved the final estimate on said Work, and that the said Contractor has fully satisfied and paid any and all claims that may be covered by Chapter 53 of the Texas Property Code, and Chapter 2253 of the Texas Government Code, or any other applicable statutes or charter provisions, and that all just bills for labor and materials have been paid and discharged by said Contractor insofar as they pertain to the Work in question.

That in addition to any funds which may have been previously paid by the City, the Contractor hereby accepts the amount of Remaining Payment plus Retainage, minus liquidated damages or other penalties both written out and in numeric, ??/100 Dollars (\$???,?????) as FULL AND FINAL PAYMENT under the aforementioned Contract, and hereby waives and releases any right Affiant and/or the Contractor may have to pursue claims of any nature against the City arising out of or in any manner connected with the performance of the Work and/or the Contract, including but not limited to claims of third parties that supplied material and/or labor for the Work for or through the Contractor ("Subcontractors"), as well as claims for delay, additional compensation, or for recovery of liquidated damages which may have been withheld by the City. The Contractor shall defend, hold harmless, and indemnify the Owner from any such claims of such Subcontractors. The Contractor further releases the City from any claim or liability arising from any act or neglect of the City related to or connected with the Contract. This affidavit is given pursuant to the final payment provisions of the Contract, and shall not be deemed to alter or modify the terms and provisions of said Contract.

Бу.				
(Affiant)	(Contractor's Signature)	(Title)		
(Printed Na	ame)			
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME, this		day of	, 20	
(Notary Pu	blic in and for the State of Texas)			
(Printed Na	ame of Notary)			
My commis	ssion expires			

SECTION GP

CONTRACT GENERAL PROVISIONS

For this Contract, the City of Mesquite has adopted the North Central Texas Council of Governments Public Works Construction Standards, Fifth Edition (November 2017), Division 100 General Provisions with modifications by addendum. The modifications to the above referenced Division 100 General Provisions are contained in the below City of Mesquite Addendum.

CITY OF MESQUITE

ADDENDUM TO DIVISION 100, GENERAL PROVISIONS

OF SECTION 1, STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

OF THE

PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS Fifth Edition

This addendum to Division 100, "General Provisions," of Section I, "Standard Specifications," of the *Public Works Construction Standards, North Central Texas, Fifth Edition, dated November 2017* sets forth exceptions or requirements of the City of Mesquite and thereby takes precedence over any conditions or requirements of the *Public Works Construction Standards, North Central Texas, Standard Specifications, Division 100 General Provisions* with which it is in conflict.

The comments are itemized by the *Public Works Construction Standards, North Central Texas, Standard Specifications, Division 100 General Provisions* section reference number followed by specific comments.

101.1. DEFINITIONS

Add the following definitions:

Apparent Low Bidder: The bidder determined to have the numerically lowest bid as a result of the tabulation of bids by the OWNER.

Award: The City Council's formal acceptance of the Bidder's bid for a proposed contract that authorizes the OWNER to enter into a contract.

Bid Bond: The approved form of bid/proposal guarantee furnished by the Bidder and Bidder's surety as security for compliance with all conditions of such bid/proposal as set forth in the General Provisions.

City: The City of Mesquite, Texas, a home rule municipal corporation, acting by and through (a) its governing body, (b) its Mayor, or (c) its City Manager, each of whom is required by Charter to perform specific duties.

Claim: Compensation for any alleged damage by reason of the acts or omissions of the OWNER.

CONTRACTOR's Qualification Information: Qualification forms completed by a Bidder reflecting a Bidder's financial data and experience.

Effective Start Date: The date indicated in the Notice to Proceed as the date of commencement of Work which is the date from which the start of Contract Time is measured.

Field Order: A written order issued by the OWNER's Representative which orders minor changes or clarifications in the Work which do not involve a change in the Contract Time or Contract Price.

General Design Standards: The General Design Standards developed, adopted and published by the City of Mesquite - Engineering Division, as may be amended.

Holiday: Official City-recognized holidays, the Wednesday before Thanksgiving, and December 31st (New Year's Eve). The list of official City-recognized holidays will be provided by the Director of Public Works upon request.

Product: The term "product" includes materials, systems, and equipment.

Proposal Guaranty: The security designated in the advertisement and proposal, to be furnished by each Bidder as a guaranty of good faith to enter into a contract with the OWNER and execute the required bonds for the work contemplated after the work is awarded to the Bidder and payment of damages upon the Bidder's failure to enter into the contract incompliance with Section 102.5.

Provide: The term "provide" means to both furnish and install.

Request for Information (RFI): A written request from the CONTRACTOR to the OWNER's Representative for plan or specification interpretation or clarification.

Shop Drawings or Submittals: All drawings, diagrams, illustrations schedules, and other data which are specifically prepared by or for the CONTRACTOR to illustrate some portion of the Work and all illustrations, brochures, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, manufacturer's data, diagrams, and other information submitted by the CONTRACTOR to the OWNER's Representative for approval (reference Section 105.3).

Standard Details: Standard details developed, adopted and published by the City of Mesquite Engineering Division as may be amended, or the standard details developed by other agencies or engineers that are included in the project plans or specifications.

Substantially Complete: In the opinion of the Engineer, that the Work has been made suitable for use or occupancy, or is serving its full intended purpose, but may require minor miscellaneous work or adjustment as evidenced by issuance of a Certification of Substantial Completion by the OWNER's Representative.

Working Hours: The hours in which Work shall be done, and unless otherwise indicated in any special provisions, Working Hours are the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. central time. No work shall be done during other hours, Sundays, or Holidays unless advance written permission is given by the OWNER's Representative.

Written Notice: A notice, in writing, either: (1) hand delivered to the individual, or if to a legal entity, to a member of the firm or officer of the legal entity; or (2) if delivered at or sent by registered mail, to the last business address designated in the Contract for the Work.

Replace the definitions of "OWNER", "OWNER's Representative", and "Proposal" with the following:

OWNER: The City of Mesquite, Texas, a home rule municipal corporation.

OWNER's Representative: The City Engineer of the City of Mesquite or the person designated by the City Engineer to represent the City, or such other person as authorized by the City in the contract documents.

Proposal: The written statement(s) and any other documents duly filed with the Purchasing Agent, whether in the form of a sealed bid, proposal, quotation or other form, of the person, persons, partnership, company, firm, association or corporation proposing to do the work contemplated in accordance with the provisions of the plans and specifications, special and general provisions, and all contract documents.

Add to the end of the Section the following Subsection:

102.1.1. Pay Items. Items not listed in the bid proposal shall be considered subsidiary to the construction and under no circumstance shall the OWNER provide additional compensation for said subsidiary items.

102.3. EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND SITE OF THE WORK Add to End of Section the Following Subsections:

102.3.1. Addenda. Bidders desiring further information, or interpretation of the plans and specifications, must make request for such information in writing to the OWNER's Representative five (5) working days prior to the date of the bid opening. Answers to such requests will be given in writing to all bidders by Addendum and such Addendum shall be made a part of the Contract Documents. No other explanation or interpretation will be considered official or binding. Should a Bidder find discrepancies in the plans, specifications or quantities, or should the bidder be in doubt as to their meaning, the Bidder shall at once notify the OWNER's Representative in order that a written Addendum may be sent to all Bidders. Any Addendum issued prior to twenty-four (24) hours before the opening of bids will be delivered by facsimile or email to all plan holders on record with the City of Mesquite. The proposal as submitted by the Bidder will be so constructed as to include any Addendum issued by the OWNER's Representative prior to twenty-four (24) hours before the opening of bids.

The Bidder must acknowledge in the proposal bid forms that all Addenda have been received.

102.3.2. Pre-Bid Inspection. Bidder shall inspect the site prior to bidding and prior to move in. Bidder's inspection shall include but not be limited to observation and verification of existing grades, topographic conditions, surface and subsurface soil conditions and surface and subsurface water drainage conditions, observation and verification of any existing utility, appurtenance, or structure as it may relate to the contract. This shall include but not be limited to:

Water and sewer appurtenances.
Storm sewer structures and appurtenances.
Concrete structures and appurtenances.
Petroleum pipeline systems and appurtenances.
Natural Gas pipeline systems and appurtenances
Telecommunications systems and appurtenances
Electrical systems and appurtenances.
Television cable systems and appurtenances.
Irrigation systems and appurtenances.

- **102.3.3. Geotechnical Data.** Soil Borings, soil profiles, ground water elevations, and underground utilities shown on the plans have been obtained for use in preparation of the plans. The OWNER makes no representation or warranty regarding the accuracy of this geotechnical data.
- **102.3.4. Quantity Verification.** Bidders shall verify all quantities included in the bid proposal prior to submitting their bid. Should any quantity discrepancy between stated bid quantities and Bidder's estimate be found, Bidder shall notify the OWNER's Representative in writing, prior to submitting bid, and obtain a clarification and/or correction to the stated bid quantity. By submitting a bid, Bidder represents that estimates were performed and no quantity discrepancies were found.
- **102.3.5. Subsidiary Cost:** It is the intent of the Contract Documents, Technical Specifications, Supplemental Specifications, and plans to describe the construction and subsidiary activities and materials necessary to furnish and install a complete in place project, ready for its intended use, accepted by the OWNER's Representative. Those materials and work necessary to furnish and install a complete in place project, conforming to the plans and specifications, that are not specifically identified in the bid proposal, technical specifications, or the supplemental technical specifications as pay items shall be considered as subsidiary to the contract as a whole, and as such shall not be submitted for individual payment by the CONTRACTOR. The cost of those subsidiary items shall be reflected in the prices stated in the bid proposal. It shall be the responsibility of the Bidder to review the bid proposal, plans, technical specifications, and supplemental technical specifications and site conditions to determine those materials and work which are not specifically identified but which shall be necessary to furnish and install a complete project in place.

102.4. PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL

Change: Replace first three sentences with the following:

The bidder shall submit its proposal on the forms furnished or approved by the OWNER. The bidder shall submit Bid Proposals on Bid Forms in the contract document or from computer generated forms supplied by the OWNER. Modifications or revisions to the OWNER-supplied form or the creation of a new computer generated form shall be considered an irregular proposal and may disqualify the bidder. Unit prices shown on the Bid Proposals shall state the prices for which the bidder proposes to perform the work or supply the required material. Bidder shall fill in all blank spaces in the form and shall numerically state the bid prices. All costs in connection with the proper and successful completion of the Work, including furnishing all materials, equipment, supplies, and appurtenances; providing all construction plant, equipment, and tools; and performing all necessary labor and supervision to fully complete the Work, shall be included in the unit and lump sum prices bid. All Work not specifically set forth as a pay item in the Bid Form shall be considered a subsidiary obligation of CONTRACTOR and all costs in

connection therewith shall be included in the prices bid. All prices shall be written in ink distinctly and legibly or submitted electronically if allowed by OWNER.

102.5 PROPOSAL GUARANTY

Add to the end of the section: An acceptable Surety per the terms of GP Section 103.3 SURETY BONDS shall execute the Bidder's surety bond, together with the bidder, as Principal. In addition, the Bidder and its agents shall have no financial interest in the Surety.

102.7. WITHDRAWING PROPOSALS

Change: In the last sentence, change "90 days" to "120 days".

Add after the last sentence: After the 120-day period, if agreed to in writing between Bidder and OWNER, the bid will stay in effect, without change, for a period agreed to between the Bidder and OWNER.

102.8 OPENING PROPOSALS

Delete the last sentence of this section.

102.9. CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSAL

Add after the last sentence: When required by the bid documents, within 48-hours of the bid opening, the apparent low Bidder must submit to the OWNER, the Bidder's Qualification Information on the forms provided in the bid documents providing evidence that the Bidder is capable of properly executing the work.

102.10. IRREGULAR PROPOSALS

Add: After the words "irregular if" add ", in the sole opinion of the OWNER,".

102.12. DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS

Add:

- (12) The bidder being in arrears on any existing contract or other financial obligation or debt.
- (13) Lack of a current financial report as required in the Bidder's Qualification Information submission requirements.
- (14) The quality, availability and adaptability of the supplies, materials, equipment or contractual services, to the particular use required.
- (15) For request for proposals, the number and scope of conditions attached to the proposal.
- (16) Whether the bidder can perform the contract or provide the service promptly, or within the time required, without delay or interference.
- (17) The previous and existing compliance by the bidder with laws relating to the contract or service.
- (18) The ability of the bidder to provide future maintenance, repair parts, and service for the subject contract.
- (19) Evidence that CONTRACTOR, subcontractor have been suspended, debarred, or otherwise excluded from participation in federally funded programs.

103.2. AWARD OF CONTRACT

Change: In the first sentence, change "90 days" to "120 days".

103.3.3. Sureties.

Delete second to last sentence and Replace with: The surety shall designate an agent in Dallas County, Texas who is acceptable to the OWNER to whom any requisite notices may be delivered and on whom service of process may be had in matters arising out of such suretyship. Legal venue for enforcement of the bonds shall lie exclusively in Dallas County, Texas.

103.4 INSURANCE

Delete entire subsection 103.4.1. CONTRACTOR's Insurance, including subsections and Replace with:

103.4.1 CONTRACTOR's Insurance. The CONTRACTOR and his subcontractor(s) shall not commence work on any contract in the City of Mesquite until the CONTRACTOR has obtained, for himself and all subcontractors, all of the insurance required under this paragraph, and such insurance has been approved by the OWNER.

The CONTRACTOR and his subcontractor(s) shall provide and maintain the following types and amounts of insurance, which may be satisfied by any combination of primary, excess or umbrella liability insurance, for the term of this Contract:

Amounts and Types of Insurance:

	Туре	Amount	
1	Workers Compensation/Employer's Liability	Statutory	
2	Employer's Liability	No less than \$100,000 Limit Ea. Occ/Disease/Aggregate	City shall be an Additional Insured with Waiver of Subrogation
3	Commercial (Public) Liability, including, but not limited to: A. Premises/Operations B. Independent Contractors C. Personal Injury D. Products/Completed Operations E. Contractual Liability (insuring the indemnity provisions in the contract) F. Explosion or Cave-in	No less than \$1,000,000 per Occurrence and Aggregate Limits	All insurance policies shall be written on a primary basis and be non-contributory with any other coverages carried by the City. City is to be an Additional Insured with Waiver of Subrogation.
4	Automobile Policy	The OWNER shall be an Additional Insured at No less than Combined Single Limit - \$500,000.00	City shall be an Additional Insured

The required limits may be satisfied by any combination of Primary, Excess or Umbrella liability coverage. The preceding amounts notwithstanding, OWNER reserves the right to decrease or increase the minimum required insurance either as provided in the contract documents or after thirty (30) days' notice is sent to the CONTRACTOR's address as shown on CONTRACTOR's Proposal. The CONTRACTOR may pass through to the OWNER all costs for obtaining the increase in the insurance coverage.

The CONTRACTOR understands that it is its sole responsibility to provide Certificates of each policy before any work is started and that failure to timely comply with the stated policy endorsements and special conditions hereinafter specified shall be a cause for termination of this Contract. Prior to the effective date of cancellation of any coverage, the CONTRACTOR must deliver to the OWNER a replacement Certificate or proof of reinstatement. In addition to the Certificates, all Policies shall be subject to examination and approval by City Risk Management for their adequacy as to form, content, form of protection and the providing company.

The proof will include completed/current Certificate(s) of Insurance, endorsements, exclusions, and/or relevant extracts from the insurance policy, or copies of policies. The City shall have no duty to pay or perform under this contract until the proof of insurance has been delivered to and approved by the CITY's Risk Management Department. No officer or employee other than the CITY's Risk Manager shall have authority to waive this requirement.

Insurance required by this Contract for the OWNER as additional insured shall be primary insurance and not contributing with any other insurance available to the OWNER, under any third party liability policy.

Delete entire subsection 103.4.2. OWNER's Protective Liability Insurance and Replace with:

103.4.2 Worker's Compensation Insurance. The OWNER shall require workers' compensation insurance coverage as defined in Section 401.011(44) of the Texas Labor Code as may be amended, from any contractor before entering into a building or construction contract to prove in writing that the CONTRACTOR and all subcontractors shall provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts and filing of any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements set forth in Section 406.096 of the Texas Labor Code as may be amended, for all persons providing services on the project, for the duration of the project. The City shall be an Additional Insured, and, with a Waiver of Subrogation.

103.4.5.1 Endorsements.

Delete 103.4.5.1(1) and Replace with:

(1) With the exception Professional Liability coverage, the Certificate of Insurance must state that "The City of Mesquite-Texas, its trustees, officers, agents and employees are Additional Insureds as their interests appear relating to the contractually stipulated service, project or product";

103.4.5.2(2) Insurance Requirements.

Add to the end of the sentence: and rated at least "A-" in A.M. Best's Key Rating Guide; and with a financial strength of VII or greater

103.6 NOTICE TO PROCEED AND COMMENCEMENT OF WORK

Replace last sentence with: Prior to the start of work, the OWNER may arrange a Pre-Construction Conference with the CONTRACTOR and appropriate OWNER staff. The Pre-Construction Conference shall be scheduled no later than 10 days after the Contract is fully executed. The Notice to Proceed (NTP) shall state the date upon which the Contract time (the Effective Start date) shall start. The Effective Start date will be within 10 days after the Pre-Construction Conference for the Project is held unless requested otherwise in writing by the OWNER's Representative.

Add The Following Section:

103.9. COST BREAKDOWN (SCHEDULE OF VALUES FOR LUMP SUM BIDS OR BID ITEMS)

The CONTRACTOR shall prepare and submit for approval to the OWNER's Representative, prior to the start of construction, a breakdown of lump sum items, identified by the OWNER, for the various parts and classes of work to be performed under the Contract.

105.1.1 Priority of Contract Documents.

Delete numbers (1) through (9) of subsection 105.1.1 and Replace with:

In case of conflict between Contract documents, priority of interpretation shall be in the following order:

- 1. signed Contract Agreement:
- 2. properly authorized change orders;
- 3. any listed and numbered addenda;
- 4. special provisions;
- construction drawings;
- project specific details;

- 7. Division 100 of the Public Works Construction Standards, North Central Texas, Fifth Edition, dated November 2017 with City of Mesquite Addendum;
- 8. technical specifications;
- 9. City of Mesquite Standard Details;
- 10. the OWNER's written notice to proceed to the CONTRACTOR;
- 11. the CONTRACTOR's bid proposal;
- 12. the Performance and Payment Bonds;
- 13. City of Mesquite General Design Standards
- 14. Public Works Construction Standards, North Central Texas, Fifth Edition, dated November 2017
- 15. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Standard Specifications for Construction and Maintenance of Highways, Streets, and Bridges, 2014

105.1.3. Contract Drawings and Specifications.

Add at the end of the first paragraph: The only plans authorized for use are stamped:

RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION
CITY OF MESQUITE
ENGINEERING DIVISION
(DATE)
THESE PLANS SHALL
BE ON THE JOB SITE AT ALL TIMES

105.3. SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES

Delete: The last sentence in the last paragraph.

105.4. CONSTRUCTION STAKES

Delete: Entire first paragraph of section.

Add: The CONTRACTOR is responsible for furnishing, at CONTRACTOR's expense, all construction staking necessary to establish line and grade. The Consulting Engineer will provide one-time location of survey control points for the CONTRACTOR's surveyor. Prior to construction, the CONTRACTOR shall field-verify elevations and locations of tie-in points for existing utilities. If discrepancies are discovered between field conditions and plan elevations, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the OWNER immediately of the discrepancies. All construction staking is subject to checking and verification by the OWNER's Representative.

105.6. SUPERVISION BY CONTRACTOR

Add: The CONTRACTOR superintendent and general foreman shall both be fluent in speaking, reading, and writing English.

105.7.1 Authority of the Engineer

Add: The Engineer has the authority to stop the work whenever such stoppage may be necessary to insure the proper execution of the Contract.

105.7.2. OWNER's Representative's Final Determination

Add: Should the CONTRACTOR object to any order by any subordinate of the OWNER's Representative (i.e. City inspector), the CONTRACTOR may, within six days make written appeal to the OWNER's Representative for his decision.

105.9 INSPECTION

Add: The OWNER's Inspector shall not have the power to waive the obligations of this Contract for the furnishing by the CONTRACTOR of good material, and of his performing good work as herein described, and in full accordance with the plans and specifications. No failure or omission of the OWNER's Inspector to condemn any defective work or material shall release the CONTRACTOR from the

obligation to at once remove and properly replace the same at any time prior to OWNER's final acceptance upon the discovery of said defective work or material.

105.9.1. Removal of Defective and Unauthorized Work. Delete the first sentence and Replace with the following:

(1) Except as provided in Paragraph (2) of this 105.9.1, all work which has been rejected or condemned shall be repaired, or if it cannot be repaired satisfactorily, it shall be removed and replaced at the CONTRACTOR's expense.

Add after first paragraph: (2) If the OWNER prefers to accept Work which is defective and/or not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the OWNER's Representative may accept Work instead of requiring its removal and correction, prior to recommendation of final payment. Work found to be defective and accepted by the OWNER shall be, at the discretion of the OWNER and without recourse by the CONTRACTOR, subject to partial or non-payment. CONTRACTOR shall bear all direct, indirect, and consequential costs attributable to the OWNER's evaluation of any determination to accept such defective work (such costs to be approved by the OWNER's Representative as to reasonableness, and to include, but not be limited to, fees and charges of engineers, inspectors, architects, attorneys, laboratories and other professionals). If any such acceptance occurs prior to the OWNER's Representative's recommendation of final payment, a Change Order will be issued incorporating the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents with respect to the Work; and the OWNER shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price. If the acceptance occurs after such recommendation, an appropriate amount will be paid by the CONTRACTOR to the OWNER.

105.9.3. Inspection Overtime

Delete the second and third sentences in the first paragraph and Replace with the following: The CONTRACTOR will be required to reimburse the OWNER or its designated representative for the cost of all inspection overtime which may be necessary for the successful and expeditious prosecution of the work included in this contract. Inspector's normal working hours are 7:30 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. and 12:30 p.m. to 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday with the exclusion of Holidays. The CONTRACTOR will reimburse the OWNER for all Inspection overtime outside the Inspector's normal working hours. To arrange for inspection outside Inspector's normal working hours, a written request for overtime inspection must be communicated to the OWNER's Inspector two working days in advance. Work on Sundays and Holidays is prohibited except in the case of emergency and authorized, in writing, by the OWNER's Representative. Work between the hours of 6:00 P.M. and 7:00 A.M. must be approved by the OWNER's Representative. Overtime inspection shall be charged portal to portal. There is a two-hour minimum charge for inspection on weekends or Holidays. The CONTRACTOR will be charged a 2-hour minimum overtime charge if the CONTRACTOR schedules inspection on weekends or Holidays but then cancels work without notice to the Public Works Construction Inspector before the inspector shows up to the project.

Delete: The last paragraph.

Add: Inspection overtime will be reimbursed to the OWNER by the CONTRACTOR at the rate of timeand-one-half plus workman's compensation, F.I.C.A. and other normal City benefits and any other additional rates paid to the inspector by the City. The CONTRACTOR will be billed monthly by the City for overtime charges. The OWNER will not release final payment or give final acceptance of a project until inspector overtime charges are paid.

106.4. OFF-SITE STORAGE

Delete the second paragraph including (1) through (6), and Replace with:

The costs incurred in storage of materials or equipment away from the project site will not be made by the OWNER. All costs incurred shall be the full responsibility of the CONTRACTOR and included in the CONTRACTOR's bid.

106.5 SAMPLES AND TESTS OF MATERIALS

Delete the first paragraph and Replace with:

Where called for in the specifications or, in the opinion of the OWNER, tests and retests of materials or completed work are necessary, such tests will be made at the sole expense of the CONTRACTOR unless otherwise specified.

Add at the end of the last paragraph:

The CONTRACTOR shall designate and pay a City Approved testing laboratory to perform all testing, if any, for this project. Such designation is subject to the approval of the OWNER's Representative. The hiring of the testing laboratory shall comply with Article 2254.004 of the Texas Governmental Code (Professional Services Procurement Act) and other applicable laws.

The Testing Laboratory must furnish the inspector with one field copy of the test results. A typed paper copy must be mailed to the OWNER's Representative identified at the Pre-Construction Conference. The OWNER's Representative may approve the submission of final test reports to the OWNER by electronic means.

Collection of potable water samples for bacterial sampling will be accomplished by the CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR must prepare the sample point and assist the City Public Works Construction Inspector in collecting the sample. All work and materials used for the sampling point and taking the samples must conform to the latest version of the American Water Works Association Standards. Delivery of the potable water sample to the testing laboratory and testing of the potable water sample will be at the OWNER's expense.

107.3. INDEMNIFICATION Add the following subsections:

107.3.1 CONTRACTOR's Responsibility. CONTRACTOR further agrees that it shall at all times exercise reasonable precautions on behalf of, and be solely responsible for, the safety of its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, licensees, invitees, and other persons, as well as their property, while in the vicinity where the improvements are being made. It is expressly understood and agreed that OWNER shall not be liable or responsible for the negligence of the CONTRACTOR, including but not limited to its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, licensees, invitees, and other persons.

107.3.2 Premise Defects. Further, OWNER assumes no responsibility or liability for harm, injury, or any damaging events which are directly or indirectly attributable to premise defects, real or alleged, in improvements constructed by CONTRACTOR which may now exist or which may hereafter arise upon the premises, responsibility for any and all such defects being expressly assumed by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR understands and agrees that this indemnity provision shall apply to any and all claims, suits, demands, and/or actions based upon or arising from any such premise defects or conditions, including but not limited to any such claim asserted by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, including but not limited to its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, licensees, invitees, and other persons.

107.3.3 Notice of Claim. It is further agreed with respect to the above indemnity that OWNER and CONTRACTOR will provide the other prompt and timely notice of any event covered which in any way, directly or indirectly, consequently or otherwise, affects or might affect the CONTRACTOR or OWNER, and OWNER shall have the right to compromise and defend the same to the extent of its own interests.

107.13 LABOR AND MATERIALS Add the following subsection:

107.13.1. LABOR CLASSIFICATION AND MINIMUM WAGE SCALE

In compliance with Texas state law, the CONTRACTOR is required to pay all employees, and is required to make all subcontractors pay their employees, for the construction of any public work project not less

than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages in the locality for work of a similar character as determined by the City. The City, as provided by law, has adopted the prevailing wage rates as determined by the U.S. Department of Labor in accordance with the Federal Davis Bacon Act for this Contract.

Attention is called to the fact that the inclusion of a minimum scale of wages to be paid to employees engaged in the work under this Contract does not release the CONTRACTOR from compliance with any Federal or State Wage Law that may be applicable to the project. The CONTRACTOR shall abide by Federal and State Wage and Hour Laws and must not pay less than the wages legally prescribed as set forth therein. In order to verify compliance with Federal or State wage laws and regulations, the CONTRACTOR may be required to submit a weekly certified payroll of all workers on the project listing name, social security number, labor classification, wage rates, hours worked and compensation paid.

Under the provisions of the Texas Government Code, Title 10, Subchapter F, Section 2258.023, the CONTRACTOR shall forfeit as a penalty to the City on whose behalf the Contract is made or awarded, Sixty Dollars (\$60.00) for each laborer, workman or mechanic employed, for each calendar day or portion thereof that such laborer, workman or mechanic is paid less than the said stipulated rates for any work under the Contract, by him or by any subcontractor under him.

Such wage determinations must be for projects in Dallas County, Texas dated no more than 3 years prior to the date this Contract was advertised for bid.

In addition, the CONTRACTOR is required to obtain skilled and unskilled labor used on the work, when qualified, fit and available, first from residents within the City and secondly, from residents of Dallas County, if practical and available. However, the CONTRACTOR may bring his superintendent, foreman, sub-foreman, machine operators and sufficient key men to round his organization.

107.14 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

107.14.5 Reports

Add at the end of the first sentence: "if required by the OWNER."

Add the following subsections:

107.14.6. Protection of Resident Workers: The OWNER actively supports the immigration and Nationality Act (INA), which includes provisions addressing employment eligibility, employment verification, and nondiscrimination. Under the INA, employers may hire only persons who may legally work in the United States (i.e., citizens and nationals of the U.S.) and aliens authorized to work in the U.S. The employer must verify the identity and employment eligibility of anyone to be hired, which includes completing the Employment Eligibility Verification Form (I-9). The CONTRACTOR shall establish appropriate procedures and controls so no services or products under the Contract Documents will be performed or manufactured by any worker who is not legally eligible to perform such services or employment.

107.14.7. Handicapped Discrimination Regulations:

The handicapped discrimination regulations mandate equal opportunity and require that outside organizations such as labor unions and contractors who provide services to the local governments must not discriminate against qualified handicapped persons in employment decisions.

107.14.8. Non-Compliance with Equal Employment Opportunity Provisions

In the event of the CONTRACTOR's non-compliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this Contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this Contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the CONTRACTOR may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

107.15 STATE AND LOCAL SALES AND USE TAXES Add at the end of the section:

If the CONTRACTOR performs under a separated contract as defined by Texas Administrative Code Rule 3.291 by obtaining the necessary permit or permits from the State Comptroller's office allowing the purchase of materials for incorporation in this project without having to pay the Limited Sales and Use Tax at the time of purchase, the CONTRACTOR shall identify separately from all other charges the total agreed contract price for materials incorporated into the project. Total materials shall include only materials physically incorporated into the project.

If the CONTRACTOR operates under a "separated contract," the City of Mesquite Purchasing Division will furnish the CONTRACTOR with an exemption certificate for the applicable materials. In order to comply with the requirements of Texas Administrative Code Rule 3.291, as mentioned above, Bidder shall obtain a sales tax permit. It shall be necessary that the Bidder issue resale certificates to suppliers.

Sales tax application for a sales tax permit and information regarding resale certificates may be obtained by writing to:

Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts
Capitol Station
Austin, Texas 78774

The CONTRACTOR may also receive information or request sales tax permit applications by calling the State Comptroller's local Mesquite office at **(214) 289-3400**.

Subcontractors are eligible for sales tax exemption if the subcontract is made in such a manner that the charge for materials is separated from all other charges. The procedure described above will effect a satisfactory separation. When subcontracts are handled in this manner, the CONTRACTOR shall issue a resale certificate to the subcontractor, who in turn, must issue a resale certificate to his supplier.

107.17 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

Add at the end of the section:

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INDEMNIFY AND SAVE HARMLESS THE OWNER AGAINST ANY CLAIMS ARISING FROM THE VIOLATION OF ANY SUCH LAW, ORDINANCES AND REGULATIONS.

107.19 PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND SAFETY Add the following subsections:

107.19.1. Temporary Water and Sanitary Sewer Service. When existing water or sanitary sewer mains or services have to be taken up or removed, the CONTRACTOR shall, at his own cost and expense, provide and maintain temporary outlets and connections for all private or public water, sanitary sewer and drain connections affected. The CONTRACTOR shall also take care of all sewage and drainage that will be received from these sanitary sewers and drains; and for this purpose, he shall provide and maintain, at his own expense, adequate pumping facilities and temporary outlets or diversions. The CONTRACTOR, at his own expense, shall construct such piping, troughs, or other necessary structures, and be prepared at all times to dispose of sanitary sewer and drainage received from these temporary connections until such time as the permanent connections are built and in service. The existing water, sanitary sewer and drain connections shall be kept in service and maintained under the Contract, except where specified or ordered to be abandoned by the OWNER's Representative. All water, sewage or drainage shall be disposed of in a legal and satisfactory manner so that no nuisance is created and the work under construction adequately protected.

107.19.2. Explosives. Explosives shall not be used under any circumstances in relation to this project.

Add at the end of section 107.19:

In order to document site conditions and assist in resolving claims for construction damage the CONTRACTOR shall take digital pictures and/or digital video recordings of the site before construction. In addition, the CONTRACTOR shall, during the course of construction, periodically record site conditions using digital pictures and/or digital video recordings. The CONTRACTOR shall make these recordings at least monthly or more frequently if the OWNER's Inspector so orders. Copies of all digital photographs and/or video recordings shall be burned to DVD or other digital media acceptable to the OWNER and provided to the OWNER's Inspector.

Add to end of section 107.20.2 the following subsection:

107.20.2.1. Access to Property. The CONTRACTOR shall schedule the work such that inconvenience to the public and adjoining property owner's shall be at a minimum. Access to all businesses shall be provided at all times during business hours.

The CONTRACTOR will schedule work through residential areas in a manner that would expedite construction operations and will restore drive approach access at the end of each working day during execution of the project (except during paving operations of the specific residential drive approach). The CONTRACTOR shall maintain temporary drive approaches to the satisfaction of the OWNER's Representative. Private drives to residences shall not be closed for more than 10 days at any one time during paving operations.

The CONTRACTOR will notify the OWNER's Representative Office in writing one (1) week prior to any street or driveway closure.

107.20.3.6. Payment for Trench Safety and Special Shoring.

Delete the first sentence and Replace with: Payment for trench safety shall be by the lineal feet of trench regardless of depth.

107.24.4. Utility Coordination and Protection Delete the first sentence and Replace with:

No franchise utility relocations have taken place in preparation for the project, and the location of existing utilities may not be shown on the plans. It is the CONTRACTOR's responsibility to notify utility companies to arrange for exact locations at least 48 hours prior to beginning construction. The CONTRACTOR is fully responsible to coordinate necessary utility relocation with the utility companies and will make all efforts to coordinate necessary relocation of utilities with the utility owner. The OWNER shall not be held responsible by the CONTRACTOR for any delays created by a franchise utility company relocating their facilities. The time of construction given for the project includes all necessary utility work involved with franchise utility companies. The OWNER will make an effort to assist the CONTRACTOR in coordinating relocations before and during the project.

Delete: Table 107.24.4.(a) Utility Coordination and Replace with:

Entity	Contact Information
Texas One Call system	811
City of Mesquite Water/Sewer Locates	972-216-6278
	972-216-6973
	972-216-8797
City of Mesquite: Record Drawings	GIShelpdesk@cityofmesquite.com
City of Mesquite Traffic Signal Conduit &	972-216-6278
Loop Detectors	

Add to the end of section 107.24 the following subsections:

107.24.5. Arrangement and Charge for Water Furnished by the City. Where CONTRACTOR desires to use City water in connection with any construction work, he shall make prior arrangements with the Mesquite Water Accounting Division for so doing. Where meters are used, the charge for water will be at the regular established rate; where no meters are used, the charge will be as prescribed by ordinance; or, where no ordinance applies, payment shall be made on estimates made by the Mesquite Engineering Division.

107.24.6. Use of Fire Hydrants. No person shall open, turn off, interfere with, attach any pipe or hose to, or connect anything with any fire hydrant, stop valve or stopcock, or tap any water main belonging to the City, unless duly authorized to do so by the Mesquite Utilities Division.

107.24.7. Operation of Existing Valves. The CONTRACTOR is not permitted to operate any valve in the existing City of Mesquite water system. The valves must be operated by City of Mesquite Utility Division employees only.

107.27 RESTORATION OF PROPERTY

Add to the end of the section:

The CONTRACTOR shall exercise special care to minimize damage to trees, plants, shrubs and irrigation systems along the route of the work. The CONTRACTOR shall notify adjacent property owners before beginning construction operations adjacent to their property of trees, plants and shrubs that lie inside the right-of-way or easements lines and within the normal limits of work. The property owners shall be allowed to remove and protect their property, and all trees, plants and shrubs not so protected by the adjacent property owners shall be removed and disposed of by the CONTRACTOR, as directed by the OWNER's Representative.

107.28.1 Spill Prevention Plan

Add to beginning of first sentence: "When required by federal and/or state law, rules or regulations," 107.28.5 Failure to Comply

Delete item (3) and Replace with:

(3) terminate the contract for default as provided in the Contract Documents; or

Add the following as Item (4):

(4) terminate the contract in any other applicable manner provided in the Contract Documents.

Add the following section to the end of Item 107: 107.29 ANTI-KICKBACK ACT

For any project funded by a Federal grant, the CONTRACTOR shall comply with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 U.S.C. 874) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act provides that each contractor or sub grantee shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion or repair of public work or to give up any part of the compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The City shall report all suspected or reported violations to the grantor agency.

108.8.1 Liquidated Damages for Failure to Complete on Time. Delete the entire subsection and replace with the following:

The time of completion is the essence of this Contract. For each day that any work shall remain uncompleted after the time specified in the proposal and the Contract, or the increased time granted by the OWNER, or as equitably increased by additional work or materials ordered after the Contract is signed, the sum per day given in the Schedule 108.8.1. (a) Liquidated Damages, unless otherwise specified, shall be deducted from the monies due the CONTRACTOR.

Schedule 108.8.1. (a) Liquidated Damages

Amount of Contract (\$)	Amount of Liquidated Damages (\$)
Less than 25,000.00	200.00 Per Day
100,000.00 to 999,999.99	500.00 Per Day
More than 1,000,000.00	1000.00 Per Day

The sum of money thus deducted for such delay, failure or noncompletion is not to be considered as a penalty, but shall be deemed, taken and treated as reasonable liquidated damages, per day that the CONTRACTOR shall be in default after the time stipulated in the Contract for completing the work. The said amounts are fixed and agreed upon by and between OWNER and CONTRACTOR because of the impracticability and extreme difficulty of fixing and ascertaining the actual damages the OWNER in such event would sustain; and said amounts are agreed to be the amount of damages which the OWNER would sustain and which shall be retained from the monies due, or that may become due, the CONTRACTOR under this Contract; and if said monies be insufficient to cover the amount owing, then the CONTRACTOR or its surety shall pay any additional amounts due.

In the event that the actual damages incurred by the OWNER exceed the amount of liquidated damages, OWNER shall be entitled to recover its actual damages.

109.1 PAYMENT FOR LABOR AND MATERIAL; NO LIENS

Add the following paragraph to this section:

The CONTRACTOR is not required to furnish payrolls and records unless this submittal is otherwise required by the Special Provisions or the Contract Documents. The CONTRACTOR is still required to comply with the minimum wage rates published by the OWNER.

109.2 PAYMENT FOR MATERIALS

109.2.1. Materials On-Hand. Delete the text of subsection and replace with the following: The OWNER will not pay for Materials on Hand unless otherwise specified in a Special Provision or the Contract Documents.

109.2.2. Materials Stored Off-Site. Delete entire subsection.

Re-number Subsection 109.2.3. "Measurement of Quantities" to 109.2.2.

109.5.1 MONTHLY ESTIMATE

Replace the second sentence of the first paragraph with the following: "The monthly estimate may include acceptable nonperishable materials if allowed by Special Provisions or the Contract Documents."

Replace the fourth sentence of the first paragraph with the following: "The monthly estimate may include acceptable nonperishable materials delivered to and stored at the work site or a storage facility accessible to the OWNER if allowed by Special Provisions or the Contract Documents."

109.5.4. Final Payment.

Revise the last sentence of the first paragraph to read as follows:

The amount of the final estimate, less any sums that have been previously paid, deducted or retained under the provisions of this Contract, shall be paid to the CONTRACTOR within a reasonable period of time (not to exceed 90 days) after final acceptance and the CONTRACTOR has provided to the OWNER:

- (1) a consent of surety to final payment;
- (2) the final CONTRACTOR's Report of SUBCONTRACTOR/Supplier Payment, evidencing that all indebtedness connected with the work and all sums of money due for any labor, materials, apparatus, fixtures or machinery furnished for or used in the performance of the work have been paid or otherwise satisfied, or that the person or persons to whom the same may be respectively due have consented to final payment;

- (3) such other affidavits, lien waivers and other documentation as the OWNER may reasonably require to protect its interests; and
 - (4) a marked-up set of plans showing all changes, revisions and alterations to the original plans.

109.6 WIRE TRANSFERS

Delete entire text of Section 109.6 and Replace with:

The City of Mesquite has chosen the Paymode-X™ service through Bank of America to make electronic payments to contractors, vendors and suppliers.

The City of Mesquite recognizes the importance of expediting the payment process to CONTRACTOR's vendors and suppliers. Our Accounts Payable department utilizes Paymode-X to replace paper checks with electronic payments. We strongly encouraging our vendors and suppliers to enroll in Paymode-X so that future payments are made electronically. Contract the assigned OWNER's Inspector to receive further information on how to process online enrollment to the Paymode-X electronic payment system.

Delete entire ITEM 110. AIR QUALITY REQUIREMENT FOR EQUIPMENT

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

These Special Provisions are to be used in conjunction with the *North Central Texas Council of Governments Public Works Construction Standards, Fifth Edition (November 2017), Division 100 General Provisions, as amended.* Should any discrepancies arise, the governing order shall be: Special Provisions, Plans, Technical Specifications, and General Provisions.

THE FOLLOWING SPECIAL PROVISIONS HEREBY MODIFY THE North Central Texas Council of Governments Public Works Construction Standards, Fifth Edition (November 2017), Division 100 General Provisions. Where reference is made in these specifications to specifications compiled by others, such reference is made for expediency and standardization, and such specifications referred to are hereby made a part of these specifications.

SP-1 PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

This project is for nine (9) welded steel plate repairs of threaded outlets along a 24" RCCP water main; installation of approximately 100 linear feet of an 8" water line by bore, including two (2) 8"" x 8" tapping sleeves & valves; installation of 2-24" gate valves; the removal of 2-20" gate valves and replacement with 2-24" gate valves; and removal of approximately 110 linear feet of existing sanitary sewer line and replacement with 36" fiber reinforced polymer (FRP) pipe and the associated lowering of approximately 40 linear feet of 24" water main at various locations throughout the City.

SP-2 PRE-BID MEETING:

A <u>pre-bid meeting</u> will be held at <u>2:00 p.m. on Monday, November 14th, 2022</u> at the City of Mesquite Art Center located at 1527 N. Galloway Avenue, Mesquite, Texas 75149 in the Upstairs Library.

The pre-bid meeting will be held to permit prospective bidders the opportunity to ask questions of the design staff regarding the project, plans and specifications.

SP-3 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES:

This project is a **150 calendar day contract**. Liquidated damages are per the provisions of GP 108.8.

SP-4 SUBMITTALS:

The Contractor shall provide submittals of the following items to the Owner's Representative at the preconstruction conference:

- 1. List of Subcontractors and Material Suppliers (including Material's Testing).
- 2. Submittals for all materials to be incorporated into the project. A submittal is not required for an item if it is an item is listed on the City of Mesquite Approved Materials list by brand name and model number.
- 3. Concrete batch designs and paving equipment.
- 4. Project Schedule.
- 5. Listing of all testing required by the specifications and plans with frequency requirements.
- 6. Traffic Control Plan
- 7. Trench Safety Plan sealed by a registered engineer.
- 8. Affidavit of trained and certified "Competent Person" for Trench Safety Inspections
- 9. Contractor Contact List with listing of personnel for 24 hour 7 days a week contact.
- 10. Other Items as requested by the Owner's Representative or required by contract documents, specifications or plans.

SP-5 CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE:

The Contractor shall prepare a Construction Sequencing Plan which shows staging for the installation of the construction by valve location (street address) or other division of the work as requested by the Owner's Representative and submit it to the Owner's Representative at the Pre-Construction

Conference. The following sequences of construction shall be followed since each new valve becomes a shutdown valve for the next, in order to limit the zone of affected area for the next valve during shutdown:

- Site 2 (Windbell) shall be constructed first.
- Site/Valve 3 (1135 Gross Rd) shall be constructed next
- Site/Valve 4 (1325 Gross Rd) shall be constructed next
- Site 5 (1425 Gross Rd) shall be constructed next
- Site/Valve 6A (427 Gross Rd) shall be constructed next
- Site/Valve 6B (427 Gross Rd) shall be constructed next

Site 1 and all its associated threaded insert repairs may be constructed in any sequence and independent of Sites 2-6 above.

In addition, Contractor shall follow up with concrete repair and general site clean-up work along completed areas as soon as possible after valve installation.

SP-6 SHUTDOWN OF WATER MAINS:

Construction that requires shutdown of any water mains shall only be done during the winter months of October through April, unless otherwise approved by the City of Mesquite. The schedule of these shut downs must be coordinated with the City of Mesquite Engineering and Water Utilities Division staff.

Prior to shutdown of mains, the Contractor shall verify existing pipe types, order and receive required valves, fittings, nuts, bolts, gaskets and other required materials, and assemble the fitting to the fullest extent possible to expedite the installation process.

Contractor to provide 48 hour advanced shutdown notice to affected residents and business owners. City will provide wording and format to contractor who shall be responsible for placing door hangers on affected residences and securing signatures from affected businesses.

City shall shutdown valves indicated in the shutdown plans and open fire hydrants to reduce line pressures. City shall be responsible for black bagging affected fire hydrants and notifying the fire department of those hydrants. Contractor shall be responsible for de-watering the affected lines, including providing sufficient pumping to de-water the lines to allow for removal and/or replacement of the scheduled valves within a single shutdown period, which shall be from 7:00 PM to 7:00 AM the following morning. Contractor should not expect completely dry conditions and should be prepared to perform the work accordingly.

Once a cut is made to an existing water main for any large valve installation, replacement or removal construction cannot stop until installation is complete.

SP-7 SAFETY RECORD:

Bidders shall submit a notarized affidavit with their bid attesting to their safety record. The Contractor and all Subcontractors having \$10,000 or more work on the project must provide safety records and Safety Experience Modifier Rate (EMR) from the local Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Office in which the firm is located. The Contractor's safety record may not reflect penalties for five (5) or more serious violations, none of which may be repeat violations, nor may it reflect two (2) or more willful violations, none of which may be repeat violations, within the three (3) years preceding award of the contract. This information will be considered in determining the responsibility of the Bidder for purpose of awarding the contract.

SP-8 EXPERIENCE RECORD:

Bidders shall submit a completed Qualification Statement of Bidder with his/her bid. The record must reflect the firm's experience working with water valves larger than 16" and work with pipe known as one of the following; bar wrapped cylinder concrete pipe (B-303), American concrete cylinder pipe (P-381) or

pretensioned concrete cylinder pipe (P-303). Such experience must have been on projects completed within the last three (3) years. Resumes of key personnel to be assigned to the project must be provided with current project assignments listed.

SP-9 WELDER CERTIFICATION

Contractor must present written welder certification documents to the City for approval prior to any individual performing welding work on any pipeline joints, repairs, fittings or associated work. Provide welder certification appropriate to the work and positions.

SP-10 COORDINATION OF FRANCHISED UTILITY RELOCATION:

No franchise utility relocations have taken place in preparation for the project, and the location of some existing utilities may not show on the plans. It is the Contractor's responsibility to notify utility companies to arrange for exact locations at least 48 hours prior to beginning construction. The time of construction given for the project includes all necessary utility work involved with franchise utility companies.

SP-11 AS-BUILT PLANS:

The Contractor will be furnished one set of plans on which he shall indicate all changes made during construction. All notes and comments necessary to give a clear conception of exactly how all items were constructed including location shall be shown. This set of plans shall be reviewed with the Owners representative at the completion of the project and returned to the Engineer at that time.

SP-12 DOCUMENT SITE CONDITIONS:

Contractor shall take digital pictures and/or digital video recordings of the site before construction begins. Special emphasis shall be on adjacent private property, including driveways, fences, etc. A copy of the photos and/or videos shall be furnished to the inspector for review and filing prior to any construction in that area. This shall be considered incidental to the project.

SP-13 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES:

All estimated quantities stipulated in the Bid Form or other Contract Documents are approximate and are to be used only (a) as a basis for estimating the probable cost of the Work and (b) for the purpose of comparing the bids submitted for the Work. The actual amounts of work done and materials furnished under unit price items may differ from the estimated quantities. The basis of payment for work and materials will be the actual amount of work done and materials furnished. Contractor agrees that it will make no claim for damages, anticipated profits, or otherwise on account of any difference between the amounts of work actually performed and materials actually furnished and the estimated amounts.

SP-14 STAGING AREAS:

Materials and equipment shall be safely stored during construction so that public roadways and/or access to adjacent properties are not obstructed. The City has not provided or identified specific staging areas for use by the Contractor during construction. There are several vacant properties within and near the project areas. The Contractor may negotiate with owners of those properties for use during construction. The City shall be provided a copy of permission letter obtained from property owner. The Contractor shall be solely liable for any costs or damages associated with or arising from use of any private property during construction.

SP-15 SPRINKLER SYSTEM REPAIR:

Contractor shall protect all existing irrigation systems encountered during construction from damage. Any avoidable (as determined by the City) damage caused to irrigation systems by the contractor's operation shall be repaired to the satisfaction of the City and property owner at the contractor's expense. Any unavoidable damage caused to irrigation systems by the contractor's operation shall be repaired to the satisfaction of the City and property owner at and shall be charged against the Irrigation Repair Allowance bid item. All irrigation repairs must be performed by a licensed irrigator.

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

TS-1	REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE STREET PAVEMENT	BID ITEM 1
TS-2	REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE STREET PAVEMENT REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE SIDEWALK REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE DRIVEWAY	BID ITEM 2
TS-3	REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE DRIVEWAY	BID ITEM 3
TS-4	REMOVE EXISTING STAMPED CONCRETE MEDIAN PAVEMENT	BID ITEM 4
TS-5	REMOVE 39" SANITARY SEWER MAIN	BID ITEM 5
TS-6	REMOVE 4'x2' RCP	BID ITEM 6
TS-7	REMOVE 24" RCCP WATER MAIN	BID ITEM 7
TS-8	FURNISH & INSTALL 8"x8" TAPPING SLEEVE & VALVE	BID ITEM 8
TS-9	FURNISH & INSTALL 24" RW GATE VALVE FL X FL	BID ITEM 9
TS-10	REMOVE 39" SANITARY SEWER MAIN REMOVE 4'x2' RCP REMOVE 24" RCCP WATER MAIN FURNISH & INSTALL 8"x8" TAPPING SLEEVE & VALVE FURNISH & INSTALL 24" RW GATE VALVE FL X FL FURNISH & INSTALL 24" RW GATE VALVE MJ X MJ REPAIR OF 24" RCCP WATER MAIN INVESTIGATION REHAB EX 4' DIA MH W/ ARMOROCK POLYMER INSERTS REHAB EX 5' DIA MH W/ ARMOROCK POLYMER INSERTS	BID ITEM 10
TS-11	REPAIR OF 24" RCCP WATER MAIN	BID ITEM 11
TS-12	INVESTIGATION	BID ITEM 12
TS-13	REHAB EX 4' DIA MH W/ ARMOROCK POLYMER INSERTS	BID ITEM 13
TS-14	REHAB EX 5' DIA MH W/ ARMOROCK POLYMER INSERTS	BID ITEM 14
TS-15	CONSTRUCT 4" CONCRETE SIDEWALK	BID ITEM 15
TS-16	CONSTRUCT 8" CONCRETE DRIVEWAY	BID ITEM 16
TS-17	CONTSTRUCT 26" SANITARY SEWER	BID ITEM 17
TS-18	CONSTRUCT 6' DIA ARMOROCK POLYMER MH	BID ITEM 18
TS-19	CONCRETE PRESSURE PIPE TYPE SURCHARGE	BID ITEM 19
TS-20	CONSTRUCT 24" RCCP WATER MAIN	BID ITEM 20
TS-21	REHAB EX 4' DIA MH W/ ARMOROCK POLYMER INSERTS REHAB EX 5' DIA MH W/ ARMOROCK POLYMER INSERTS CONSTRUCT 4" CONCRETE SIDEWALK CONSTRUCT 8" CONCRETE DRIVEWAY CONTSTRUCT 26" SANITARY SEWER CONSTRUCT 6' DIA ARMOROCK POLYMER MH CONCRETE PRESSURE PIPE TYPE SURCHARGE CONSTRUCT 24" RCCP WATER MAIN 8" PVC WATER LINE IN 14" STEEL CASING PIPE (BY OTHER THAN OPEN CUT)	BID ITEM 21
	(BY OTHER THAN OPEN CUT) 8" PVC WATER LINE (OPEN CUT) JOINT RESTRAINT (DUCTILE/CAST IRON PIPE) JOINT RESTRAINT (RCCP) EXTRA DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS (NOT SHOWN ON PLANS) TEMPORARY 2" HDPE WATER MAIN TEMPORARY 3/4" WATER SERVICE TO EXISTING METER TEMPORARY 2" WATER SERVICE TO EXISTING METER CONSTRUCT STAMPED CONCRETE MEDIAN PAVEMENT CONSTRUCT 6" CONCRETE STREET PAVEMENT	
TS-22	8" PVC WATER LINE (OPEN CUT)	BID ITEM 22
TS-23	JOINT RESTRAINT (DUCTILE/CAST IRON PIPE)	BID ITEM 23
TS-24	JOINT RESTRAINT (RCCP)	BID ITEM 24
TS-25	EXTRA DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS (NOT SHOWN ON PLANS)	BID ITEM 25
TS-26	TEMPORARY 2" HDPE WATER MAIN	BID ITEM 26
TS-27	TEMPORARY ¾" WATER SERVICE TO EXISTING METER	BID ITEM 27
TS-28	TEMPORARY 2" WATER SERVICE TO EXISTING METER	BID ITEM 28
TS-29	CONSTRUCT STAMPED CONCRETE MEDIAN PAVEMENT	BID ITEM 29
. • • •		
TS-31	CONSTRUCT 6" CONCRETE STREET PAVEMENT (HIGH EARLY)	
	FLOWABLE BACKFILL	BID ITEM 32
TS-33	TRENCH SAFETY DESIGN	BID ITEM 33
TS-34	IMPLEMENTATION OF TRENCH SAFETY PLAN	BID ITEM 34
	SODDING OF DISTURBED AREAS	BID ITEM 35
	EROSION CONTROL PLAN & IMPLEMENTATION	BID ITEM 36
	TRENCH SAFETY DESIGN IMPLEMENTATION OF TRENCH SAFETY PLAN SODDING OF DISTURBED AREAS EROSION CONTROL PLAN & IMPLEMENTATION BARRICADING & TRAFFIC CONTROL BYPASS PLAN & IMPLEMENTATION IRRIGATION SYSTEM REPAIR (ALLOWANCE) MOBILIZATION (MAXIMUM OF 5% OF TOTAL BID)	BID ITEM 37
	BYPASS PLAN & IMPLEMENTATION	BID ITEM 38
	IRRIGATION SYSTEM REPAIR (ALLOWANCE)	BID ITEM 39
TS-40	MOBILIZATION (MAXIMUM OF 5% OF TOTAL BID)	BIT ITEM 40

TS-1 REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE STREET PAVEMENT - BID ITEM 1

Description:

This item shall be for the removal of existing concrete street pavement. Contractor shall remove and dispose of all existing pavement, including full depth saw cutting and removal of existing pavement from the site as directed by the Owner. If removal limits are within three (3) feet of an existing joint, the removal limits shall extend to the joint. Removal of any associated concrete curb and gutter is included with this work.

Contractor shall provide machinery, tools, and equipment necessary for proper execution of the work in the time frame allowed. Owner shall approve such equipment as to type and condition prior to the Contractor beginning construction operations on which the equipment is to be used. The equipment must be kept in full and good working order.

When removing portions of concrete pavement from existing pavement that will remain in place, Contractor shall delineate the line of removal neatly and accurately with a full-depth saw-cut to facilitate removal without damaging the remaining pavement. Saw-cut shall be considered incidental. Contractor shall ensure the removal methods do not chip or damage surrounding pavement or curb. If any existing concrete beyond the removal limits is damaged or destroyed, it shall be replaced at the Contractor's entire expense. Removed concrete pavement shall be disposed of off-site by the Contractor.

Materials:

None specified.

Measurement:

Measurement shall be made on a unit price basis for each square yard of existing concrete pavement removed and disposed of, as measured in place.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for all materials, equipment, labor and other incidentals necessary to complete the work as specified, including full depth saw cutting, handling, transporting and disposal.

TS-2 REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE SIDEWALK - BID ITEM 2

Description:

This item shall be for the removal of existing sidewalk of all types. Contractor shall remove and dispose of all existing sidewalk, including full depth saw cutting and removal of existing pavement from the site as directed by the Owner.

Contractor shall provide machinery, tools, and equipment necessary for proper execution of the work in the time frame allowed. Owner shall approve such equipment as to type and condition prior to the Contractor beginning construction operations on which the equipment is to be used. The equipment must be kept in full and good working order.

When removing portions of sidewalk from existing pavement that will remain in place, Contractor shall delineate the line of removal neatly and accurately with a full-depth saw-cut to facilitate removal without damaging the remaining pavement. Saw-cut shall be considered incidental. Contractor shall ensure the removal methods do not chip or damage surrounding pavement or curb not scheduled for replacement. If any existing concrete beyond the removal limits is damaged or destroyed, it shall be replaced at the Contractor's entire expense. Removed sidewalk shall be disposed of off-site by the Contractor.

Materials:

None specified.

Measurement:

Measurement shall be made on a unit price basis for each square yard of existing sidewalk removed and disposed of, as measured in place.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for all materials, equipment, labor and other incidentals necessary to complete the work as specified, including full depth saw cutting, handling, transporting and disposal.

TS-3 REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE DRIVEWAY - BID ITEM 3

Description:

This item shall be for the removal of existing driveway of all types. Contractor shall remove and dispose of all existing driveway, including full depth saw cutting and removal of existing pavement from the site as directed by the Owner. If removal limits are within three (3) feet of an existing joint, the removal limits shall extend to the joint.

Contractor shall provide machinery, tools, and equipment necessary for proper execution of the work in the time frame allowed. Owner shall approve such equipment as to type and condition prior to the Contractor beginning construction operations on which the equipment is to be used. The equipment must be kept in full and good working order.

When removing portions of driveway from existing pavement that will remain in place, Contractor shall delineate the line of removal neatly and accurately with a full-depth saw-cut to facilitate removal without damaging the remaining pavement. Saw-cut shall be considered incidental. Contractor shall ensure the removal methods do not chip or damage surrounding pavement or curb not scheduled for replacement. If any existing concrete beyond the removal limits is damaged or destroyed, it shall be replaced at the Contractor's entire expense. Removed driveway shall be disposed of off-site by the Contractor.

Materials:

None specified.

Measurement:

Measurement shall be made on a unit price basis for each square yard of existing driveway removed and disposed of, as measured in place.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for all materials, equipment, labor and other incidentals necessary to complete the work as specified, including full depth saw cutting, handling, transporting and disposal.

TS-4 REMOVE EXISTING STAMPED CONCRETE MEDIAN PAVEMENT - BID ITEM 4

Description:

This item shall be for the removal of existing stamped concrete median pavement of all types. Contractor shall remove and dispose of all existing median pavement, including full depth saw cutting and removal of existing pavement from the site as directed by the Owner. If removal limits are within three (3) feet of an existing joint, the removal limits shall extend to the joint.

Contractor shall provide machinery, tools, and equipment necessary for proper execution of the work in the time frame allowed. Owner shall approve such equipment as to type and condition prior to the Contractor beginning construction operations on which the equipment is to be used. The equipment must be kept in full and good working order.

When removing portions of median pavement from existing pavement that will remain in place, Contractor shall delineate the line of removal neatly and accurately with a full-depth saw-cut to facilitate removal without damaging the remaining pavement. Saw-cut shall be considered incidental. Contractor shall ensure the removal methods do not chip or damage surrounding pavement or curb not schedule for replacement. If any existing concrete beyond the removal limits is damaged or destroyed, it shall be replaced at the Contractor's entire expense. Removed median pavement shall be disposed of off-site by the Contractor.

Materials:

None specified.

Measurement:

Measurement shall be made on a unit price basis for each square foot of existing stamped concrete median pavement and disposed of, as measured in place.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for all materials, equipment, labor and other incidentals necessary to complete the work as specified, including full depth saw cutting, handling, transporting and disposal.

TS-5 REMOVE 39" SANITARY SEWER MAIN - BID ITEM 5

Description:

This item shall be for removing existing 39" sanitary sewer at the locations shown on the plans as required or as directed by the Owner.

Contractor shall provide machinery, tools, and equipment necessary for proper execution of the work in the time frame allowed. Owner shall approve such equipment as to type and condition prior to the Contractor beginning construction operations on which the equipment is to be used. The equipment must be kept in full and good working order.

Materials:

None specified.

Measurement:

Measurement and payment shall be made on a unit price basis for each linear foot of 39" sanitary sewer main removed and disposed of, as measured in place.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for all materials, equipment, welding, labor and other incidentals necessary to complete the work as specified.

TS-6 REMOVE 4'X2' RCP- BID ITEM 6

Description:

This item shall be for removing existing 4'x2' reinforced concrete pipe at the locations shown on the plans as required or as directed by the Owner.

Contractor shall provide machinery, tools, and equipment necessary for proper execution of the work in the time frame allowed. Owner shall approve such equipment as to type and condition prior to the Contractor beginning construction operations on which the equipment is to be used. The equipment must be kept in full and good working order.

Materials:

None specified.

Measurement:

Measurement and payment shall be made on a unit price basis for each linear foot of 4'x2' RCP removed and disposed of, as measured in place.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for all materials, equipment, labor and other incidentals necessary to complete the work as specified, including excavation, handling, transporting and disposal.

TS-7 REMOVE 24" RCCP WATER MAIN - BID ITEM 7

Description:

This item shall be for removing existing 24" RCCP water main at the locations shown on the plans as required or as directed by the Owner. This item includes unclassified excavation and dewatering of the existing line necessary to complete the work. Pavement removal shall be paid for by separate pay items.

Contractor shall provide machinery, tools, and equipment necessary for proper execution of the work in the time frame allowed. Owner shall approve such equipment as to type and condition prior to the Contractor beginning construction operations on which the equipment is to be used. The equipment must be kept in full and good working order.

Materials:

None specified.

Measurement:

Measurement and payment shall be made on a unit price basis for each linear foot of 24" RCCP water main removed and disposed of, as measured in place.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for all materials, equipment, labor and other incidentals necessary to complete the work as specified, including excavation, dewatering the existing water line, handling, transporting and disposal.

TS-8 FURNISH & INSTALL 8" x 8" TAPPING SLEEVE & VALVE - BID ITEM 8

Description:

This item shall be for furnishing and installing a 8" x 8" tapping sleeve and valve at locations shown on the plans in accordance with all requirements set forth in City of Mesquite General Design Standards, Water -1 through Water-3, for materials, testing, safety, backfill and other items.

Materials:

Materials shall be in accordance with the City of Mesquite General Design Standards, Water-1 through Water-3.

Measurement:

This item is paid on a unit price basis per each 8"x8" tapping sleeve and valve installed.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation to complete the work as specified. This project shall include all labor, equipment, materials, excavation, backfilling, concrete, restraint system and all other associated work necessary to complete in place.

TS-9 FURNISH & INSTALL 24" RW GATE VALVE FLxFL - BID ITEM 9

Description:

This item shall be for furnishing and installing a 24" resilient wedge gate valve flange x flange as

indicated on the plans. This item also includes all associated piping, closures, fittings, transitional couplings, adaptors, gaskets, nuts, bolts and other appurtenances required.

Materials:

Gate valves shall be resilient wedge (seat) valves that comply with AWWA C509 or C515. The valves shall be designed to withstand a minimum working pressure of 200 psi. The valve shall be full opening, ductile iron body, non-rising stem. Valves shall have all internal and external ferrous metal surfaces coated with an approved epoxy coating to provide a corrosion resistant barrier. The epoxy coating shall be holiday free with a minimum thickness of not less than ten (10) mils. Valves shall have two (2) "O" ring stem seals, shall open by turning to the left (counterclockwise), and have a two (2) inch operating nut. All fittings and glands shall be designated and fabricated in accordance with AWWA C303 & AWWA C304 and shall be designed for a minimum working pressure of 200 psi., minimum field test pressure of 200 psi and an HS-20 live load. All fittings and valves shall be mechanically restrained using full circle welds or equal as approved by the City. Bolts and nuts for all fittings shall be ASTM A325 Type 3 Enhanced Corrosion Resistant steel or stainless steel Grade 304 or 316.

All fittings, valves, etc. shall be blocked with 2,000 psi concrete. All blocking shall be poured to avoid nuts and bolts.

Contractor shall use a wrapper strapped around the pipe and over the joint to grout the exterior joint space associated with connections.

Embedment shall be in accordance with the City's General Design Standards, including crushed concrete flexible base compacted to 95% standard proctor density.

Contractor shall backfill excavated trench area in accordance with the City's General Design Standards, including crushed concrete flexible base compacted to 95% standard proctor density under paving and clean fill (native material) compacted to a density of 95% standard proctor at a moisture content of 0% to plus 6% of optimum moisture not under pavement.

Contractor shall also install an adjustable valve box (Bass & Hayes Model # 2436S) in combination with an access assembly (24" East Jordan Iron Works ERGO® with locking lid). For a valve not under pavement, contractor shall construct a 4' x 4' concrete apron around the access assembly as shown in the plans.

Measurement:

This item is paid on a unit price basis per each 24" resilient wedge gate valve FL x FL installed.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation to complete the work as specified. This project shall include all labor, equipment, materials, excavation, backfilling, concrete, restraint system, welding, testing and all other associated work necessary to complete in place.

TS-10 FURNISH & INSTALL 24" RW GATE VALVE MJxMJ - BID ITEM 10

Description:

This item shall be for furnishing and installing a 24" resilient wedge gate valve mechanical joint x mechanical joint as indicated on the plans. This item also includes all associated piping, closures, fittings, transitional couplings, adaptors, gaskets, nuts, bolts and other appurtenances required.

Materials:

Gate valves shall be resilient wedge (seat) valves that comply with AWWA C509 or C515. The valves shall be designed to withstand a minimum working pressure of 200 psi. The valve shall be full opening, ductile iron body, non-rising stem. Valves shall have all internal and external ferrous

metal surfaces coated with an approved epoxy coating to provide a corrosion resistant barrier. The epoxy coating shall be holiday free with a minimum thickness of not less than ten (10) mils. Valves shall have two (2) "O" ring stem seals, shall open by turning to the left (counterclockwise), and have a two (2) inch operating nut. All mechanical joint fittings, glands and restraints shall be ductile iron in accordance with AWWA 153 (compact fittings) & AWWA C111 with a minimum pressure rating of 350 psi. Bolts and nuts for all fittings shall be ASTM A325 Type 3 Enhanced Corrosion Resistant steel or stainless steel Grade 304 or 316. All blocking shall be poured to avoid nuts and bolts.

All fittings, valves, etc. shall be blocked with 2,000 psi concrete. All blocking shall be poured to avoid nuts and bolts.

Embedment shall be in accordance with the City's General Design Standards, including crushed concrete flexible base compacted to 95% standard proctor density.

Contractor shall backfill excavated trench area in accordance with the City's General Design Standards, including crushed concrete flexible base compacted to 95% standard proctor density under paving and clean fill (native material) compacted to a density of 95% standard proctor at a moisture content of 0% to plus 6% of optimum moisture not under pavement.

Contractor shall also install an adjustable valve box (Bass & Hayes Model # 2436S) in combination with an access assembly (24" East Jordan Iron Works ERGO® with locking lid). For a valve not under pavement, contractor shall construct a 4' x 4' concrete apron around the access assembly as shown in the plans

Measurement:

This item is paid on a unit price basis per each 24" resilient wedge gate valve MJ x MJ installed.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation to complete the work as specified. This project shall include all labor, equipment, materials, excavation, backfilling, concrete, restraint system, welding, testing and all other associated work necessary to complete in place.

TS-11 REPAIR OF 24" RCCP WATER MAIN - BID ITEM 11

Description:

This item shall be for repairing existing 24" RCCP water main at the locations shown on the plans as required or as directed by the Owner. Contractor shall follow the details and general notes specified in the plan sheets and as directed by the Owner.

Materials:

Contractor shall use the materials specified in the construction plans or as approved by the Owner.

Measurement:

This item is paid on a unit price basis per each repair of 24" RCCP water main.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation to complete the work as specified and shall include all labor, equipment, materials, excavation, backfilling, any testing required by the Owner, and all incidentals necessary to complete in place.

TS-12 INVESTIGATION - BID ITEM 12

Description:

This item consists of excavating to determine type, size, location, elevation and/or condition of the existing water main, including determining the outside diameter and circumference of the existing lines in an effort to determine the type of pipe (for example, bar wrapped cylinder concrete pipe or

prestressed concrete cylinder pipe). This item also includes locating existing pipe joints to determine proposed valve location and required joint restraint locations. The excavated proposed valve location area shall be backfilled with clean native backfill material. In paved areas in the immediate vicinity of the proposed valve location, the pavement will be replaced with a compacted 8" thick base of crushed concrete flex base and a compacted 2" thick surface of hot or cold mix asphalt pavement for temporary paving. The removed pavement at the required joint restraint locations shall be replaced with permanent pavement upon completion of the joint restraint (by separate pay items).

Materials:

None specified.

Measurement:

This item shall be made on a unit price basis per each location as shown on the plans or prescribed by the Owner.

Payment:

Payment shall be total compensation for furnishing all materials, tools, equipment, labor, and any other incidentals necessary to complete the work.

TS-13 REHAB EX 4' DIA MH W/ ARMOROCK POLYMER INSERTS - BID ITEM 13

Description:

This item shall be installing Armorock™ Manhole Rehabilitation Polymer Inserts (or approved other) inside the 4' diameter manholes/junction boxes specified as shown on the plans or as directed by the Owner. Contractor shall follow the manufacturer's recommendations for installation.

Materials:

Materials shall be in accordance with those specified by the manufacturer or approved equal.

Measurement:

This item is paid on a unit price basis per each existing 4' diameter manhole rehabilitated with Armorock™ polymer inserts.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation to complete the work as specified and shall include all labor, equipment, materials; cleaning of the interior of the manhole; re-shaping and re-forming of the invert/bench as necessary or as directed by the Owner; excavation; backfilling; grouting; connection to existing laterals; cutting, removal and replacement of manhole cones as necessary; and all other associated work necessary to complete in place.

TS-14 REHAB EX 5' DIA MH W/ ARMOROCK POLYMER INSERTS - BID ITEM 14

Description:

This item shall be installing Armorock™ Manhole Rehabilitation Polymer Inserts (or approved other) inside the 5' diameter manholes/junction boxes specified as shown on the plans or as directed by the Owner. Contractor shall follow the manufacturer's recommendations for installation.

Materials:

Materials shall be in accordance with those specified by the manufacturer or approved equal.

Measurement:

This item is paid on a unit price basis per each existing 5' diameter manhole rehabilitated with Armorock™ polymer inserts.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation to complete the work as specified and shall include all labor, equipment, materials; cleaning of the interior of the manhole; re-shaping and re-forming of the invert/bench as necessary or as directed by the Owner; excavation; backfilling; grouting; connection to existing laterals; cutting, removal and replacement of manhole cones as necessary; and all other associated work necessary to complete in place

TS-15 CONSTRUCT 4" CONCRETE SIDEWALK - BID ITEM 15

Description:

This item shall govern for the construction of concrete sidewalk according to the *City of Mesquite General Design Standards, Paving Standard Details* and as directed by the Owner.

Materials:

<u>Concrete</u> shall have a 28-day minimum compressive strength of 4000 psi, containing 6 sacks per cubic yard minimum, with 1" to 3" slump for machine pours and 3" to 5" slump for hand pours. All materials and requirements for concrete shall conform to the requirements of the current NCTCOG Item "Portland Cement Concrete Pavement" with the exception that fly ash may be substituted for up to 20% of the cement content requirement at 1 to 1.25 cement to fly ash substitution rate. Concrete temperature cannot exceed 100 degrees F at time of placement and cannot be placed unless the ambient temperature is 35 degrees and rising.

Reinforcing shall conform to ASTM A 615 and be a minimum grade of 60 per ASTM A 370. Reinforcement may be rejected for failure to meet the following: reinforcement exceeding the allowable variations; reinforcement with a coating of dirt, loose scale, paint, oil, or other foreign substance which would prevent the bonding of the concrete and reinforcement; reinforcement not bent in accordance with the standard details; or twisted bars. Reinforcement shall be stored above the ground surface upon skids, platforms, or other supports, and shall be protected from mechanical injury and surface deterioration caused by exposure to the conditions producing rust.

Sidewalk reinforcing shall include No. 4 deformed bars on 12" centers (both ways) and No. 4 smooth dowel bars on 12" centers at expansion joint locations. When sidewalk is adjacent to the curb, Contractor shall put an additional 12" long No. 4 deformed bars at 12" centers and epoxy in place.

<u>White Curing compound</u> is to be applied, per manufacturer's recommendations, to all exposed concrete surfaces (including back-of-curbs) immediately after completion of finishing operations, per ASTM C-309, Type 2, NCTCOG Section 303.2.13.1.1. The compound shall be delivered to the jobsite in the manufacturer's original containers only, which shall be clearly labeled.

<u>Expansion joint</u> materials shall consist of pre-molded asphalt board tested in accordance with ASTM D 545 Test Methods for Preformed Expansion Joint Fillers for Concrete Construction (Non-extruding and Resilient Types).

CONSTRUCTION METHODS:

Contractor shall provide machinery, tools, and equipment necessary for proper execution of the work in the time frame allowed. Owner shall approve such equipment as to type and condition prior to the Contractor beginning construction operations on which the equipment is to be used. The equipment must be kept in full and good working order.

Cross slope for sidewalks shall be a maximum 2% in the direction of the curb or street. All equipment and tools which are used for material handling and performing all parts of the work must be kept in full and good working order and meet the approval of the Owner.

Sidewalks shall be removed and replaced to the nearest existing grooved joint. All concrete removal shall be saw-cut along a neat and uniform line at the designated removal limits. Contractor

shall ensure the removal methods do not chip or damage surrounding sidewalk or curb. If any existing concrete beyond the removal limits is damaged or destroyed, it shall be replaced at the Contractor's entire expense. Removed concrete sidewalk shall be disposed of off-site by the Contractor.

The contractor shall do all necessary filling, leveling, and fine grading required to bring the subgrade to the exact grades needed for repair. **Sand may not be used as fill or level-up material under any pavement**. Approved fill and level-up material is crushed concrete Flexible Base per TXDOT Item No. 247, Grade 1, Type D. The subgrade shall be compacted using City approved small sheep's foot rollers, or vibratory plate compactors or other mechanical compaction equipment approved by the City. The subgrade and all level-up material must be compacted to 95% standard proctor density with a moisture content of 0% to plus 6% of optimum moisture. Moisture level must be maintained by wetting, until placing of concrete. All fill shall have densities taken at the interval and locations determined by the City Public Works Construction Inspector.

Use wood or metal forms that are straight, free of warp, and of a depth equal to the thickness of the finished work. Forms shall be of a section satisfactory to the Owner, securely staked to the line and grade, and maintained in a true position during the depositing of concrete.

All steel reinforcement shall be accurately placed as shown on the standard details and held in place during progress of concreting so as to not be moved out of true position. When placed in the work, the reinforcement shall be free from any foreign material. All reinforcement necessary for a section of concrete shall be placed and approved by the Owner before any concrete is poured in the section.

Concrete sidewalks shall have a minimum thickness of 4". Concrete sidewalk adjacent to integral retaining walls shall be 5" thick and transition to 6" thick at the location of the retaining wall. Sidewalk constructed in driveway and alley approach sections shall have a minimum thickness equal to the driveway and alley approach, respectively. When sidewalk is adjacent to the curb, Contractor shall construct a thickened edge as shown on the standard details. Concrete shall be deposited so as to maintain a horizontal surface and shall be thoroughly and continuously worked into all spaces and around the reinforcement so as to form a dense void less mass. The coarse aggregate shall be worked away from contact with the forms so as to form a smooth, hard exposed concrete surface. All concrete must be mechanically vibrated. No obstructions (fire hydrants, power poles, guy wires, etc.) shall be allowed in or over sidewalk paving. Contractor shall maintain a minimum of 3' sidewalk width in locations where such obstruction cannot be relocated or avoided.

Concrete sidewalks shall be finished to a true, even surface. They shall be troweled and then brushed transversely to obtain a medium-broom finish. The outer edges and joints shall then be rounded with suitable tools to a 1/4" radius.

Expansion joints shall be placed in the sidewalk at the intervals shown on the standard details with a maximum spacing of 120' and at all radii points. Joints shall be formed using expansion joint material of the pre-formed, non-extruded type and shaped to the section and with 2' long No. 4 smooth dowel bars at 12" centers with a cap on one end as specified. Expansion joints shall also be placed at all intersections, sidewalks with concrete driveways, other sidewalks, and other old, adjacent concrete work and property lines. All expansion joints shall be 1/2" in thickness. Sidewalks shall be grooved at 5' intervals on a 5' wide sidewalk and at 4' intervals on a 4' wide sidewalk with an approved grooving tool. Grooves shall be 1" deep. When sidewalk is against the curb, expansion joints and tooled grooves shall match those in the curb.

Contractor shall install a temporary fence around work until complete including backfill and sodding.

After the construction work has been completed, the Contractor shall remove all debris, trash, excess materials, forms, stakes, etc. from the premises. The site shall be left with a neat appearance. All excavation shall be backfilled, and all excess excavated materials shall be disposed of.

Testing: Concrete sidewalk paving shall be tested for both depth and strength. Most current ASTM specifications shall govern testing methods as listed above. Concrete paving shall have a 4" core taken by the Contractor's lab and tested for both depth and 28 day strength. Locations shall be determined by the City Public Works Construction Inspector and occur at a rate of one per 300 linear feet of paving. In addition, a minimum of three 6" x 12" concrete cylinders per 25 yards of pour will be taken with a minimum of three cylinders each day or as directed by the Inspector. One cylinder shall be broken at 7 days and the other two at 28 days. These cylinders shall test at a minimum of 4,000 psi at 28 days. The Contractor may have additional taken if desired to determine the strength of concrete in addition to a 7 day break and 28 day break. No concrete pavement with ponded or standing water over 1/8" deep will be accepted. The Owner reserves the right to perform any and all tests deemed necessary. In the event that rain or other conditions may have adversely affected the condition of the subgrade or base, additional tests may also be required by the Owner

Penalty for Deficient Pavement Thickness and Strength: Per the provisions of the Technical Specification for Construct Concrete Street Pavement.

Measurement:

This item shall be measured by the square yard completed and accepted.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for removal of existing sidewalk and preparing the subgrade; furnishing and placing all materials required; for reinforcing steel and expansion joint material; and for all manipulation, labor, tools, equipment and incidentals necessary to complete the work, all in accordance with the plans and these specifications.

TS-16 CONSTRUCT 8" CONCRETE DRIVEWAY - BID ITEM 16

Description:

This item shall govern for the installation of new reinforced concrete driveway as shown on the *City of Mesquite General Design Standards*, *Paving Standard Details* and as directed by the Owner.

Materials:

<u>Concrete</u> shall have a 28-day minimum compressive strength of 4000 psi, containing 6 sacks per cubic yard minimum, with 1" to 3" slump for machine pours and 3" to 5" slump for hand pours. All materials and requirements for concrete shall conform to the requirements of the current NCTCOG Item "Portland Cement Concrete Pavement" with the exception that fly ash may be substituted for up to 20% of the cement content requirement at 1 to 1.25 cement to fly ash substitution rate. Concrete temperature cannot exceed 100 degrees F at time of placement and cannot be placed unless the ambient temperature is 35 degrees and rising.

Reinforcing shall conform to ASTM A 615 and be a minimum grade of 60 per ASTM A 370. Reinforcement may be rejected for failure to meet the following: reinforcement exceeding the allowable variations; reinforcement with a coating of dirt, loose scale, paint, oil, or other foreign substance which would prevent the bonding of the concrete and reinforcement; reinforcement not bent in accordance with the standard details; or twisted bars. Reinforcement shall be stored above the ground surface upon skids, platforms, or other supports, and shall be protected from mechanical injury and surface deterioration caused by exposure to the conditions producing rust.

Reinforcing shall be No. 4 deformed bars, and dowels will be placed in accordance with the City of Mesquite *General Design Standards*, *Paving Standard Details*.

White Curing compound is to be applied, per manufacturer's recommendations, to all exposed concrete surfaces (including back-of-curbs) immediately after completion of finishing operations, per ASTM C-309, Type 2, NCTCOG Section 303.2.13.1.1. The compound shall be delivered to the jobsite in the manufacturer's original containers only, which shall be clearly labeled.

<u>Expansion joint</u> materials shall consist of pre-molded asphalt board tested in accordance with ASTM D 545 Test Methods for Preformed Expansion Joint Fillers for Concrete Construction (Non-extruding and Resilient Types).

Construction Methods:

Standard residential concrete driveways and commercial concrete driveways shall have a minimum thickness of 6" and 8", respectively. Sidewalk constructed in driveway approach sections shall have a minimum thickness equal to the driveway approach. The construction of the driveway approach shall include any variable height curb. All equipment and tools which are used for material handling and performing all parts of the work must meet the approval of the Owner. The equipment must be kept in full and good working order. No vehicle traffic shall be permitted on newly paved areas for seven days after pour or until 3000 psi is achieved.

The contractor shall do all necessary filling, leveling, and fine grading required to bring the subgrade to the exact grades needed for repair. Sand may not be used as fill or level-up material under any pavement. Approved fill and level-up material is crushed concrete Flexible Base per TXDOT Item No. 247, Grade 1, Type D. The subgrade shall be compacted using City approved small sheep's foot rollers, or vibratory plate compactors or other mechanical compaction equipment approved by the City. The subgrade and all level-up material must be compacted to 95% standard proctor density with a moisture content of 0% to plus 6% of optimum moisture. Moisture level must be maintained by wetting, until placing of concrete. All fill shall have densities taken at the interval and locations determined by the City Public Works Construction Inspector.

Use wood or metal forms that are straight, free of warp, and of a depth equal to the thickness of the finished work. Forms shall be of a section satisfactory to the Owner, securely staked to the line and grade, and maintained in a true position during the depositing of concrete.

All steel reinforcement shall be accurately placed as shown on the standard details and held in place during progress of concreting so as to not be moved out of true position. All reinforcement necessary for a section of concrete shall be placed and approved by the Owner before any concrete is poured in the section. Reinforcing steel bar laps are to be 30 bar diameters or 15" per ACI, section 12.15, whichever is greater. Care shall be exercised to keep all steel in its proper locations. When placed in the work, the reinforcement shall be free from dirt, loose rust, scale, painting, oil, or other foreign material.

All concrete must be mechanically vibrated. Concrete shall be deposited so as to maintain a horizontal surface and shall be thoroughly and continuously worked into all spaces and around the reinforcement so as to form a dense void less mass. The driveway location, layout, and width shall match the existing driveway conditions. Where sidewalk is present, the accessible path must not be obstructed by curb and must not exceed 2% cross slope. Depth of pavement in curb and gutter section adjacent to the driveway shall be equal in thickness with the street pavement. No extra payment will be made for increased thickness of the driveway in the curb and gutter area. This shall be considered subsidiary.

Concrete driveway approaches shall be finished to a true, even surface. They shall be troweled and then broomed to obtain a smooth uniform broom finish. Joint and sides shall be edged with suitable tools.

Expansion joints shall be placed as shown on the standard details. Joints shall be formed using preformed expansion joint material of an approved type and shaped to the section. Expansion material shall be placed around all obstructions protruding through driveways.

After the construction work has been completed, the Contractor shall remove all debris, trash, excess materials, forms, stakes, etc. from the premises. The site shall be left with a neat appearance. All excavation shall be backfilled, and all excess excavated materials shall be disposed of.

Testing: Concrete driveway paving shall be tested for both depth and strength. Most current ASTM specifications shall govern testing methods as listed above. Concrete paving shall have a 4" core taken by the Contractor's lab and tested for both depth and 28 day strength. Locations shall be determined by the City Public Works Construction Inspector and occur at a rate of one per 300 linear feet of paving. In addition, a minimum of three 6" x 12" concrete cylinders per 25 yards of pour will be taken with a minimum of three cylinders each day or as directed by the Inspector. One cylinder shall be broken at 7 days and the other two at 28 days. These cylinders shall test at a minimum of 4,000 psi at 28 days. The Contractor may have additional taken if desired to determine the strength of concrete in addition to a 7 day break and 28 day break. No concrete pavement with ponded or standing water over 1/8" deep will be accepted. The Owner reserves the right to perform any and all tests deemed necessary. In the event that rain or other conditions may have adversely affected the condition of the subgrade or base, additional tests may also be required by the Owner

Penalty for Deficient Pavement Thickness and Strength: Per the provisions of the Technical Specification for Construct Concrete Street Pavement.

Measurement:

This item will be measured by the square yard completed and accepted. Curbs on driveways shall not be measured separately but shall be included as part of the driveway cost.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for preparing the subgrade, furnishing and placing all materials required; for reinforcing steel and expansion joint material; and for all manipulation, labor, tools, equipment and incidentals necessary to complete the work, all in accordance with the details and these specifications.

TS-17 CONSTRUCT 36" SANITARY SEWER - BID ITEM 17

Description:

This item shall be for furnishing and installing 36" sanitary sewer pipe at the locations and grades as indicated in the plans.

Materials:

Materials shall be in accordance with the City of Mesquite General Design Standards, Wastewater-1 through Wastewater-4 and the City of Mesquite Approved Materials List for Wastewater. Pipe shall be fiber reinforced polymer (FRP) (fiberglass) and meet requirements of ASTM D3262 / ASTM 4161. Contractor shall submit design calculations for wall thickness to the Owner for review and approval.

Measurement:

This item will be measure by the linear foot installed and accepted, measured horizontally from center of fitting to center to fitting or end of pipe..

Payment:

Payment shall include furnishing, hauling and laying of pipe shown on the plans, trench excavation, and backfilling, including embedment material as specified.

TS-18 CONSTRUCT 6' DIA ARMOROCK POLYMER MH - BID ITEM 18

Description:

This item shall be for the construction of 6-foot diameter precast polymer concrete sanitary sewer manhole (Armorock™ or approved other) at the locations specified in the plans and in accordance with all requirements set forth in *City of Mesquite General Design Standards* and *Approved Sanitary Sewer Materials List* for materials, testing, safety, backfill and other items.

Materials:

Materials shall be in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations and shall meet or exceed the load and strength requirements of ASTM C 478 and ASTM C 857, reinforced in accordance with ACI 440.1R-15. Contractor shall submit sealed drawings by a licensed Professional Engineer in the state of Texas. Polymer concrete mix design shall consist of thermosetting resin, sand, and aggregate. No Portland cement shall be allowed as part of the mix design matrix. All sand and aggregate shall be inert in an acidic environment. All materials needed for grouting and patching will be a polyester mortar compound provided by the manufacturer or an approved equal by the manufacturer and/or Owner. Reinforcement shall use acid resistant reinforcement (FRP Bar) in accordance with ACI 440.1R-06 as applicable for polymer concrete design. Riser sections shall be joined with bell and spigot / ship-lap design seamed with butyl mastic and/or rubber gaskets (ASTM C 990) so that on assembly, manhole base, riser and top section make a continuous and uniform manhole structure.

Construction Methods:

All manholes shall have an external Riser Wrap by PSI or approved equal. All manhole covers must be composite bolt-down type, with a 30" clear opening; minimum AASHTO HS-20 load rated; and words and logo per City of Mesquite standard detail. Manholes will have a standard cone. Setting the manhole rim elevations at the new paving grades as required shall be included in the cost of this bid item.

Measurement:

Measurement shall be per each manhole installed.

Payment:

Payment shall be made on a unit price basis for each 6-foot diameter precast polymer concrete sanitary sewer manhole constructed, including excavation, backfill and connecting new and existing mains. Contractor's unit price shall be full compensation for all materials, equipment, labor and other incidentals necessary to complete the work as specified.

TS-19 CONCRETE PRESSURE PIPE TYPE SURCHARGE - BID ITEM 19

Description:

This item provides for an surcharge to cover all additional work, labor and materials required to perform the required valve removal and/or replacement if it is determined in the field that the existing pipe type is prestressed concrete lined cylinder pipe (L-301) or prestressed concrete embedded cylinder pipe (E-301) rather than the expected bar wrapped cylinder pipe (B-303), pretensioned concrete cylinder pipe (P-303) or American concrete pipe (P-381). This includes but is not limited to locating, excavating and connecting to existing pipe joints and the additional excavation, pavement removal, pavement replacement, and all materials necessary to make the connections and perform the valve installation/replacement.

Materials:

None specified.

Measurement:

This item shall be made on a unit price basis per each valve location.

Payment:

Payment shall be total compensation for furnishing all materials, tools, equipment, labor, and any other incidentals necessary to complete the work.

TS-20 CONSTRUCT 24" DUCTILE IRON WATER MAIN - BID ITEM 20

Description:

This item shall be for furnishing and installing 24-inch ductile iron water main at the locations and grades as indicated in the plans.

Materials:

Materials shall be in accordance with the City of Mesquite General Design Standards, Water-1 through Water-3 and in accordance with City of Mesquite Approved Materials List for Water. Pipe shall be ductile iron pipe, Class 52, 200 psi minimum.

Measurement:

Measurement shall be made on the basis of price bid per linear foot installed and accepted, measured horizontally from center of fitting to center to fitting or end of pipe without any deduction for the length of intermediate fittings, specials, or valves.

Payment:

Payment shall include furnishing, hauling and laying of pipe shown on the plans; ductile iron fittings shown on the plans; thrust blocking; mechanical joint restraint; flowable fill, and pumping where necessary; trench excavation and backfilling, including embedment material as specified; disinfection; testing; disposal of surplus materials,; and all other materials and labor required to perform the work as required. All fittings must be compact DI fittings.

TS-21 8" PVC WATER LINE IN 14" STEEL CASING PIPE (BY OTHER THAN OPEN CUT) - BID ITEM 21

Description:

This item shall be for furnishing and installing 8-inch PVC water pipe by boring or jacking at the locations and grades as indicated in the plans and in accordance with all requirements set forth in City of Mesquite General Design Standards, for materials, testing, safety, backfill and other items. Boring shall be performed in accordance with all requirements set forth in City of Mesquite Utility Bore Detail and shall include placement of 200-psi pressure grout and backfilling of bore pits with Crushed Concrete Flexible Based (TXDOT Item 247, Grade 1, and Type D).

Materials:

Materials shall be in accordance with the City of Mesquite General Design Standards, General Detail-2 and Water-1 through Water-3, and in accordance with City of Mesquite Approved Materials List for Water. Carrier pipe shall be 8-inch C900 Class 305 (DR-14) PVC water pipe. Casing pipe shall be smooth steel following ASTM A36 requirements with a minimum wall thickness of 0.3125 inches and a minimum yield strength of 36,000 psi.

Measurement:

Measurement shall be made on the basis of price bid per linear foot installed and accepted, measured horizontally from center of fitting to center to fitting or end of pipe without any deduction for the length of intermediate fittings, specials, or valves.

Payment:

Payment shall include excavation, embedment, backfill, compaction, haul off and lawful disposal of excess pit spoils, disinfection, any testing required by the City, and all other materials and labor required to perform the work as required.

TS-22 8" PVC WATER LINE (OPEN CUT) - BID ITEM 22

Description:

This item shall be for furnishing and installing 8-inch PVC water pipe at the locations and grades as indicated in the plans.

Materials:

Materials shall be in accordance with the City of Mesquite General Design Standards, Water-1 through Water-3, and in accordance with City of Mesquite Approved Materials List for Water. Pipe shall be 8-inch C900 Class 305 (DR-14) PVC water pipe.

Measurement:

Measurement shall be made on the basis of price bid per linear foot installed and accepted, measured horizontally from center of fitting to center to fitting or end of pipe without any deduction for the length of intermediate fittings, specials, or valves.

Payment:

Payment shall include furnishing, hauling and laying of pipe shown on the plans; ductile iron fittings shown on the plans; thrust blocking; mechanical joint restrain; flowable fill, and pumping where necessary; trench excavation and backfilling, including embedment material as specified; disinfection; testing; disposal of surplus materials,; and all other materials and labor required to perform the work as required. All fittings must be compact ductile iron.

TS-23 JOINT RESTRAINT (DUCTILE/CAST IRON PIPE) - BID ITEM 23

Description:

This item shall be for the installation of joint restraint for ductile iron or cast iron pipe within the existing pipe length limits indicated in the plans. Contractor shall locate and excavate the unrestrained joints as required and install mechanical joint restraint (Megalug or approved other).

Any new embedment required due to excavation shall be in accordance with the City's General Design Standards, including crushed concrete flexible base compacted to 95% standard proctor density.

Contractor shall backfill excavated trench area in accordance with the City's General Design Standards, including crushed concrete flexible base compacted to 95% standard proctor density under paving and clean fill (native material) compacted to a density of 95% standard proctor at a moisture content of 0% to plus 6% of optimum moisture not under pavement.

Pavement removal and replacement shall be by separate pay items. Steel plates shall be required for excavated areas until completely backfilled and shall be considered subsidiary.

Contractor shall provide machinery, tools, and equipment necessary for proper execution of the work in the time frame allowed. Owner shall approve such equipment as to type and condition prior to the Contractor beginning construction operations on which the equipment is to be used. The equipment must be kept in full and good working order.

Materials:

None specified.

Measurement:

Measurement shall be made on a unit price basis for each joint restrained.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for all materials, equipment, labor and other incidentals necessary to complete the work as specified, including excavation, any required embedment, and

backfill.

TS-24 JOINT RESTRAINT (RCCP) - BID ITEM 24

Description:

This item shall be for the installation of joint restraint for concrete pressure pipe within the existing pipe length limits indicated in the plans. Contractor shall locate and excavate the unrestrained joints as required and perform complete circumferential welds prior to installation of the new valves. Contractor shall remove enough of the exterior mortar at the joint to provide access for the weld. Contractor shall use a 5/16" or 1/2" diameter mild steel filler rod to reduce the gap between bell and spigot steel, as necessary. Contractor shall make the welds in a series of 6-inch long segments to avoid overheating the existing rubber gasket. Welds shall be water tight, high quality and of sufficient penetration to develop the strength of the steel cylinder. Contractor shall use a wrapper strapped around the pipe and over the joint to grout the exterior joint space.

Any new embedment required due to excavation shall be in accordance with the City's General Design Standards, including crushed concrete flexible base compacted to 95% standard proctor density.

Contractor shall backfill excavated trench area in accordance with the City's General Design Standards, including crushed concrete flexible base compacted to 95% standard proctor density under paving and clean fill (native material) compacted to a density of 95% standard proctor at a moisture content of 0% to plus 6% of optimum moisture not under pavement.

Pavement removal and replacement shall be by separate pay items. Steel plates shall be required for excavated areas until completely backfilled and shall be considered subsidiary.

Contractor shall provide machinery, tools, and equipment necessary for proper execution of the work in the time frame allowed. Owner shall approve such equipment as to type and condition prior to the Contractor beginning construction operations on which the equipment is to be used. The equipment must be kept in full and good working order.

Contractor shall ensure the mortar removal methods do not chip or damage surrounding water line pipe or appurtenances, including any rod or wire reinforcement, not scheduled for removal. If any existing water line beyond the removal limits is damaged or destroyed, it shall be repaired only by a method approved by the Owner, or, if in the opinion of the Owner, a satisfactory repair cannot be made, the damaged pipe shall be removed and replaced at the Contractor's entire expense.

Materials:

Filler rod shall be low-carbon steel (ASTM A36 or ASTM A283).

Measurement:

Measurement shall be made on a unit price basis for each joint restrained.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for all materials, equipment, labor and other incidentals necessary to complete the work as specified, including excavation, welding, any required embedment, and backfill.

TS-25 EXTRA DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS (NOT SHOWN ON PLANS) - BID ITEM 25 Description:

This item is for furnishing and installing ductile iron fittings that are **NOT** shown on the plans or associated with temporary connections. All ductile iron fittings shown on the plans shall be considered subsidiary to other bid items. All fittings must be compact ductile iron.

Materials:

All fittings shall conform to City of Mesquite Approved Materials List.

Measurement:

This item shall be made on a unit price basis per each ton.

Payment:

Payment shall be total compensation for furnishing all materials, tools, equipment, labor, and any other incidentals necessary to complete the work.

TS-26 TEMPORARY 2" HDPE WATER MAIN - BID ITEM 26

Description:

This item shall be for furnishing, installing, chlorinating, connecting, maintaining and removing a 2" temporary water main. The temporary main shall be new or acceptable used HDPE water pipe or other pipe material acceptable to the Owner installed as specified by the plans or as required. Contractor shall furnish and install valves on the temporary main at locations designated by the Owner so that the temporary main can be shut off independently. A blow off valve shall be located at the end of the temporary main.

In the event that temperatures fall, Contractor shall take the necessary steps to prevent the temporary main from freezing.

The temporary 2" water main will be chlorinated after installation, and service shall not be transferred to the temporary mains until the water in the temporary main has been checked and approved by the Owner.

This item includes connections to existing fire hydrants or water lines as may be required to charge the temporary main and connections to existing fire hydrants to charge existing water lines.

In general, the temporary main shall be laid along the side of the roadway adjacent to the curb line edge of the pavement. Install temporary main in ditches wherever possible. At locations where the pipe is subject to minimal traffic, such as at driveways, residential streets, or where approved by the City, the pipe shall be adequately protected by "ramping". Ramping shall be provided through use of an approved method such as a combination of 2'x4' lumber and cold mix asphalt or other approved material. Alternately, the contractor shall furnish, install and maintain prefabricated hose ramps/bridges made of aluminum, steel or other approved material and capable of safely supporting AASHTO HS-20 loading. When "ramping" is installed across streets, the contractor shall furnish, install and maintain temporary street signs to adequately warn drivers of the ramps. This shall include, at a minimum, placing a CW8-1 sign (BUMP) with supplemental plaque showing "AHEAD" approximately 120 feet in advance of the "ramping" and a CW8-1 sign at the hose bridge/ramp (for both roadway directions).

All temporary mains that cross handicapped ramps, major intersections, or arterial streets shall be installed by bore below the surface grade.

Materials:

None specified

Measurement:

This item is paid on a unit price basis per linear foot of 2" water main installed.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation to complete the work as specified. This project shall include all labor, equipment, materials, excavation, backfilling, connections, chlorinating, maintaining, removing, ramping, signage, boring and all other associated work necessary to complete in place as required.

TS-27 TEMPORARY 2" WATER SERVICE TO EXISTING METER - BID ITEM 27

Description:

This item shall be for furnishing, installing, chlorinating, connecting, maintaining and removing a 2" temporary water service. The water service shall connect from the temporary main to the existing meter box on the service line, which is to be located by the Contractor. All water services shall be continuous from the corporation valve at the temporary main to the angle meter valve (No Couplings). Service lines shall be "goose necked". Crimping or excessive bending of the copper service shall not be allowed.

In the event that temperatures fall, Contractor shall take the necessary steps to prevent the temporary services from freezing.

Materials:

None specified

Measurement:

This item is paid on a unit price basis per each 2" temporary service installed.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation to complete the work as specified. This project shall include all labor, equipment, materials, excavation, backfilling, chlorinating, maintaining, removing and all other associated work necessary to complete in place.

TS-28 CONSTRUCT STAMPED CONCRETE MEDIAN PAVEMENT - BID ITEM 28

Description:

This item shall govern for the installation of new dyed & stamped concrete pavement conforming to the lines, grades, locations and designs as shown on the plans and standard details (Stamped Concrete Median Pavement) or as established by the Owner.

Materials:

Materials shall be in conformance with TS-3 CONSTRUCT 6" CONCRETE STREET PAVEMENT below. In addition, concrete shall be dyed Antique Red using pure, concentrated mineral pigments specially processed for mixing integrally into concrete and meeting the requirements of ASTM C979. Color shall be added at a rate specified by the manufacturer.

Construction Methods:

Construction methods shall be in conformance with TS-3 CONSTRUCT 6" CONCRETE STREET PAVEMENT below. In addition, Contractor shall apply concrete stamping to the finished concrete median pavement. The pattern shall be Running Bond. The brick size shall be 7 13/16" x 3 7/8" x 2 3/8". Contractor shall provide concrete stamping mats used for construction to the City upon completion of construction.

Measurement:

This item is paid on a unit price basis per each square foot of stamped concrete median pavement constructed.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for all materials, equipment, labor and other incidentals necessary to complete the work as specified. Doweling into curb and construction of the toe wall/thickened edge as shown in the Stamped Concrete Median Pavement standard detail are incidental to this bid item.

TS-29 CONSTRUCT 6" CONCRETE STREET PAVEMENT - BID ITEM 29

This item shall be for the construction of concrete street pavement (all types) made necessary by the construction of water and wastewater facilities that require temporary cuts. Such replacement shall be in compliance with the Plans, these Specifications, and City of Mesquite *General Design Standards*.

Materials:

<u>Concrete</u> shall have a 28 day minimum compressive strength of 4000 psi, containing 6 sacks per cubic yard minimum, with 1" to 3" slump for machine pours and 3" to 5" slump for hand pours. All materials and requirements for concrete shall conform to the requirements of the current NCTCOG Item "Portland Cement Concrete Pavement" with the exception that fly ash may be substituted for up to 20% of the cement content requirement at 1 to 1.25 cement to fly ash substitution rate. Concrete temperature cannot exceed 100 degrees F at time of placement and cannot be placed unless the ambient temperature is 35 degrees and rising.

Reinforcing shall conform to ASTM A 615 and be a minimum grade of 60 per ASTM A 370. Reinforcement may be rejected for failure to meet the following: reinforcement exceeding the allowable variations; reinforcement with a coating of dirt, loose scale, paint, oil, or other foreign substance which would prevent the bonding of the concrete and reinforcement; reinforcement not bent in accordance with the standard details; or twisted bars. Reinforcement shall be stored above the ground surface upon skids, platforms, or other supports, and shall be protected from mechanical injury and surface deterioration caused by exposure to the conditions producing rust.

<u>White Curing compound</u> is to be applied, per manufacturer's recommendations, to all exposed concrete surfaces (including back-of-curbs) immediately after completion of finishing operations, per ASTM C-309, Type 2, NCTCOG Section 303.2.13.1.1. The compound shall be delivered to the jobsite in the manufacturer's original containers only, which shall be clearly labeled.

<u>Joints</u> shall be filled with hot-poured rubber joint sealing compound that conforms to ASTM D 3406 and meets the requirements of NCTCOG 303.2.14.1.1.(a) Hot Poured Polymer Sealant Requirements.

<u>Expansion joint</u> materials shall consist of pre-molded asphalt board tested in accordance with ASTM D 545 Test Methods for Preformed Expansion Joint Fillers for Concrete Construction (Non-extruding and Resilient Types).

Construction Methods:

Contractor shall provide machinery, tools, and equipment necessary for proper execution of the work in the time frame allowed. Owner shall approve such equipment as to type and condition prior to the Contractor beginning construction operations on which the equipment is to be used. The equipment must be kept in full and good working order.

The Contractor shall do all necessary filling, leveling, and fine grading required to bring the subgrade to the exact grades needed for repair. Sand may not be used as fill or level-up material under any pavement. Approved fill and level-up material is crushed concrete Flexible Base per TXDOT Item No. 247, Grade 1, Type D. The subgrade shall be compacted using City approved small sheep's foot rollers, or vibratory plate compactors or other mechanical compaction equipment approved by the City. The subgrade and all level-up material must be compacted to 95% standard proctor density with a moisture content of 0% to plus 6% of optimum moisture. Moisture level must be maintained by wetting, until placing of concrete. All fill shall have densities taken at the interval and locations determined by the City Public Works Construction Inspector.

Forms shall be straight, free of warp and kinks, and of a depth equal to the thickness of the finished work. Forms shall be a minimum of 10' in length for each individual form or of a section satisfactory to the Owner, securely staked to the line and grade, and maintained in a true position during the

depositing of concrete. Forms shall be of ample strength and shall be provided with adequate devices for secure setting so that when in place they shall withstand the impact and vibration of equipment imposed thereupon without appreciable springing or settlement. Forms shall be thoroughly cleaned and oiled before each use. Forms shall remain in place until the concrete has taken its final set. Removal of forms shall be followed immediately by banking earth against the sides of the slab and wetting it. Care shall be taken in removing forms to prevent spalling or other damage of the concrete. All forms showing a deviation of 1/8" in 10' from a straight line shall be rejected.

Reinforcing for street pavement replacement shall consist of No. 4 bars on 18" centers, both ways, and dowels will be placed in accordance with the City of Mesquite General Design Standards. Contractor shall drill dowel holes using approved equipment. Dowel holes shall be drilled at middepth of the slab. The holes shall be on alignment, level with the top surface of the slab, with minimal wandering. In some instances, dowel locations may have to be adjusted due to field conditions such as cracks, heavy mesh reinforcement, or other obstructions at the plan location for a dowel hole. After drilling holes, Contractor shall clean out the dowel holes with compressed air at a minimum 125 psi. Contractor shall insert the air nozzle to the back of the hole to force out all dust and debris, which might prevent the epoxy from bonding to the concrete. Contractor shall occasionally check the air for oil and moisture contamination from the compressor. To place the anchoring material, Contractor shall use a long nozzle that feeds the material to the back of the hole, assuring that the anchoring material will flow forward along the entire dowel embedment length during insertion. Contractor shall not use any method that attempts to pour or push the anchoring material into the hole. The injection wand on the installation unit shall contain an augertype mixing spindle that mixes the two-part epoxy. Contractor shall insert dowels by twisting the dowel about one full revolution to evenly distribute the material around the dowel's circumference. Contractor shall verify that the dowels are installed to the proper insertion depth and to the correct orientation (perpendicular to the vertical face of pavement). A plastic grout-retention disk shall be used to prevent the escape of epoxy. Some anchoring material shall be visible from the sides of the disk after installation to ensure proper amount of epoxy was placed in the hole. Dipping dowels into epoxy and inserting the dowel into the drilled hole is not acceptable.

Standard pavement reinforcing steel bar laps are to be 30 bar diameters or 15" per ACI 318, section 12.15, whichever is greater. All bars shall be wired at their intersections and at all laps or splices. All reinforcement necessary for a section of concrete shall be placed and approved by the Owner before any concrete is poured in the section. The pavement reinforcing steel shall be supported on chairs and care shall be exercised to keep all steel in its proper locations. After the reinforcing steel is securely installed above the subgrade, there shall be no loading imposed upon (or walking upon) the bar mats or individual bars before or during the placing or finishing of the concrete. When placed in the work, the reinforcement shall be free from dirt, loose rust, scale, painting, oil, or other foreign material.

Contractor shall match existing grades for repairs. If the line and grade are not approved by the City Engineer or his representative, the Contractor will reset a new line and grade at no additional cost. The concrete shall be rapidly deposited on the subgrade in successive batches and shall be distributed to the required depth and for the entire width of the pavement by approved methods. The placing operation shall be continuous and the concrete shall be mechanically vibrated by approved mechanical vibrators operated ahead of the finishing operations and designed to vibrate the concrete internally and/or from the surface. Complete and satisfactory consolidation of the concrete pavement is an important requirement of this specification.

No concrete shall be placed on a frozen subgrade. <u>NO CONCRETE PAVEMENT WITH PONDED OR STANDING WATER OVER 1/8" DEEP WILL BE ACCEPTED</u>. No vehicle traffic shall be permitted on newly paved areas for a minimum of seven days after pour or until 3000 psi has been achieved.

Immediately after finishing all concrete surfaces, the surfaces shall be finished to a true, even surface and the required line, grade, and section with all surface voids filled. Finish all concrete street paving wider than 37' with a tine finish (1"), perpendicular to traffic flow. Broom curb and gutter parallel to traffic 12" from curb. The edges of slabs and all joints requiring edging shall be carefully tooled with a suitable tool at the time the concrete begins to take its "set" and becomes non-workable. Before street pavement will be accepted and reopened, all foreign debris shall be removed and pavement cleaned.

Contractor shall measure the transverse and lateral profile of the finished riding surface using a 10-ft straightedge to measure and evaluate the ride quality of the pavement surfaces. The texture and ride quality of the new pavement should closely match of that of the existing pavement to which it connects. Contractor shall use an approved grinding or other acceptable method to correct localized roughness and surface areas that have more than 1/8-in variation between any 2 contacts on a 10-ft straight edge. This shall be considered incidental to this bid item.

This item shall include sawing and sealing of the pavement expansion and contraction joints. Contractor shall provide expansion joints at street intersections, the end of alley approaches, and spaced at a maximum of 600', such that no joint shall fall in a driveway approach. Expansion joints shall be installed perpendicularly to the surface and to the centerline of the pavement. Joints shall be formed using 3/4" City-approved expansion material and shaped to the section. All joints shall be filled with hot poured rubber joint sealing compound. Contraction joints shall be installed every 20'. The contraction joint shall be 1/4" (minimum) in width and have a depth equal to 1/4 of the pavement thickness. Extend all sawed contraction joints in streets through private drive approaches to the first expansion joint. Smooth dowel bars shall be used at existing or proposed expansion joints. Contraction joints shall have deformed dowels.

After the construction work has been completed, the Contractor shall remove all debris, trash, excess materials, forms, stakes, etc. from the premises. The site shall be left with a neat appearance. All excavation shall be backfilled, and all excess excavated materials shall be disposed of.

Testing: Concrete street paving shall be tested for both depth and strength. Most current ASTM specifications shall govern testing methods as listed above. Concrete paving shall have a 4" core taken by the Contractor's lab and tested for both depth and 28 day strength. Locations shall be determined by the City Public Works Construction Inspector and occur at a rate of one per 300 linear feet of paving. In addition, a minimum of three 6" x 12" concrete cylinders per 25 yards of pour will be taken with a minimum of three cylinders each day or as directed by the Inspector. One cylinder shall be broken at 7 days and the other two at 28 days. These cylinders shall test at a minimum of 4000 psi at 28 days. The Contractor may have additional taken if desired to determine the strength of concrete in addition to a 7 day break and 28 day break. No concrete pavement with ponded or standing water over 1/8" deep will be accepted. The Owner reserves the right to perform any and all tests deemed necessary. In the event that rain or other conditions may have adversely affected the condition of the subgrade or base, additional tests may also be required by the Owner.

Penalty for Deficient Pavement Thickness and Strength: Where the pavement thickness is deficient from that called for by the plans or specifications, as determined by core test set up in the contract, the Contractor is responsible for additional core tests to determine actual limits of deficient pavement thickness. The length of the area of such deficient thickness shall be determined by additional cores at intervals of 10 feet along the length of the pavement in each direction until cores are obtained which are of at least plan thickness. The width of such area shall be the entire pour width. Contract payment will be made at an adjusted rate based on the following table:

Deficiency in Thickness	Proportional Part of Contract	
(inches)	Price Allowed	
00.01.010	400 B	
00.0 to 0.10	100 Percent	
0.11 to 0.20	90 Percent	
0.21 to 0.30	80 Percent	
0.31 to 0.40	70 Percent	
0.41 to 0.50	60 Percent	

Any area of pavement found deficient in thickness by more than 0.75 inch shall be removed and replaced by the Contractor at his entire expense for the width of the street and as directed by the Engineer.

If, in the judgment of the City Engineer, the area of such deficiency should not be removed and replaced, there shall be no payment for the area retained. If, in the judgment of the City Engineer, the area of such deficiency warrants removal, the area shall be removed and replaced, at the Contractor's entire expense, with concrete of thickness and strength shown on the plans.

Where the pavement strength is deficient from that called for by the plans or specifications, as determined by core tests set up in the contract, the Contractor is responsible for additional core tests as specified by the Engineer to determine actual limits of deficient pavement strength. Contract payment will be made at the following rate:

Deficiency in Strength	Proportional Part of Contract	
(psi)	Price Allowed	
\(\frac{1}{2}\)		
0 - 150	80 Percent	
150 – 300	60 Percent	

Any area of pavement found deficient in strength by more than 300 psi shall be removed and replaced by the Contractor at his entire expense for the width of the street and as directed by the Engineer.

If, in the judgment of the Engineer, the area of such deficiency should not be removed and replaced, there shall be no payment for the area retained. If, in the judgment of the Engineer, the area of such deficiency warrants removal, the area shall be removed and replaced, at the Contractor's entire expense, with concrete of the thickness and strength shown on the plans.

Measurement:

This item shall be measured by the square yard of 6" concrete street pavement constructed.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for construction of concrete pavement and preparing the subgrade, furnishing and placing all materials required; for reinforcing steel and joint material; and for all manipulation, labor, tools, equipment and incidentals necessary to complete the work, all in accordance with the plans and these specifications.

TS-30 CONSTRUCT 8" CONCRETE STREET PAVEMENT (HIGH EARLY) - BID ITEM 30 Description:

This item shall be for the construction of concrete street pavement (high early strength) made necessary by the construction of water and wastewater facilities that require temporary cuts. Such replacement shall be in compliance with the Plans, these Specifications, and City of Mesquite *General Design Standards*.

Materials and Construction Methods:

Materials and construction methods shall be in accordance with TS-30 CONSTRUCT 6" CONCRETE STREET PAVEMENT above and with the following additional requirements:

High early concrete must conform to the requirements of ITEM 360 CONCRETE PAVEMENT and Item 421 HYDRAULIC CEMENT CONCRETE of the Texas Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Construction and Maintenance of Highways, Streets and Bridges 2014 edition. The contractor must submit for approval a high early strength mix design for a minimum of 3,600 psi compressive strength at the end of 24 hours and a minimum of 4,2000 psi compressive strength at 28 days.

Measurement:

This item shall be measured by the square yard of 8" concrete street pavement (high early) constructed.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for construction of concrete pavement and preparing the subgrade, furnishing and placing all materials required; for reinforcing steel and joint material; and for all manipulation, labor, tools, equipment and incidentals necessary to complete the work, all in accordance with the plans and these specifications.

TS-31 FLOWABLE BACKFILL - BID ITEM 31

Description:

This item shall be for furnishing, transporting, mixing, testing and installing flowable fill at the locations shown on the plans.

Materials:

Flowable fill shall be low strength (excavatable) between 80 psi and 150 psi at 28 days, Contractor shall submit a mix design for approval. Provide fine aggregate that will stay in suspension in the mortar to the extent required for proper flow and that meets the following graduation requirements: 100 percent passing 3/4" sieve and 0-30 percent passing a #200 sieve. Portland cement shall be in conformance with *North Central Texas Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction, Fifth Edition (NCTCOG)* Specification Item 303.

Construction Methods:

Contractor shall provide a means of filling the entire void area and be able to demonstrate this has been accomplished. Prevent the movement of any inserted structure from its designated location. Remove and replace or correct the problem if voids are found in the fill or any of the requirements are not met as shown on the plans without additional cost to the Owner.

Measurement:

This Item will be measured by the cubic yard of flowable fill material placed and accepted.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for furnishing, hauling, and placing materials and for equipment, tools, labor, and incidentals to complete the work as specified and directed by the Owner.

TS-32 TRENCH SAFETY DESIGN - BID ITEM 32

Description:

This item shall be for furnishing all geotechnical, structural, and other design considerations necessary for trench safety design in accordance with the City of Mesquite *Water General Design Standards, Sheets 1 thru 5*. The design is to be signed and sealed by a Texas registered engineer. This design shall be in accordance with the Department of Labor criteria, OSHA safety and health standards (29CFR 1926/1010), and the Texas trench safety failures. The design shall provide for

safety of all personnel and the public present in or adjacent to any trench constructed under the scope of this contract. This item shall also be for furnishing, installing, operating, maintaining, and adjusting trench safety features, processes, and equipment as outlined in the trench safety design.

Materials:

Materials shall include any trench safety shoring materials and mechanisms necessary to comply with Trench Safety Plan.

Measurement:

Measurement shall be made on a lump sum basis for trench safety design regardless of the depth.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for all materials, equipment, labor and other incidentals necessary to complete the work as specified.

TS-33 IMPLEMENTATION OF TRENCH SAFETY PLAN - BID ITEM 33

Description:

This item shall be for furnishing, installing, operating, maintaining, and adjusting trench safety features, processes, and equipment as outlined in the trench safety design.

Materials:

Materials shall include any trench safety shoring materials and mechanisms necessary to comply with the Trench Safety Plan.

Construction Methods:

Implementation shall comply with the Trench Safety Plan.

Measurement:

Measurement shall be made on a unit price basis per each linear foot of trench excavated regardless of the depth.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for all materials, equipment, labor and other incidentals necessary to complete the work as specified.

TS-34 SODDING OF DISTURBED AREAS - BID ITEM 34

Description:

This item shall govern for furnishing, hauling, and placement of sod (Bermuda grass, St. Augustine grass, or other approved grass) as directed by the City and in accordance with the requirements of this specification. Sodding shall comply with Section 02900 Landscaping found in the Appendix.

Materials:

If turf exists adjacent to the disturbed area, the Contractor shall match type of sod to the existing turf.

Measurement:

This item will be measured by the square yard of sodded area completed and accepted.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for furnishing and placing all materials required; for all staking, rolling and tamping; for all water; and for all manipulation, labor, tools, equipment and incidentals necessary to complete the work, all in accordance with the details and these specifications.

TS-35 EROSION CONTROL PLAN & IMPLEMENTATION - BID ITEM 35

Description:

This item shall be for all erosion control, including development of erosion control plans and furnishing, maintaining, and removing storm water pollution prevention devices throughout the duration of the project. Inlet protection of the first downstream inlet at each location, segments of silt fencing, protection around stockpiles and stabilized construction entrances (for soil disturbing work in parkways) are anticipated.

Materials:

Materials shall include any storm water pollution prevention devices and mechanisms necessary to comply with Erosion Control Plan

Measurement:

Measurement shall be made on a lump sum basis.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for all materials, equipment, labor and other incidentals necessary to complete the work as specified.

TS-36 BARRICADING & TRAFFIC CONTROL - BID ITEM 36

Description:

This item shall govern for barricading & traffic control in accordance with these specifications and as shown on the plans. This item includes the design, application, installation and implementation of traffic control.

At the preconstruction conference, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the City a Construction Sequencing and Traffic Control plan, in accordance with the City of Mesquite Work Zone Traffic Control Guidelines (Ordinance No. 3411 with amendments) and the TMUTCD. All barricades, fences, lights, danger signals, and other precautionary devices and measures shall conform to the City of Mesquite Work Zone Traffic Control Guidelines and Part VI of the Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. As deemed necessary, the City Representative may require the Contractor to provide and maintain additional traffic control devices at any time. Prior to beginning work the Contractor shall designate, in writing, a competent person who will be responsible and available on the project site or in the immediate area to insure compliance with the traffic control plan. The Contractor will not remove any regulatory signs, instructional signs, street name signs or other signs which have been erected by the City. If removal or relocation of traffic signs, traffic control equipment or other traffic control appurtenances is deemed necessary, the Contractor shall contact the City of Mesquite Traffic Engineering Division at (972) 216-4104.

One lane in each direction is to be kept open at all times on existing streets, except as necessary for short-term, temporary vicinity construction operations which would warrant adequate signs, barricades and flagmen as required by the current Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. Unless approved in writing, access to adjacent properties, driveways, alleys and intersecting streets shall be maintained at all times.

The Contractor's responsibility for maintenance of all traffic control devices shall not cease until the project is accepted by the City.

Measurement:

Measurement shall be made on a lump sum basis.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for all materials, equipment, labor and other incidentals necessary to complete the work as specified.

TS-37 BYPASS PLAN & IMPLEMENTATION - BID ITEM 37

Description:

This item shall be for providing a bypass plan and implementing the plan for the sanitary sewer main replacement portion of the project.

Materials:

None specified. Bypass plan and associated materials shall be approved by the City prior to construction.

Construction Methods:

The Contractor shall be responsible for continuity of sanitary sewer service to affected facilities during the execution of the work. If sewage backup occurs and enters buildings, the Contractor shall be responsible for clean-up, repair, property damage cost and claims.

Contractor shall install and operate bypass pumping equipment to maintain sewerage flow around the segment of pipe being rehabilitated and to prevent backup or overflow. The pumping system shall be of sufficient capacity to handle existing flow plus additional flow that may occur during a rainstorm. If pumping is required on a 24-hour basis, engines shall be equipped in a manner to keep noise to a minimum. Standby pumps shall be provided as required. Pumping shall be done by the Contractor in such manner as will not damage public or private property or create a nuisance or health menace. The pumped sewage shall be in an enclosed hose or pipe and shall be reinserted into the sanitary sewer system. Sewage shall not be allowed to free flow in gutters, streets or over sidewalks, etc. Nor shall any sewage be allowed to flow into the storm inlets or conduits. After the work has been completed, flow shall be restored to normal. Contractor may pump and haul sewer via vacuum truck to a downstream manhole at Contractor's discretion.

A recommended Bypass Pumping Route is presented in the construction plan set.

Estimated peak wet weather and peak dry weather flows are listed in million gallons per day (MGD) below:

Main Line GIS MH#2360 to GIS MH#2207
 (2009 Mesquite Wastewater Master Plan Update Asset Table MH 052520 to MH 052522)
 = 12.17 (wet) 4.35 (dry)

Measurement:

Measurement shall be made on a lump sum basis for bypass plan & implementation.

Payment:

Payment shall be full compensation for the work specified and includes all incidentals necessary

TS-38 IRRIGATION SYSTEM REPAIR (ALLOWANCE) - BID ITEM 38

Description:

This item includes repair and/or replacement of any existing irrigation systems damaged during construction activities. The Contractor shall provide testing of each irrigation system located along the construction site and properly repair and/or remove the system to fully functioning. Irrigation system repair shall comply with Section 02441 Irrigation System found in the Appendix.

Materials:

Materials shall be supplied as necessary to repair existing irrigation systems.

Payment:

Payment shall be per an allowance as per the bid form. Invoices will be required that shows the cost of materials and labor.

TS-39 MOBILIZATION (MAXIMUM OF 5% OF TOTAL BID) - BID ITEM 39

Description:

This item shall consist of the mobilization of personnel, equipment and supplies at the project site in preparation for beginning work on other contract items. Mobilization shall include, but is not limited to, Payment and Performance Bonds, required insurance, the movement of equipment, personnel, material supplies, etc., to the project site, and establishment of an office and other facilities, if necessary.

Materials:

None Specified.

Measurement:

Measurement shall be made on a lump sum basis.

Payment:

Payment shall be made on a lump sum basis and shall not exceed 5% of the total base bid amount for the entire project.

APPENDIX

Section 02441 Section 02900 Irrigation System Landscaping

SECTION 02441

IRRIGATION SYSTEM

NOTE: THESE SPECIFICATIONS ARE FOR USE ON CITY OF MESQUITE PROJECTS ONLY

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 DESCRIPTION

Provide an underground irrigation system as shown and specified. The work includes:

- A. Automatic irrigation system, including piping, fittings, sprinkler heads, and accessories.
- B. Valves, and fittings.
- C. Meters provided and installed by the contractor
- D. Controller, sensors, control wire, phone modem, flow meter, and phone line. E. Testing.
- E. Excavating and backfilling irrigation system work.

1.2 QUALITY ASSURANCE AND APPLICABLE STANDARDS

- A. Installer's qualifications:
 - 1. Minimum of 5 years experience installing irrigation systems of comparable size.
 - 2. Contractor shall employ a State of Texas Licensed Irrigator.
 - Contractor shall also employ a licensed Texas Irrigation installer or State of Texas Licensed Irrigator as a continuous on-site representative to the Contractor.
- B. Materials, equipment, and methods of installation shall comply with the following codes and standards:
 - 1. The City of Mesquite Ordinances and Building Codes.
 - National Electrical Code.
 - 3. American Society for Testing and Materials, (ASTM).
 - 4. National Sanitation Foundation, (NSF).
 - Texas Commission on Environmental Quality rules and regulations.
- C. Excavating, backfilling, and compacting operations:
- D. Obtain Park Project Manager's acceptance of installed and tested irrigation system prior to installing backfill materials. Notification must precede requested inspection by 24 hours.

1.3 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit manufacturer's product data and installation instructions for each of the system components to be installed.
- B. "As-Built" Drawings: Contractor shall submit a set of reproducible "As-Built" drawings on a Mylar base or a vector based electronic file (AutoCAD 2006 or compatible format) upon completion of the project. The Park Project Manager will provide a base sheet for temporary use by contractor. "As-Built" drawings shall

give dimensions to objects from two permanent objects. Dimensions shall be 300' or less unless approved by the Park Project Manager. Permanent objects are considered non-perishable and not likely to be moved i.e., buildings, street curbs, fire hydrants, tennis/basketball court corners, concrete footings or slabs around facilities, street signs, etc. (plant material is perishable). If permanent objects are not close enough to take measurements from, consult with the Park Project Manager. Objects to be dimensioned include but are not limited to: electric valves, routing of wiring, mainline, double check valve assembly, any deviations from the plan (including any and all lateral lines). Prior to taking measurements, consult with the Park Project Manager as to what other objects, if any, are to be dimensioned. Identify field changes and Change Order changes by dimension and detail.

1.4 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

- A. Deliver irrigation system components in manufacturer's original undamaged and unopened containers with labels intact and legible.
- B. Deliver plastic piping in bundles, packaged to provide adequate protection of pipe ends, either threaded or plain.
- C. Store and handle materials to prevent damage and deterioration. Do not store P.V.C. pipe in direct sunlight for more than 48 hours.
- D. Remove uninstalled components and construction debris each day from site. No storage will be permitted.

1.5 PROJECT CONDITIONS

- A. Known underground and surface utility lines are indicated on the drawings. Contractor shall request utility locating services provided by utility companies.
- B. Water Service The Contractor shall connect the proposed system into existing stub-out as indicated on the plans.
- C. Protect existing trees, plants, lawns, and other features designated to remain as part of the final landscape work. Restore turf and planting area to original condition after trenching, backfilling, and cleaning.
- D. Promptly repair damage to adjacent facilities caused by irrigation system work operations. Cost of repairs shall be contractor's expense.
- E. Promptly notify the Park Project Manager of unexpected sub-surface conditions.
- F. Irrigation system layout is diagrammatic. Exact locations of piping, sprinkler heads, valves, and other components shall be established by contractor in the field at time of installation. Obtain Park Project Manager's approval of head layout prior to installation.
- G. Space sprinkler components as per manufacturer's recommendations.
- H. Minor adjustments in system layout will be permitted to clear existing fixed obstructions. The Park Project Manager shall approve final system layout.
- I. A pre-construction inspection will be conducted by Park Project Manager with the Contractor to observe original site conditions.
- J. Electric power supply shall be furnished by the City to a location indicated on the plans. Acceptable drop location shall be verified during the design phase. A tenamp breaker box will be provided to irrigation contractor at park sign. Contractor

shall be responsible for directly wiring the automatic controllers into 120 V power supply. NOTE: NO plug in devices will be accepted.

1.6 WARRANTY AND GUARANTEE

- A. Materials and workmanship shall be fully guaranteed for one (1) year following Owner's final acceptance of project at 100% completion. Manufacturer's warranty shall extend beyond 1 year if applicable.
- B. Backfilling of all excavation shall be guaranteed for the one (1) year guarantee period.
- C. Provide a one (1) year warranty against material, installation and operation defects. Repairs, adjustments and replacement of defective irrigation system materials, including materials that have been installed on the work during the warranty period shall be at Contractor's expense.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 ACCEPTABLE MANUFACTURERS

A. Parts List: Materials provided and installed by irrigation contractor

MANUFACTURER / MODEL NO.
Weathermatic Smartline: SL4800 (12 station base model) 12 Station Module: SLM12 (up to 3 needed depending on station quantity) Aircard: SL-AIRCARD1
Data Industrial #IR220p-? (Match size to mainline) w/ all necessary wiring and accessories for proper operation
Weathermatic 11000 series (size as noted on drawings)
King One Step socket seal
Weathermatic Wireless Weather Station: SLW15 (this one product satisfies both sensors)
Weathermatic Wireless Weather Station: SLW15 (this one product satisfies both sensors)
Rainbird 1800 SAM/PRS w/ MPR nozzles (arc & radius as shown on the plans)
Rainbird 5004 + PRS (stainless steel) 3/4" inlet
Rainbird 7005, stainless steel, 1" inlet (50' – 70' radius)
Rainbird 8005, stainless steel, 1" inlet (70' – 80' radius)
Rainbird 6504 HS Falcon, stainless steel, ¾" inlet (arc & radius as shown on the plans)
Rainbird 6504 Falcon, stainless steel, (20' – 70' radius)

DESCRIPTION	MANUFACTURER / MODEL NO.
Golf / large turf rotors 80'+ radius	Toro 690 Golf Course Rotor / Rainbird Eagle 700 & 900
Tree / shrub bubbler	Rainbird RWS - M – BG02 Root Watering System
Quick Coupler Valve	Weathermatic V-100
Ball Valve (at remote Valve,	Spears Schedule 80 PVC (size to match valve)
Valve Box, and lid, 12" x 17" (for remote valve, and Q.C.V.)	DFW Plastics D-1200
Valve Box Extension	DFW Plastics D-600
Wire splice box	DFW Plastics 10" round
Concrete Valve Box	Brooks #65 concrete box with 2-piece cast iron cover
Reduced Pressure Zone Assembly (RPZ)	Febco Model 860 or Watts Regulator Series 009 (sized for optimum system performance)
RPZ device enclosure	HB-1 (1" RPZ) HB-2 (2" RPZ)
Main Line PVC	Class 200 PVC
Lateral PVC	Class 200 PVC
Swing Joint Assembly, 1" size	Lasco G-132-212
Drip (4' and narrower)	Netafim
Sleeves	Schedule 40 PVC 4" or 6" (size as noted on drawings)

B. Manufacturers:

- 1. TORO, 523 Camp Wisdom Rd., Duncanville, TX 75116, 972-709-3528
- Weathermatic, Inc. Telsco Industries, P. O. Box 180205, Dallas, TX 75218-0205, 972-278-6131
- 3. Glen-Hilton Products, Inc., P. O. Box 31614, Richmond, VA 23294, 804-765-1101
- 4. Rainbird Corporation, 972-217-5961

2.2 MATERIALS

- A. Provide only new materials, without flaws or defects and of the highest quality of their specified class and kind.
- B. Comply with pipe sizes indicated. No substitution of smaller pipes will be permitted. Remove damaged and defective pipe.
- C. Provide pipe continuously and permanently marked with manufacturer's name or trademark, size schedule and type of pipe, working pressure at 73 degrees F. and National Sanitation Foundation (NSF) approval.
- D. Plastic pipe, fittings, and connections:
 - 1. Polyvinyl chloride pipe: ASTM D2241, rigid, unplasticized PVC, extruded from virgin parent material.
 - 2. Provide pipe homogeneous throughout and free from visible cracks, holes, foreign materials, blisters, wrinkles, and dents. SDR21, Class 200.
 - 3. PVC pipe fittings: ASTM D2241 schedule 40 PVC molded fittings suitable for solvent weld, slip joint ring tight seal, or screwed connections. Fittings

made of other materials are not permitted. PVC Pipe Fittings - All PVC fittings shall be Type I, medium weight Schedule 40, as manufactured by LASCO Manufacturing Company, or approved equal. Provide 24" minimum dimensions between fittings (exception: threaded couplings).

- E. Size slip fitting socket taper to permit a dry unsoftened pipe end to be inserted no more than halfway into the socket. Saddle and cross fittings are not permitted.
- F. Schedule 80 PVC pipe may be threaded.
- G. Use male adapters for plastic to metal connections. Tighten male adapters by hand plus one turn with a strap wrench.
- H. Copper pipe, fittings, and connections of RPZ device: Refer to Water Utilities specifications. Contact Ron Self, City Backflow Inspector, for details at 972-216-6973.
 - 1. Water piping, fittings and connectors: ASTM B88 Type "L" hard tempered copper tubing. Fittings shall be 150-pound working water pressure standard, solder end type, constructed of wrought copper, bronze, or brass.
 - 2. Joints made with tin-lead solder, approximately 50/50 composition. Thoroughly polish joints and use proper flux to provide sound joints.
- I. Associated equipment:
 - Electric control: Type UF 12/2 gauge or 14/3-gauge insulation. UL listed approved for direct underground burial when used in National Electrical Code Class II Circuit,
 - 2. Wire color code: Provide control or "hot" wires red in color. Provide common or "ground" wires white in color.
 - 3. Ground Rod and Wire for Controller
 - a. Ground shall be 6-gauge uncoated copper bus wire.
 - b. Ground rod shall be a copper coated steel rod or as per local code. Length and diameter shall be as per local code.
 - c. Refer to manufacturer's requirements for wire sizing to valves, and sensors.
- J. Valve box to enclose electric valves shall be a 12" rectangular valve box with a snap in lid. Valve box to be installed with 6" extension (as needed), and supported with bricks around the entire base of the box
- K. Automatic sprinkler controllers shall be capable of operating the number of stations specified. Power source shall be standard 120V AC, 60 Hz., @1.0A for 5 valves. Output for operation of companion solenoid operated valves shall be 24/28V AC, 2.5A (60/70VA). All conduits shall be ridged type for controller wire and electrical to breaker box. The controller shall be of solid-state construction. The operation of the controller shall be a fully automatic, incorporating the following features: pump start/master valve relay with flow sensing, telephone modem, internal surge protection for AC input and valve outputs, & program information memory during power outages. A computer chip bypass switch for the rain sensor shall be installed inside the controller housing.
- L. Paco LC Model 15705 Simplex Booster System. Each system is pre-wired, skid mounted and assembled as a packaged system requiring only suction and discharge field connection and field wiring to panel. Each system consists of:
 - 1. Paco LC close-coupled bronze fitted pump with mechanical seal, bronze

- impeller, bronze case wear ring and bronze shaft sleeve. Full load capacity of pump to be 160 GPM at 147' TDH. Motor to be a 10HP/3500 RPM/1PH/220 VAC/TEFC.
- Nema 3R enclosure control panel containing fusible disconnect switch with control power transformer, 220/110 volt. Starter with hand/off/auto switch, ambient compensated overload and run light. Also mounted on panel is external duplex receptacle for 110 volt service minimum 1KVA capacity and circuit breaker. Panel to have alarm system to indicate a non-flow condition and shut pump down. Pump on/off to be controlled by 24 volt signal provided by others. Controller and pump system to be wired and tested.
- 3. Accessories and fittings to include ball valve and check valve on discharge piping, and ball valve flow switch on suction piping. Suction and discharge gauges to be furnished. Galvanized pipe to connect fittings. Only galvanized pipe should be connected to the pumps galvanized fittings. Thermostatically controlled tape furnished for freeze protection of piping, valve and pump case, etc., inside fiberglass enclosure. Drain valves to be included on suction and discharge side of pump.
- 4. Unit to have fiberglass lockable enclosure with external gel coat color green. Commercial grade resin and reinforcing material furnished. Enclosed to have 2" flat flange lip plate. Bottom side with replaceable rubber gasket. Flange suitable to accept padlock device and with two (2) padlocks keyed alike. Two (2) lifting handles, six (6) 3" vents also furnished. Fiberglass enclosure designed 1/4" thick and for 300# line load. Enclosure includes electric fan ventilation system.
- 5. Unit with heavy duty galvanized steel skid with four (4) anchor bolts holes. Holes inside enclosure. Suction and discharge openings provided through skid.
- 6. Start-up assistance and operation and maintenance instructions to be furnished by contractor to Park Supervisory personnel.

2.3 ACCESSORIES

- A. Drainage fill: 1/2" washed pea gravel.
- B. Fill: Clean soil free of stones larger than 1" diameter, foreign matter, organic material, and debris.
- C. Suitable excavated materials removed to accommodate the irrigation system work may be used as fill material subject to the Park Project Manager's review and acceptance.
- D. Concrete Thrust block: 3000 psi, 5 sack concrete mix.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 INSPECTION

- A. Examine final grades and installation conditions. Do not start irrigation system work until unsatisfactory conditions are corrected.
- B. The contractor shall verify existing and proposed locations of all site utilities (i.e. gas, water, electric, telephone, sanitary and storm sewers etc.) prior to any

trenching and laying of pipe. In addition, this contractor shall request for inspection of reduced pressure zone assembly (RPZ) with the Water Utilities Division in connection to City provided meter and exhaust.

3.2 PREPARATION

A. Lay out and stake the location of each pipe run and all sprinkler heads and sprinkler valves. Obtain Park Project Manager's acceptance of layout prior to excavating.

3.3 INSTALLATION

- A. Excavating and backfilling:
 - 1. Excavation shall include all materials encountered, except materials that cannot be excavated by normal mechanical means.
 - 2. Excavate trenches of sufficient depth to provide 18" maximum and 12" minimum cover over installed pipe.
 - 3. Fill to match adjacent grade elevations with approved earth fill material. Place and compact fill in layers not greater than 8" depth. Backfill all voids in soil. Material shall not be placed to cause shifting or compression of pipe and valve boxes.
 - Provide clean original material fill free of rocks, concrete and debris for backfill.
 - 5. Provide drainage fill aggregate around each valve and double check assembly.
 - 6. Irrigation mainline: The mainline shall be installed in a 6" wide (minimum) trench with all electric wire to valves laid directly below mainline (upon inspection the wires should be hidden from sight). Trench shall allow a minimum of 12" of cover. All mains and laterals up to and including 4" shall have a maximum 18" of cover. Mainline shall be flushed before attaching valves. If splices are made in mainline, use gasket repair fittings. Compression fittings are not allowed. Mainline may be backfilled except at joints prior to inspection by the Owner. Mainline shall be tested for leaks under pressure for a 6-to-8-hour period. Joints may be backfilled after Park Project Manager verifies and approves that no leaks exist.
 - 7. Thrust block shall be required at all 3" or larger fittings.
 - 8. Lateral Piping Shall be installed in a 4" wide (minimum) trench 12" deep. Excavate trenches and install piping and fill during the same working day. Do not leave open trenches or partially filled trenches open overnight. Fill at joints in pipe may remain open.
 - 9. Sleeves installed to accommodate irrigation piping shall be installed with 18" of cover, as measured from finished grade. Costs for providing and installing these sleeves shall be included in the irrigation system bid item.

B. Plastic pipe:

- 1. Install plastic pipe in accordance with manufacturer's installation instructions. Provide for thermal expansion and contraction.
- 2. Saw cut plastic pipe to ensure a square cut. Remove burrs and shavings at cut ends prior to installation.

- 3. Make plastic-to-plastic joints with solvent weld joints or slip seal joints. Use only solvent recommended by the pipe manufacturer. Install plastic pipefittings in accordance with pipe manufacturer's instructions. Solvent primer is required on all joints/fittings. Excess primer and/or solvent dripped on pipe or squeezed from fitting is not permitted and shall be grounds for removal and replacement of the joint.
- 4. Make plastic to metal joints with plastic male adapters.
- 5. Maintain a minimum of 24" between all glued joints.
- 6. Allow joints to set at least 24 hours before pressure is applied to the system.
- 7. Maintain pipe interiors free of dirt and debris. Close open ends of pipe by acceptable methods when pipe installation is not in progress.
- 8. Inspection of all fittings and coupling will be made by the Park Project Manager. Backfill of approved soil is not permitted until Park Project Manager has inspected all fittings, valves, and couplings.
- 9. Install in-ground control valves in valve box as indicated. Valve boxes shall be installed in accordance with the manufacturer's installation instructions and with an 8" layer of washed pea gravel under the valve. Each valve box shall be supported by bricks around the entire perimeter of the box. Install valve boxes on a suitable base to provide a level foundation. Set the top of the box 2" below surrounding grade and cover to protect from vandalism.
- 10. Seal threaded connections on both sides of the control valves with Teflon tape.
- 11. Install freeze and rain sensors as directed by the Park Project Manager.
- C. Sprinklers, fittings, valves, and accessories:
 - Install fittings, valves, sprinkler heads, risers, and accessories in accordance with manufacturer's instructions, except as otherwise indicated. Maintain a minimum of 24" between all glued fittings. All fittings shall be installed in a horizontal manner. Fittings that join pipe vertically or at angles other than horizontal will be subject to removal. Use of fittings that appears excessive and inappropriate for normal installation and not in compliance with standard industry practice, shall be rejected.
 - 2. Set sprinkler heads perpendicular to finished grades, except as otherwise indicated.
 - 3. Set top of quick coupler, gate, and isolation valve boxes flush to finish grade.
 - 4. Set top of electric valve box at 2" below finish grade.
 - 5. Provide pop-up spray heads with 1/2" flex cut-off nipples joint assembly.
 - 6. Install reduced pressure zone (RPZ) backflow device above grade in an insulated aluminum or stainless steel enclosure appropriately sized for the RPZ device. The enclosure shall be securely anchored and vandal resistant. The concrete pad for the enclosure shall be a 3000 PSI 4" concrete slab that extends 6" beyond the enclosure on all sides. Reinforce the concrete pad with #3 rebar @ 12" on-center, both ways.
 - 7. Install the specified controller in the location shown on the drawings. Install per manufacturer's recommendations.

8. The contractor shall pull valve wires, program controller by labeling station position for zones and put controller in operation.

D. Control wiring:

- Contractor shall run a single wire to each solenoid, for the control and a common neutral wire to all solenoids from the controller. Wire shall be sized and color-coded according to device requirements of manufacturer.
- 2. Install enough wire to allow raising the valve bonnet or splice to the surface without disconnecting the wires when repair is required.
- 3. Pull each remote control valve wire through rigid conduit in base, which shall then be connected to controller.
- 4. Make wire connections to remote control electric valves and splices of wire in 10" valve boxes. All wire splices must be properly insulated and waterproofed. Splices shall be made with a King One-Step in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations. Provide 2" of soil cover to protect from vandalism. Show location of any and all splices on the "As-Built" drawings
- E. Sensors: Install rain, freeze and flow sensors as noted on the plans (or as directed by the Park Project Manager) with control wire enclosed in 1/2" rigid conduit (above grade).
- F. RPZ device/enclosure shall be installed according to the construction details shown on the plans and the heater shall be wired directly to the breaker box/disconnect. A licensed electrician shall perform all electrical connections.
- G. Flushing, testing, and adjustment:
 - 1. After sprinkler piping and main are installed and before sprinkler heads are installed, open control valves and flush out the system with full head of water until pipes are clear of debris.
 - 2. Perform system testing upon completion of each section. Make necessary repairs and re-test repaired sections as required. Trench and pipe must be dry at inspection. System must be under operating pressure for 24 hours prior to observation of every joint and coupling, by the Park Project Manager. Backfill is permitted after inspection and approval by Park Project Manager.
 - 3. Adjust sprinklers after installation for proper and adequate distribution of the water over the coverage pattern. Adjust for the proper arc of coverage.
 - 4. Tighten nozzles on spray type sprinklers after installation. Adjust sprinkleradjusting screw on lateral line or circuit as required for proper radius. Interchange nozzle patterns as directed by the Park Project Manager, to give best arc of coverage.
 - 5. Adjust all electric remote control valve flow control stems for system balance.
 - Adjust all rain and temperature sensors as directed by the Park Project Manager. Test as required to obtain satisfactory operating conditions.
 Demonstrate correct operation of sensors to the Park Project Manager.
 - 7. Test and demonstrate the controller by operating appropriate day, hour, and station selection features as required to automatically start and shut down irrigation cycles to accommodate plant requirements and weather

conditions.

- H. Spare Parts: Provide to the City of Mesquite additional parts as per noted on plan, including installation and operations manuals to all products.
- I. Booster Pump: Install Paco LC model 15705 Simplex Booster System according to manufacturer recommendations.

3.4 DISPOSAL OF WASTE MATERIAL

- A. Stockpile, haul from site, and legally dispose of waste materials, including unsuitable excavated materials, rock, trash, and debris. Debris must be removed at the end of work time each day.
- B. Maintain pavement and curb clear, clean, and free of debris and soil. Pavement and curb shall remain clear, clean and free of debris.

3.5 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

A. An inspection of the irrigation system will be made by the Park Project Manager upon request for Application of Substantial Completion by the Contractor. The irrigation system must be sufficiently complete so that all plant material can be sustained by the system and all valve boxes are properly installed. All electric valves shall have 2" of fill over the top of the box. Contractor shall deliver complete "As-Built" drawings (section 1.03B) to Park Project Manager for review and comment prior to application of final payment.

3.6 CLEANING

A. Perform daily cleaning during installation of the work and upon completion of the work. Remove from site all excess materials, soil, debris, and equipment. Repair damage resulting from irrigation system installation. Restore site to the original condition prior to damage caused by construction activities.

3.7 FINAL COMPLETION

A. The Park Project Manager, upon written request, will make an inspection of the irrigation system for Final Completion by the Contractor. Provide notification of at least two (2) working days before requested inspection date. Contractor shall submit on forms approved by the Park Project Manager, a Waiver of Release of Lien, Affidavit of Payment of Debts and Claim, and a fully executed "Consent of Surety for Payment".

END OF SECTION

SECTION 02900

LANDSCAPING

NOTE: THESE SPECIFICATIONS ARE FOR USE ON CITY OF MESQUITE PROJECTS ONLY

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 GENERAL CONDITIONS

A. The requirements of the "General Provisions" shall apply to all work of this Section with the same force and effect as though repeated in full herein.

1.2 WORK INCLUDED

A. Furnish all labor, material, equipment and services necessary to provide all landscape planting, and related items complete in place, as shown on the Drawings and specified, herein. Work Specified in this Section: Fine grading, steel edging, soil preparation, gravel groundcover, planting, clean-up, and all other miscellaneous items related to landscaping as shown on the drawings.

1.3 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Standards:
 - 1. Standardized Plant Names, 1942 Edition, American Joint Committee on Horticulture Nomenclature.
 - 2. American Standards for Nursery Stock, Latest Edition, American Association of Nurserymen.
- B. Source Quality Control:
 - Submit documentation to Park Project Manager within ten (10) days after award of Contract that all plant material to be supplied by Contractor is available. Any and all substitutions due to unavailability must be requested in writing prior to confirmation of ordering. All materials shall be subject to inspection by Park Project Manager at any time after confirmation of ordering.
 - 2. Plants to be supplied by Contractor shall be subject to inspection and approval of Park Project Manager at place of growth or upon delivery for conformity to Specifications. Such approval shall not impair the right of inspection and rejection during progress of the work. Inspection and tagging of plant material by the Park Project Manager is for design intent only and does not constitute the Park Project Manager's approval of the plant materials in regard to their health and vigor. The health and vigor of the plant material is the sole responsibility of the Contractor. Submit written request for inspection of plant material at place of growth to Park Project Manager. Written request shall state the place of growth and quantity of plants to be inspected. Park Project Manager reserves the right to refuse inspection at this time if, in their judgment, a sufficient quantity of plants is not available for inspection.

3. The Contractor shall submit specifications of any item being used on site upon the request of the Park Project Manager.

1.4 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

A. Delivery:

- 1. Deliver packaged materials to site in original unopened containers bearing manufacturer's guaranteed chemical analysis, name, trademark, and conformance to State Law.
- 2. Deliver all plants with legible identification labels.
 - Label trees, evergreens, bundles of containers of like shrubs, or groundcover plants.
 - b. State correct plant name and size indicated on plant list.
 - c. Use durable waterproof labels with water-resistant ink which will remain legible for at least 60 days.
- 3. Protect plant material during and after delivery to prevent damage to root ball or desiccation of leaves.

B. Storage:

- 1. Store plant material in shade and protect from weather.
- 2. Storage at the site is allowed, however, Contractor accepts full responsibility for damage, theft, or vandalism.
- 3. Any plant material balled or burlapped, not installed within 24 hours of delivery shall be healed in until such time as it is installed.
- 4 Maintain and protect plant material not to be planted within four (4) hours in a healthy, vigorous condition.
- C. Handling: The Contractor is cautioned to exercise care in handling, loading, unloading and storing of plant materials. Plant materials that have been damaged in any way will be discarded and if installed, shall be replaced with undamaged materials at the Contractor's expense.

1.5 JOB CONDITIONS

- A. Perform actual planting only when weather and soil conditions are suitable in accordance with locally accepted practice.
- B. Scheduling: Install trees, shrubs, and liner stock plant material before grassing is commenced.
- C. Contractor shall note that rock and/or construction materials from previous site use may be encountered on some areas of the site. Rock or construction material excavation shall be included as part of bid.

1.6 QUALIFICATIONS OF WORKMEN

A. Provide at least one person who shall be present at all times during execution of this portion of the Work, who shall be thoroughly familiar with the type of materials being installed and the proper materials and methods for their installation, who speaks understandable English, and who shall direct all work performed under this Section.

1.7 SAMPLES AND TESTS

A. Park Project Manager reserves the right to take and analyze samples of materials for conformity to specifications at any time. Contractor shall furnish samples upon request by Park Project Manager. Rejected materials shall be immediately removed from the site at Contractor's expense. Cost of testing of materials not meeting Specifications shall be paid by Contractor.

1.8 PLANT GUARANTEE

- A. All trees, shrubs, vines, and groundcovers will be guaranteed for a twelve (12) month period after Final Acceptance. The Contractor will replace all dead or defective materials upon notification (weather permitting) with plants of the same kind and size as those originally planted. Plants, including trees, which have partially died so that shape, size, or symmetry has been damaged, shall be considered subject to replacement, and the opinion of the Park Project Manager will be final. At the direction of the Park Project Manager, plants may be replaced at the start of the next planting or digging season, but in such cases, Contractor will remove dead plants within two (2) working days.
- B. All replacement work (including materials, labor and equipment) will be done at no cost to the Owner. Any damage, such as ruts in lawn or bed areas, that occurs when Contractor makes replacements, will be repaired immediately by the Contractor.
- C. The guarantee will not apply where plants die after Final Acceptance because of injury by storms, drowning, drought, hail, freeze, insects, disease, mechanical injury by humans or machines, and theft.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 MATERIALS

- A. All materials shall be of standard, approved and first-grade quality and shall be in prime condition when installed and accepted. Any commercially processed or packaged material shall be delivered to the site in the original unopened container bearing the manufacturer's guaranteed analysis. Contractor shall supply Park Project Manager with a sample of all supplied materials accompanied by analytical data from an approved laboratory source illustrating compliance or bearing the manufacturer's guaranteed analysis.
- B. Product Manufacturer's name(s) and/or model numbers are used herein to set a standard of quality and are not intended to be a restraint of trade or prevent submittals of other manufacturer's products of equal quality.
- C. Soil Amendment:
 - Compost Mix: "A Professional Bedding Soil" as produced by Living Earth Technologies, Inc., 1808 W. Northwest Highway, Dallas, Texas (phone: 214/869-4332) composed of 45% Compost, 45% Composted Pine Bark, and 10% Sandy Loam, or approved equal.
- D. Tree Backfill Fertilizer:
 - 1. 13.13.13 analysis bulk fertilizer.
- E. Tree Shrub, Groundcover, and Seasonal Color Fertilizer:

- 1. Provide commercial balanced slow release fertilizer (Osmocote), delivered to the site in bags labeled with the manufacturer's guaranteed analysis. If stored on the site, protect fertilizer from the elements at all times.
- F. Tree, Shrub, and Groundcover Planting Tablets:
 - 1. Shall be slow-released type with potential acidity of not more than 5% by weight containing the following percentages of nutrients by weight:
 - a. 20% nitrogen
 - b. 10% phosphoric acid
 - c. 5% potash

G. Plant Material:

- Plant names indicated, comply with "Standardized Plant Names" as adopted by the latest edition of the American Joint Committee of Horticultural Nomenclature. Names of varieties not listed conform generally with names accepted by the nursery trade. Provide stock true to botanical name and legibly tagged.
- 2. Plant material shall meet and/or exceed grades and standards set forth by the Texas Association of Nurserymen. All plants shall have a normal habit of growth and shall be sound, healthy, vigorous and free of insect infestations, plant diseases, sunscalds, fresh abrasions of the bark, excessive abrasions, or other objectionable disfigurements. Tree trunks shall be sturdy and have well "hardened" systems and vigorous and fibrous root systems that are not root or pot-bound. In the event of disagreement as to condition of root system, the root condition of the plants furnished by the Contractor in containers will be determined by removal of earth from the roots of not less than two or more than two percent of the total number of plants of each species or variety. Where container-grown plants are from several sources, the roots of not less than two plants of each species or the variety from each source will be inspected. In case the sample plants inspected are found defective, the Park Project Manager reserves the right to reject the entire lot or lots of plants represented by the defective samples. Any plants rendered unsuitable for planting because of this inspection will be considered as samples and will be provided at the expense of the Contractor.
- 3. The size of the plants will correspond with that normally expected for species and variety of commercially available nursery stock or as specified on Drawings. The minimum acceptable size of all plants measured before pruning with the branches in normal position, shall conform to the measurements, if any, specified on the drawings in the list of plants to be furnished. Plants larger in size than specified may be used with the approval of the Park Project Manager, but the use of larger plants will make no change in Contract price. If the use of larger plants is approved, the ball of earth, container size, or spread of roots for each plant will be increased proportionately.
- 4. Provide "specimen" plants with a special height, shape, or character of growth. Tag specimen trees or shrubs at the source of supply. Plants may be inspected by the Park Project Manager and reviewed at the place of

- growth, for compliance with specification requirement for quality, size, and variety. Such approval shall not impair the right of inspection and rejection upon delivery at the site or during the progress of the work.
- 5. Field-selected or Nursery Grown Balled and Burlapped Tree Stock (B&B): Dig balled and burlapped plants with, natural balls of earth of sufficient diameter and depth to encompass the fibrous and feeding root system necessary for full recovery of the plant. Provide 10" of root ball per 1" caliper of trunk (measured 6" above grade level for trees 4" caliper and less and 12" above grade for larger trees). If a tree is of multi-trunk variety, the caliper of the tree is the average caliper of all its trunks. Cracked or mushroomed balls are not acceptable. Selectively remove 1/2 to 2/3 of twig growth.
- 6. Container-grown Stock (General): Grown in a container for sufficient length of time for the root system to have developed to hold the soil together, firm and whole.
 - a. No plants shall be loose in the container.
 - b. Container stock shall not be pot bound.
- 7. Container-grown Tree Stock: Grown in a container from seedling stage and complies with Paragraph 2.1 G-6, Container-grown Stock requirements.
- 8. Containerized Tree Stock: Grown in a container for not less than one (1) year and complies with Paragraph 2.1 G-6, Container-grown Stock requirements.
- 9. Plants planted in rows shall be matched in form, height and overall character.
- 10. Shrubs and small plants shall meet the requirements for spread and height indicated in the plant list.
 - a. The measurements for height shall be taken from the ground level to the average height of the top of the plant and not the longest branch.
 - b. Single stemmed or thin plants will not be accepted. Side branches shall be generous, well-twigged, and the plant as a whole well-bushed to the ground.
 - c. Plants shall be in a moist, vigorous condition, free from dead wood, bruises, or other root or branch injuries.
- 11. Pruning: At no time shall trees or plant materials be pruned, trimmed or topped prior to delivery and any alteration of their shape shall be conducted only with the approval and when in the presence of the Park Project Manager.
- 12. All plants not conforming to the requirements herein specified, shall be considered defective and such plants, whether in place or not, shall be marked as rejected and immediately removed from the site of the work and replaced with new plants at the Contractor's expense. The plants shall be of the species, variety, size and conditions specified herein or as shown on the Drawings. Under no conditions will there be any substitutions of plants or sizes listed on the accompanying plans, except with the express consent of the Park Project Manager.
- H. Tree Paint: Morrison Tree Seal, Cabort Tree Paint, or equal.

- I. Water: Furnished by Owner; transport as required.
- J. Mulch Topdressing: Shall be shredded, fine textured, hardwood mulch as approved by Park Project Manager. Minimum 2" layer spread uniformly.
- K. Steel Edging and Stakes: 3/16" x 4" Ryerson 'Estate' edging, as manufactured by Joseph Ryerson Co., Inc., Houston, Texas (phone 713-675-6111), or approved equal.
- L. Soil Saver/Jute Mesh (if required): Heavy weight (green) jute mesh as manufactured by Jim Walls Company, 12820 Hillcrest Road, Dallas, Texas 75230, or approved equal. Install on all groundcover or shrub bed slopes greater than 3:1 slope.
- M. Anchoring Materials: In-ground type tree anchors approved by the Park Project Manager or the city's designated representative.
- N. Gravel Mulch (if applicable): 3/4" to 1-1/2" native washed stone. Install 3" layer over layer of filter fabric (to be approved by Park Project Manager). Provide sample of gravel mulch for Park Project Manager approval.
- O. Other Materials: All other materials, not specifically described but required for a complete and proper installation, shall be as selected by the Contractor subject to the approval of the Park Project Manager.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 INSPECTION

- A. Obtain Park Project Manager certification that final grades to +0.10' have been established prior to commencing planting operations. Provide for inclusion of all amendments, settling, etc. Landscape Contractor shall be responsible for shaping all planting areas as indicated on Plans or as directed by Park Project Manager.
- B. Inspect trees, shrubs and groundcover plant material for injury, insect infestation and trees and shrubs for improper pruning.
- C. Do not begin planting of trees until deficiencies are corrected or plants replaced.

3.2 PLANTING PREPARATION

- A. Soil Preparation for Groundcover, Shrub Beds:
 - 1. Excavate existing soil, if necessary, and add to complete shrub, groundcover, and seasonal color beds the following:
 - a. 4" layer of Compost Mix
 - b. 14-14-14 slow release fertilizer (Osmocote) at a rate of 5 lbs./100 sq.ft.
 - 2. Spread materials uniformly and cultivate thoroughly by means of a mechanical tiller. Till to a minimum depth of 8".
- B. Final Grades:
 - Minor modifications to grade may be required to establish the final grade.
 - 2. Finish grading shall ensure proper drainage of the site as determined on Drawings.

- 3. All areas shall be graded so that the final grades will be 1" below adjacent paved areas, curbs, valve boxes, edging, clean-outs, drains, manholes, etc., or as indicated on Plans.
- 4. At time of planting, the top 6" of all areas to be planted or seeded shall be free of stones, stumps, or other deleterious matter 1" in diameter or larger, and shall be free from all wire, plaster, or similar objects that would be a hindrance to planting or maintenance.
- C. Disposal of Excess Soil: Disposal of any unacceptable or excess soil shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor. Excess soil may be spoiled on-site per direction of Owner.

3.3 PLANTING INSTALLATION

A. General:

- Actual planting shall be performed during those periods when weather and soil conditions are suitable and in accordance with locally accepted practice, as approved by the Park Project Manager.
- Only as many plants as can be planted and watered on that same day shall be distributed in a planting area.
- Containers shall be opened and plants shall be removed in such a manner that the ball of earth surrounding the roots is not broken and they shall be planted and watered as herein specified immediately after removal from the containers. Containers shall not be opened prior to placing the plants in the planting area.
- B. Layout of Major Plantings: Locations for plants and outlines of areas to be planted shall be marked on the ground by the Contractor before any plant pits are dug. All such locations shall be approved by the Park Project Manager. If underground construction or utility line is encountered in the excavation of planting areas, other locations for planting may be selected by the Park Project Manager. Layout shall be accomplished by flagged grade stakes indicating plant names and specified container size on each stake. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to confirm with the Park Project Manager superintendent and governing agencies the location and depth of all underground utilities, and obstructions.

C. Excavation:

- Excavation for planting shall include the stripping and stacking of all acceptable topsoil encountered within the areas to be excavated for trenches, tree holes, plant pits and planting beds.
- 2. Excess soil generated from the planting holes and not used as backfill, or in establishing the final grades may be spoiled on-site per direction of Owner.
- 3. Protect all areas from excessive compaction when trucking plants or other material to the planting site.
- 4. Tree and shrub pits shall be excavated to allow the root ball to set on undisturbed soil and excavated to the following diameters:

Plant Size

Pit Diameter

a. Up to 5 gallon container

12" greater than root ball diameter

- 5 gallon container and 24" greater than root ball diameter larger (including trees)
- 5. All excavated holes shall have vertical sides with roughened surfaces.
- 6. All holes for trees and large shrubs shall be tested for water retention prior to tree or shrub installation. After hole is excavated, it is to be filled with water to the top of the excavation. If, after 24 hours, the hole still holds water, the Contractor shall excavate an additional 6" from the bottom of hole. The Contractor shall then install of the hole) with filter fabric. The Contractor shall also install a capped 3" diameter PVC sump which will extend from near the bottom of the rock layer to 3" above the proposed finish grade so the hole can be evacuated through mechanical means.

D. Planting Trees:

- 1. Container Removal:
 - a. Cut cans (if applicable) with an acceptable can cutter. Remove tree from plastic container or box carefully so container can be re-used.
 - b. Do not injure root ball.
- 2. Center tree in pit.
- 3. Face plants with fullest growth into prevailing wind, or away from building facade.
- 4. Set plants plumb and hold rigidly in position until soil has been tamped firmly around ball.
- 5. Tree Pit Backfill:
 - a. Tree backfill should be composed of 5 parts existing soil
 excavated from the hole to one part Soil Amendment,
 thoroughly mixed with 5 lbs. per cubic yard tree backfill fertilizer.
 Tree backfill to be mechanically mixed prior to backfill
 operations.
- 6. Set tree in upright position in the center of the hole and compact the backfill mixture around the ball or roots. Thoroughly water each plant after back filling. After planting trees not in beds, surround the pits with a 3" height berm.
- 7. Plant Tablets:
 - a. After the water has completely drained from the plant pit, planting tablets shall be placed in the top 3" of the plant pit, four tablets per every foot of rootball diameter per tree.
 - b. Planting tablets shall be set with each plant on the top of the rootball while the plants are still in their containers so the required number of tablets to be used in each hole can be easily verified by the Park Project Manager.
- 8. Pruning: Pruning shall be limited to the minimum necessary to remove injured twigs and branches or to limb-up trees as directed by the Park Project Manager. Pruning may not be done prior to delivery of plants. Cuts over 3/4" in diameter shall be painted with tree paint.

9. Newly planted trees must be anchored the first year to help the tree become established. Some flexibility must be provided to allow the stem and root system to develop strength. For trees up to a 4" caliper diameter, use a minimum of two in- ground tree anchors; 4" - 8" use a minimum of three in-ground tree anchors. Information about in-ground tree anchoring products can be found at the website www.treestaple.com. This product and its web site are offered as an example of one type of tree anchoring system to establish a standard of quality. Similar products with equal specifications will be accepted.

E. Planting Shrubs:

- 1. Container Removal:
 - a. Cut cans on two sides with an acceptable can cutter. Do not cut cans with spade or ax.
 - b. Do not injure root system.
- 2. Center plant in pit or trench.
- 3. Face plants with fullest growth into prevailing wind, or away from building facade.
- 4. Set plants plumb and hold rigidly in position until soil has been tamped firmly around ball or roots.
- 5. Fill holes with backfill composed of 50% soil taken from the hole and 50% Soil Amendment, thoroughly mixed.
- 6. Set plant in upright position in the center of the hole and compact the backfill mixture around the ball or roots. Thoroughly water each plant after back filling. After shrubs not in beds, surround the pits with a 3" height berm.
- 7. Plant Tablets:
 - a. After the water has completely drained from plant pit, planting tablets shall be placed in the top 3" of the plant pit as indicated:
 - One tablet per one-gallon container and two-gallon container
 - ii. Two tablets per five-gallon container
 - b. Planting tablets shall be set with each tablet on the top of the rootball while the plants are still in their containers so the required number of tablets to be used in each hole can be easily verified by the Park Project Manager.
- 8. Pruning: Pruning shall be limited to the minimum necessary to remove injured twigs and branches. Pruning may not be done prior to delivery of plants.
- F. Planting Groundcover:
 - 1. Space the plants evenly as indicated on the Drawings, staggering.
 - 2. After planting is completed, cover the bed uniformly with a minimum 2" layer of mulch topdressing.
 - 3. Thoroughly water entire planting bed.
- G. Grass Installation:
 - Sod Grass:

- a. All areas to receive sod must be roto-tilled to a depth of 2" (inches), cleaned of any rocks, bricks or other debris and fine graded before sod is planted. Soil preparation must be reviewed by the Park Project Manager prior to installation of sod/seed.
- b. Sod must be fresh and free of any weeds. Sod may not sit on pallets for more than 48 hours without being planted. Any sod allowed to sit on pallets for more than 24 hours is subject to rejection by the Park Project Manager and will be replaced at contractor's expense.
- c. All sod is to be planted in a "running bond" pattern.
- d. All sod planted on the site must be watered and rolled with a grass roller the same day it is planted.

Grass seed:

- a. All areas to receive grass seed must be roto-tilled to a depth of 2" (inches), cleaned of any rocks, bricks or other debris, and fine graded before seed is spread. Soil preparation must be reviewed by the Park Project Manager prior to installation of sod/seed.
- b. All seed must be distributed in a uniform fashion as per product manufacturer's or grower's recommendations.
- c. All areas that have been seeded must remain moist for 7 to 10 days from the time of the first watering or until seed has germinated. Seed that is allowed to dry before germination will be subject to replacement at Contractor's expense. It is the Contractor's responsibility to coordinate site watering.

3.4 CLEAN-UP

- A. After all planting operations have been completed, remove all trash, excess soil, empty plant containers and rubbish from the property. All scars, ruts or other marks in the ground caused by this work shall be repaired and the ground left in a neat and orderly condition throughout the site. Contractor shall pick up all trash resulting from this work on a daily basis. All trash shall be removed completely from the site.
- B. The Contractor shall leave the site area broom-clean and shall wash down all paved areas within the Contract area, leaving the premises in a clean condition.

3.5 MAINTENANCE

- A. Maintain the trees, shrubs, groundcovers, and sod grass until Final Completion and Acceptance of the entire project.
- B. Maintenance shall include pruning, cultivating, weeding, watering, and application of appropriate insecticides and fungicides necessary to maintain plant free of insects and disease.
 - 1. Re-set settled plants to proper grade and position. Restore planting saucer and adjacent material and remove dead material.
 - 2. Correct defective work as soon as possible after deficiencies become apparent and weather and season permits.

3. Deep-water trees, plants, and groundcover beds within the first 24 hours of initial planting, and not less than twice per week until final acceptance.

3.6 OBSERVATION SCHEDULE

- A. When observations are conducted by someone other than the Park Project Manager, the Contractor shall show evidence in writing of when and by whom these observations were made.
- B. No site visits shall commence without all items noted in previous Observation Reports either completed or remedied unless such compliance has been waived by the Owner and/or Park Project Manager.

END OF SECTION

TO THE BIDDER / VENDOR

DID YOU REMEMBER TO?

- Abide by the General and Special Conditions
- Make note of the opening date and time. All bids must be submitted by 2:00 p.m.
 Bids received after 2:00 p.m. will not be accepted.
- Fill in the unit and extended price on your bid proposal.
- Fill in the total amount.
- Fill in the alternate bid amounts, if requested.
- Fill in the terms, if requested.
- Acknowledge receipt of all addendums.
- Fill in the delivery time or the calendar days (if applicable).
- Fill in the company name, address and phone number.
- Sign bid proposal.
- Include on the front of your sealed envelope the following information: **Company name**, address, bid number, opening date and time.

Mailing Address:

City of Mesquite P.O. Box 850137 Mesquite, TX 75185-0137

Purchasing Office 972-216-6201 972-216-6397 Fax

Physical Address:

City of Mesquite 757 N. Galloway Mesquite, TX 75149